

Official Journal of The City of New York

THE CITY RECORD U.S.P.S.0114-66

Printed on paper containing 40% post-consumer material

VOLUME CXXXVIV NUMBER 38

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2012

PRICE \$4.00

| TABLE OF CONTENTS |
|---|
| PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS |
| Board Meetings421 |
| Queens Borough President421 |
| City Council |
| City University421 |
| City Planning Commission422 |
| Community Boards435 |
| Board of Education Retirement System $\436$ |
| Employees Retirement System |
| Landmarks Preservation Commission436 |
| Mayor's Office of Operations436 |

| Transportation |
|---|
| PROPERTY DISPOSITION |
| Citywide Administrative Services437 |
| Municipal Supply Services437 |
| <i>Sale by Auction</i> |
| Sale by Sealed Bid437 |
| Police |
| PROCUREMENT |
| Administration for Children's Services $\437$ |
| Citywide Administrative Services438 |
| Municipal Supply Services438 |
| <i>Vendor Lists</i> 438 |
| |

Board of Standards and Appeals436

| Design and Construction | Office of the Mayor438 |
|---|--|
| Environmental Protection | Parks and Recreation438 |
| Fire | Purchasing and Accounting438 |
| Health and Hospitals Corporation438 | School Construction Authority439 |
| Health and Mental Hygiene438 | Contract Administration439 |
| Agency Chief Contracting Officer438 | Contract Services439 |
| Housing Authority438 | AGENCY RULES |
| Human Resources Administration438 | Consumer Affairs439 |
| Agency Chief Contracting Officer / Contracts .438 | Mayor's Office of Contract Services439 |
| Independent Budget Office438 | SPECIAL MATERIALS |
| Information Technology and | Comptroller441 |
| Telecommunications438 | Changes in Personnel442 |
| Franchise Administration438 | READER'S GUIDE 444 |
| | |

THE CITY RECORD

MICHAEL R. BLOOMBERG, Mayor

EDNA WELLS HANDY, Commissioner, Department of Citywide Administrative Services. ELI BLACHMAN, Editor of The City Record.

Published Monday through Friday, except legal holidays by the Department of Citywide Administrative Services of the City of New York under Authority of Section 1066 of the New York City Charter.

Subscription-\$500 a year; daily, \$4.00 a copy (\$5.00 by mail) Periodicals Postage Paid at New York, N.Y. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to THE CITY RECORD, 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10007 - 1602

Editorial Office 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor New York N.Y. 10007-1602 Telephone (212) 669-8252

Subscription Changes/Information 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor New York N.Y. 10007-1602 Telephone (212) 669-8252

The City of New York Home Page provides Internet access via the world wide web to THE DAILY CITY RECORD http://www.nyc.gov/cityrecord

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETINGS

See Also: Procurement; Agency Rules

BOARD MEETINGS

■ NOTICE OF MEETINGS

City Planning Commission

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, New York, New York 10007, twice monthly on Wednesday, at 10:00 A.M., unless otherwise ordered by the Commission.

City Council

Meets by Charter twice a month in Councilman's Chamber, City Hall, Manhattan, New York 10007, at 1:30 P.M. Contract Awards Public Hearing

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, weekly, on Thursday, commencing 10:00 A.M., and other days, times and location as warranted. **Design Commission**

Meets at 253 Broadway, 5th Floor, New York, New York 10007. For meeting schedule, please visit nyc.gov/designcommission or call (212) 788-3071.

Department of Education Meets in the Hall of the Board for a monthly business meeting on the Third Wednesday, of each month at 6:00 P.M. The Annual Meeting is held on the first Tuesday of July at 10:00 A.M.

Board of Elections

32 Broadway, 7th Floor, New York, NY 10004, on Tuesday, at 1:30 P.M. and at the call of the Commissioner.

Real Property Acquisition And Disposition Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, bi-weekly, on Wednesdays, commencing 10:00 A.M., and other days, times and location as warranted.

Landmarks Preservation Commission Meets in the Hearing Room, Municipal Building, 9th Floor North, 1 Centre Street in Manhattan on approximately three Tuesday's each month, commencing at 9:30 A.M. unless otherwise noticed by the Commission. For current meeting dates, times and agendas, please visit our website at www.nyc.gov/landmarks.

Employees' Retirement System Meets in the Boardroom, 22nd Floor, 335 Adams Street, Brooklyn, New York 11201, at 9:30 A.M., on the third Thursday of each month, at the call of the Chairman. **Housing Authority**

Board Meetings take place every other Wednesday at 10:00 A.M. in the Board Room on the 12th Floor of 250 Broadway, New York, New York (unless otherwise noted). For Board Meeting dates and times, please visit NYCHA's Website at nyc.gov/nycha or contact the Office of the Secretary at (212) 306-6088. Copies of the Calendar are available on 306-6088. Copies of the Calendar are available on NYCHA's Website or can be picked up at the Office of the Secretary at 250 Broadway, 12th Floor, New York, New York, no earlier than 3:00 P.M. on the Friday before the upcoming Wednesday Board Meeting. Copies of the Disposition are also available on NYCHA's Website or can be picked up at the Office of the Secretary no earlier than 3:00 P.M. on the

Thursday after the Board Meeting. Any changes to the schedule will be posted here and on NYCHA's Website to the extent practicable at a reasonable time before the meeting.

These meetings are open to the public. Pre-registration at least 45 minutes before the scheduled Board Meeting is required by all speakers. Comments are limited to the items on the Calendar. Speaking time will be limited to three minutes. The public comment period will conclude upon all speakers being heard or at the expiration of 30 minutes allotted by law for public comment, whichever occurs first. Any person requiring a reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the Board Meeting, should contact the Office of the Secretary at (212) 306-6088 no later than five business days before the Board Meeting.

NOTE: Individuals requesting Sign Language Interpreters should contact the Borough President's Office, (718) 286-2860, TDD users should call (718) 286-2656, no later than FIVE BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING.

CD07 - BSA# 72-04 BZ - IN THE MATTER of an application submitted by Eric Palatnik, PC on behalf of Bway-129 St. Gasoline Corp. pursuant to Section 11-411 of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, for a waiver of the BSA Rules of Practice and Procedure to extend the term of the special permit which expired June 3, 2010 in an R6/C1-2 district, located at **141-54 Northern Boulevard**, zoning map 10a, Flushing, Borough of Queens.

CD02 - ULURP #120131 PCQ - IN THE MATTER of an application submitted by the Department of Sanitation and the Department of Citywide Administrative Services, pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter, for the site selection and acquisition of property located in an M1-1 district at **52-07 59th Street**, Block 2352, Lot 22, Zoning Map 13c, Woodside, Borough of Queens.

f24-m1

CITY COUNCIL

HEARINGS

HEARING BY THE COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

THE COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS WILL HOLD A HEARING ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 29, 2012 AT 10:30 A.M. IN THE 16TH FLOOR COMMITTEE ROOM AT 250 BROADWAY, NEW YORK, NY 10007 ON THE FOLLOWING MATTERS:

Advice and Consent

M-741, Communication from the Mayor submitting the name of Erika Thomas-Yuille, a resident of Manhattan, for appointment to the New York City Conflicts of Interest Board pursuant to § 2602 of the New York City Charter. Should Mrs. Thomas-Yuille receive the advice and consent of the Council, she will replace Angela Mariana Freyre and serve the remainder of a six-year term that expires on March 31, 2016.

Preconsidered-M, Communication from the Mayor submitting the name of Thomas D. Shpetner, a resident of Brooklyn, for appointment as a member of the New York City Environmental Control Board ("business representative") pursuant to §§ 31 and 1049-a of the New York City Charter. Should Mr. Shpetner receive the advice and consent of the Council, he will replace Belle Horowitz and be eligible to serve the remainder of a four-year term that expires on November 24, 2013.

Environmental Control Board

Meets at 40 Rector Street, OATH Lecture Room, 14th Floor, New York, NY 10006 at 9:15 A.M., once a month at the call of the Chairman.

Board of Health

Meets in Room 330, 125 Worth Street, Manhattan, New York 10013, at 10:00 A.M., at the call of the Chairman.

Health Insurance Board

Meets in Room 530, Municipal Building, Manhattan, New York 10007, at call of the Chairman.

Board of Higher Education

Meets at 535 East 80th Street, Manhattan, New York 10021, at 5:30 P.M., on fourth Monday in January, February, March, April, June, September, October, November and December. Annual meeting held on fourth Monday in May.

Citywide Administrative Services

Division Of Citywide Personnel Services will hold hearings as needed in Room 2203, 2 Washington Street, New York, N.Y. 10004

Commission on Human Rights

Meets on 10th floor in the Commission's Central Office, 40 Rector Street, New York, New York 10006, on the fourth Wednesday of each month, at 8:00 A.M.

In Rem Foreclosure Release Board

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, Monthly on Tuesdays, commencing 10:00 A.M., and other days, times and location as warranted.

Franchise And Concession Review Committee

Meets in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Main Floor, Manhattan, Monthly on Wednesdays, commencing 2:30 P.M., and other days, times and location as warranted.

For additional information, please visit NYCHA's Website or contact (212) 306-6088.

Parole Commission Meets at its office, 100 Centre Street, Manhattan, New York 10013, on Thursday, at 10:30 A.M.

Board of Revision of Awards

Meets in Room 603, Municipal Building, Manhattan, New York 10007, at the call of the Chairman.

Board of Standards and Appeals

Meets at 40 Rector Street, 6th Floor, Hearing Room "E" on Tuesdays at 10:00 A.M. Review Sessions begin at 9:30 A.M. and are customarily held on Mondays preceding a Tuesday public hearing in the BSA conference room on the 9th Floor of 40 Rector Street. For changes in the schedule, or additonal information, please call the Application Desk at (212) 513-4670 or consult the bulletin board at the Board's Offices, at 40 Rector Street, 9th Floor.

Tax Commission Meets in Room 936, Municipal Building, Manhattan, New York 10007, each month at the call of the President.

QUEENS BOROUGH PRESIDENT

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing will be held by the Borough President of Queens, Helen Marshall, on **Thursday, March 1, 2012** at 10:30 A.M., in the Borough Presidents Conference Room located at 120-55 Queens Boulevard, Kew Gardens, New York 11424, on the following

Designation

•

Preconsidered-M, Bishop Mitchell G. Taylor, a candidate for re-designation by the Council to the Civilian Complaint Review Board, pursuant to § 440(b)(1) of the New York City Charter. If Bishop Taylor, a resident of Queens, is re-designated by the Council and subsequently re-appointed by the Mayor, he will be eligible to serve for the remainder of a three-year term that expires on July 4, 2014.

AND SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS MAY BE NECESSARY

A Calendar of speakers will be established in advance. Persons interested in being heard should write to the Honorable Christine C. Quinn, Speaker of the City Council, City Hall, New York, New York 10007, setting forth their name, representation and viewpoints.

Michael M. McSweeney City Clerk, Clerk of the Council

f24-29

CITY UNIVERSITY

PUBLIC HEARINGS

The Annual Board of Trustees, Staten Island Borough Hearing will take place on Monday, March 19, 2012, 5:00 P.M. at the College of Staten Island, 2800 Victory Boulevard, Center for the Arts - Recital Hall, Staten Island, NY 10314.

• f27

<u>(f)</u>

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT RESOLUTIONS Have been adopted by the City Planning Commission Scheduling public hearings on the following matters to be held at Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street New York, New York, on Wednesday, February 29, 2012 at 10:00 A.M.

BOROUGH OF QUEENS No. 1

119-03 SPRINGFIELD BOULEVARD

C 090466 ZMQ **CD 13 IN THE MATTER OF** an application submitted by ADC Builders & Developers pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter, for an amendment of the Zoning Map, Section No. 19a, by establishing within an existing R2A District a C1-3 District bounded by 119th Avenue, Francis Lewis Boulevard, 217th Street, a line perpendicular to the southeasterly street line of Springfield Boulevard distant 140 feet southwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southeasterly line of Springfield Boulevard and the southwesterly street line of 119th Avenue, and Springfield Boulevard, as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated October 31, 2011.

No. 2

FDNY TECHNICAL SERVICES HEADQUARTERS **CD 2** C 120113 PCQ

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Fire Department and the Department of Citywide Administrative Services, pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter, for the site selection and acquisition of property located at 34-02 Queens Boulevard (Block 246, part of Lot 1) for use as a warehouse and offices.

No. 3 QUEENS PLAZA SIGN REGULATIONS CDs 1 & 2 N 110223 ZRQ

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the JetBlue Airways Corporation pursuant to Section 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for an amendment of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, relating to Article XI, Chapter 7 to modify sign regulations within the Queens Plaza Subdistrict of the Special Long Island City Mixed Use District.

Matter <u>Underlined</u> is new, to be added; Matter in Strikeout is old, to be deleted; Matter within # # is defined in Section 12-10; * * * indicate where unchanged text appears in the Zoning Resolution

Article XI - Special Purpose Districts Chapter 7 Special Long Island Mixed Use District

117-51**Queens Plaza Subdistrict Special Use Regulations**

The special #use# provisions of Sections 123-20 through 123-50, inclusive, of the #Special Mixed Use District# shall apply in the Queens Plaza Subdistrict except where modified by the provisions of this Section and shall supplement or supersede the provisions of the designated #Residence# or M1 District, as applicable.

* * *

117-514 Special Sign Regulations

Within the Queens Plaza Subdistrict, the #sign# regulations of Section 123-40 (SIGN REGULATIONS) shall apply, except that such #sign# regulations may be modified to permit a #sign# on the rooftop of a #non-residential building#, provided that the height of such rooftop is between 70 feet and 150 feet, as measured from #curb level#, and further provided that:

THE CITY RECORD

32-644 (Illuminated or flashing signs in C4, C5-4, C6 or C7 Districts); and

any illumination from rooftop #signs# located within 100 feet of any #building# containing #residences#, where such #residences# legally existed at the time of the application for a permit for such #sign#, shall not project into or reflect onto any #residential# portion of such #building#.

> * * * CITYWIDE ZONE GREEN TEXT AMENDMENT No. 4

Citywide N 120132 ZRY IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of City Planning pursuant to Section 201 of the New York City Charter, for an amendment of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, to remove barriers to construction of green building features in the City of New York by modification of various Sections of the Zoning Resolution.

Matter in underline is new, to be added; Matter in strikeout is to be deleted; Matter with # # is defined in Section 12-10; * * indicates where unchanged text appears in the Zoning Resolution

Article I **General Provisions**

*

*

11-13

Public Parks

District designations indicated on #zoning maps# do not apply to #public parks#, except as set forth in Section 105-91 (Special District Designation on Public Parks). In the event that a #public park# or portion thereof is sold, transferred, exchanged, or in any other manner relinquished from the control of the Commissioner of Parks and Recreation, no building permit shall be issued, nor shall any #use# be permitted on such former #public park# or portion thereof, until a zoning amendment designating a zoning district therefore has been adopted by the City Planning Commission and has become effective after submission to the City Council in accordance with the provisions of Section 75-00 71-10 (PROCEDURE FOR AMENDMENTS).

* * * Chapter 2

Construction of Language and Definitions

12-10 Definitions

Accessory use, or accessory (8/27/98)

* * *

- An #accessory use# includes:
- (19)An ambulance outpost operated by or under contract with a government agency or a public benefit corporation and located either on the same #zoning lot# as, or on a #zoning lot# adjacent to, a #zoning lot# occupied by a fire or police station-;
- <u>(20)</u> Electric vehicle charging in connection with parking facilities;
- (21)Solar energy systems.

Floor area (2/2/11)

(ii)

(12)

"Floor area" is the sum of the gross areas of the several floors of a #building# or #buildings#, measured from the exterior faces of exterior walls or from the center lines of walls separating two #buildings#. In particular, #floor area# includes: * * *

However, the #floor area# of a #building# shall not include:

- * * * exterior wall thickness, up to eight inches:
- Where such wall thickness is added to the (i) exterior face of a #building# wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added

prescribed requirements of the NYCECC. For the purposes of calculating the area-weighted average U-factor, the amount of fenestration shall equal the amount of fenestration provided in such exterior walls, or an amount equal to 40 percent of the area of such exterior walls, whichever is less.

 $\underline{For \ the \ purposes \ of \ calculating \ compliance}$ with this paragraph (ii), the term "abovegrade" shall only include those portions of walls located above the grade adjoining such wall. Compliance with this paragraph (ii) shall be demonstrated to the Department of Buildings at the time of issuance of the building permit for such exterior walls.

<u>(13)</u> floor space in a rooftop greenhouse permitted pursuant to Section 75-01 (Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses).

* *

23 - 12**Permitted Obstructions in Open Space**

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

In the districts indicated, the following obstructions shall be permitted in any #open space# required on a #zoning lot#:

- Air conditioning condensation units, #accessory#, <u>(a)</u> for #single-# or #two-family residences#, provided that such units, if located between a #street wall#, or prolongation thereof, and a #street line#, are within 18 inches of the #street wall#, fully screened from the #street# by vegetation;
- <u>(b)</u> Awnings and other sun control devices. However, when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such devices:
 - <u>(1)</u> shall be limited to a maximum projection into such #open space# of 2 feet, 6 inches; and
 - <u>(2)</u> shall have solid surfaces that, in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project;
- Balconies, unenclosed, subject to the provisions of (ac)Section 23-13;
- $(\underline{b}\underline{d})$ Breezeways;
- $(\underline{e}\underline{e})$ Driveways, private streets, open #accessory# offstreet parking spaces, unenclosed #accessory# bicycle parking spaces or open #accessory# offstreet loading berths, provided that the total area occupied by all these items does not exceed the percentages set forth in Section 25-64 (Restrictions on Use of Open Space for Parking);

 $(\mathbf{d}\mathbf{f})$ Eaves, gutters or downspouts, projecting into such #open space# not more than 16 inches or 20 percent of the width of such #open space#, whichever is the lesser distance;

- Exterior wall thickness, where such wall thickness <u>(g)</u> is added to the exterior face of a #building# wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch, and is limited to one inch of thickness for every foot of existing #open space# width, up to a maximum thickness of eight inches.
- Parking spaces, off-street, enclosed, #accessory#, $(\underline{e}\underline{h})$ not to exceed one space per #dwelling unit#, when #accessory# to a #single-family#, #two-family# or three-#family residence#, provided that the total area occupied by a #building# used for such purposes does not exceed 20 percent of the total required #open space# on the #zoning lot. However, two such spaces for a #single-family residence# may be permitted in #lower density growth management areas# and in R1-2A Districts:

frontage on Queens Plaza South, Queens Boulevard, Queens Plaza East or Queens Plaza North;

- <u>(b)</u> there shall be no more than one rooftop #sign# on a #zoning lot#;
- there shall be no more than one #sign# per <u>(c)</u> establishment on any #sign# structure;
- <u>(d)</u> such rooftop #sign# shall be neither a #flashing sign# nor an #advertising sign#;
- rooftop #signs# shall be affixed to an open frame <u>(e)</u> $\underline{structure\ with\ maximum\ dimensions\ that\ shall\ not}$ exceed 45 feet in height, as measured from the surface of the roof to its uppermost point, and 150 feet in width, as measured along its widest dimension;
- <u>(f)</u> all writing, pictorial representations, emblems, flags, symbols or any other figure or character comprising the design of such rooftop #sign# shall be separate elements, individually cut and separately affixed to the open frame structure. No perimeter or background surfaces shall be applied or affixed to the open frame structure in addition to such separate elements. No portion of such separate elements shall extend beyond the maximum dimensions allowed for an open frame structure. The area of such separate elements of a rooftop #sign# shall not count towards the maximum #surface area# of a #sign# permitted in Section

wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch; or

- Where such wall thickness is within an exterior wall constructed after (date of adoption), equal to the amount that such wall is greater than eight inches in thickness provided the above-grade exterior walls of the #building# envelope are more energy efficient than required by the New York City Energy Conservation Code (NYCECC) as determined below:
 - The area-weighted average U-(1)factor of all opaque above-grade wall assemblies shall be no greater than 80 percent of the area-weighted average U-factor determined by using the prescribed requirements of the NYCECC, and
 - (2)The area-weighted average Ufactor of all above-grade exterior wall assemblies, including vertical fenestrations, shall be no more than 90 percent of the area-weighted average U-factor determined by using the

Solar energy systems:

<u>(2)</u>

<u>(i)</u>

(**f**j)

(gk)

- on the roof of an #accessory building#, (1)limited to 18 inches in height as measured perpendicular to the roof surface; or
 - on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects;
- Swimming pools, #accessory#, above-grade structures limited to a height not exceeding eight feet above the level of the #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#;
- Terraces, unenclosed, fire escapes, planting boxes or air conditioning units, provided that no such items project more than six feet into or over such #open space#.

* *

23-44

Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents

In all #Residence Districts#, the following obstructions shall be permitted within a required #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:

- (a) In any #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:
 - (1) Air conditioning condensation units, #accessory#, for #single-# or #two-family residences#, provided that such units, if located between a #street wall#, or

prolongation thereof, and a #street line#, are within 18 inches of the #street wall#, fully screened from the #street# by vegetation;

- (2) Arbors or trellises;
- (3) Awnings or canopies; and other sun control devices, provided that when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such awnings and other sun control devices:
 - (i) shall be limited to a maximum projection into a required #yard# or #rear yard equivalent# of 2 feet, 6 inches; and
 - (ii) shall have solid surfaces that, in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project;
- (<u>4</u>) Balconies, unenclosed, of a #building# containing #residences# subject to the applicable provisions of Section 23-13. Such balconies are not permitted in required #side yards#;
- (5) <u>Canopies</u>
- (6) Chimneys, projecting not more than three feet into, and not exceeding two percent of the area of, the required #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#;
- (7) Eaves, gutters or downspouts projecting into such #yard# or #rear yard equivalent# not more than 16 inches or 20 percent of the width of such #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#, whichever is the lesser distance;
- (8) Exterior wall thickness, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a "building" wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch, and is limited to one inch of thickness for every foot of existing "yard" width, up to a maximum thickness of eight inches. When an open area is provided along a common "lot line", then such exterior wall thickness is limited to one inch for every foot of existing open area on the "zoning lot".

Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, such #enlarged# portion may similarly encroach upon required #yards# in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing #building#, provided such #enlargement# contains less #floor area# than the existing #building#, and there is no encroachment of #floor area# into a required #yard#.

- (9) Fences, not exceeding four feet in height above adjoining grade in any #front yard#, except that for #corner lots#, a fence may be up to six feet in height within that portion of one #front yard# that is between a #side lot line# and the prolongation of the side wall of the #residence# facing such #side lot line#;
- (10) Fire escapes, projecting into a #front yard#, only in such cases where the fire

#front yard#, that are #accessory# to a
#building# containing #residences#,
provided that:

- (1) in R1, R2, R3A, R3X, R3-1, R4A, R4-1 and R5A Districts, except in #lower density growth management areas#, such spaces meet all the requirements of paragraph (a) of Section 25-621 (Location of parking spaces in certain districts);
- (2ii) in R3-2 Districts, R4 Districts other than R4A, R4-1 and R4B Districts, and R5 Districts other than R5A, R5B and R5D Districts, such spaces meet all the requirements of paragraph (b) of Section 25-621;
- (8<u>iii</u>) in #lower density growth management areas#, such spaces are non-required and are located in a driveway that accesses parking spaces that are located behind the #street wall# of the #building# or prolongation thereof.

However, no parking spaces of any kind shall be permitted in any #front yard# in an R4B, R5B or R5D District. Furthermore, no parking spaces of any kind shall be permitted in any #front yard# on a #zoning lot# containing an #attached# or #semi-detached building# in an R1, R2, R3A, R3X, R4A or R5A District, or in any #front yard# on a #zoning lot# containing an #attached building# in an R3-1 or R4-1 District.

- (<u>16</u>) Ramps for persons with physical disabilities;
- (17) Solar energy systems on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects;
- (18) Steps, provided that such steps access only the lowest #story# or #cellar# of a #building# fronting on a #street#, which may include a #story# located directly above a #basement#;
- (19) Swimming pools, #accessory#, abovegrade structures limited to a height not exceeding eight feet above the level of the #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#.
 #Accessory# swimming pools are not permitted obstructions in any #front yard#;
- (20) Terraces or porches, open;
- (21) Walls, not exceeding eight feet in height above adjoining grade and not roofed or part of a #building#, and not exceeding four feet in height in any #front yard#, except that for #corner lots#, a wall may be up to six feet in height within that portion of one #front yard# that is between a #side lot line# and the prolongation of the side wall of the #residence# facing such #side lot line#.
- (b) In any #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#: <u>Air conditioning condensation units</u>, #accessory#, for #single # or #two family residences#, provided that such units are located not less than eight feet from any #lot line#;
 - (1) Balconies, unenclosed, subject to the provisions of Section 23-13;
 - (2) Breezeways;

<u>(3)</u>

surface shall be permitted upon the roof of such #accessory building# within the #rear yard#;

(2<u>ii</u>) if #accessory# to any other kind of #building# containing #residences#, the height of a #building#, or portion thereof, containing such parking spaces within the #rear yard#, shall not exceed ten feet above adjoining grade, including the apex of a pitched roof in R3, R4 or R5 Districts, or fourteen feet above #curb level# or #base plane#, as applicable, in R6, R7,

> R8, R9 or R10 Districts. In addition, decks, parapet walls, roof thickness, skylights, vegetated roofs, and weirs, as set forth in Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions), and solar energy systems, limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface, shall be permitted upon the roof of such #accessory building# within the #rear yard#;

- (3iii) enclosed #accessory# parking spaces for bicycles shall be #accessory# to a #residence# other than a #single-# or #twofamily residence#, attached to a #building#, and the area dedicated to such spaces shall not exceed the area of bicycle parking spaces permitted to be excluded from #floor area# pursuant to Section 25-85 (Floor Area Exemption).
- (6) Recreational or drying yard equipment;
- (7) Sheds, tool rooms or other similar #accessory buildings or other structures# for domestic or agricultural storage, with a height not exceeding 10 feet above the level of the #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#;
- (8) Water-conserving devices required in connection with air conditioning or refrigeration systems in #buildings# existing prior to May 20, 1966, if located not less than eight feet from any #lot line#.

However, no portion of a #rear yard equivalent# which is also a required #front yard# or required #side yard# may contain any obstructions not permitted in such #front yard# or #side yard#.

23-461

Side yards for single- or two-family residences

- * * * R3-1 R3-2 R4 R4-1 R4B R5 * * * (c) Additional regulations
 - * * *
- (3) Permitted obstructions in open areas between #buildings#

Only <u>air conditioning condensation units</u>, chimneys, <u>downspouts</u>, eaves, <u>exterior wall thickness</u>, gutters, <u>downspouts</u>, <u>open #accessory# off-street parking spaces</u>, <u>steps</u>, <u>and</u> ramps for access by people with disabilities, <u>and</u> <u>steps as set forth in paragraph (a) of Section 23-44 shall be</u> permitted obstructions in open areas required pursuant to paragraphs (c)(1) and (c)(2) <u>of this Section</u>, <u>and provided</u> such obstructions may not reduce the minimum width of the open area by more than three feet. <u>Open #accessory# off street</u> <u>parking spaces shall be permitted in such open areas</u>.

| | | | * | * | * | ¢ | | | |
|-------------|---|------|---|---|---|---|---|--|--|
| 23-462 | | | | | | | | | |
| C' 1 | c | | | | | • | • | | |

escape is required for the #conversion# of a #building# in existence before December 15, 1961;

(11) Flagpoles;

(12)

- Overhanging portions of a #building# in R4 and R5 Districts, except R4A, R4-1, R4B, R5A, R5B or R5D Districts, which are above the first #story# including the #basement# and which project not more than three feet into the required 18 foot #front yard#. In no case shall the lowest level of the projected portion be less than seven feet above the level of the #front yard# at the face of the #building#. Supports for the projected portion of any #building# are permitted obstructions within the required #front yard#, provided that the total area occupied by such
- (13) supports does not exceed 15 percent of the area underneath the projected portion. No support may extend beyond the three-foot projection;
- (14) Parking spaces for automobiles or bicycles, off-street, open, #accessory#, within a #side# or #rear yard#;
- (15) Parking spaces, off-street, open, within a

Fire escapes;

- (<u>4</u>) Greenhouses, non-commercial, #accessory#, limited to one #story# or 14 feet in height above adjoining grade, whichever is less, and limited to an area not exceeding 25 percent of a required #rear yard#;
- (5) Parking spaces, off-street, #accessory#, for automobiles or bicycles, provided that:
 - if #accessory# to a #single-# or (1i)#two-family residence#, the height of a #building# containing such parking spaces shall not exceed one #story# ten feet in height above the adjoining grade and such #building# shall be #detached# from such #residence#., and fFurthermore, if located in an R1 District, such #building# may not be nearer than five feet to a #rear lot line# or #side lot line#. In R2A Districts, detached garages shall be included in #lot coverage#. In addition, solar energy systems, limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof

Side yards for all other buildings containing residences

R4B R5B R5D

In the districts indicated, no #side yards# are required; however, where a #building# containing #residences# on an adjacent #zoning lot# has a #side yard#, an open area with a minimum width of eight feet and parallel to the #side lot line# is required along the common #side lot line# between such #buildings#. <u>Obstructions permitted pursuant</u> to paragraph (c)(3) of Section 23-461 (Side yards for single- or two-family residences), shall be permitted in such open areas.

*

R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

(c)

(b)

In the districts indicated, no #side yards# are required. However, if any open area extending along a #side lot line# is provided at any level, it shall measure at least eight feet wide for the entire length of the #side lot line#. <u>Obstructions permitted</u> <u>pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 23-44 (Permitted</u> <u>Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard</u> <u>Equivalents), shall be permitted in such open areas.</u>

* * *

23-62

Permitted Obstructions

In all #Residence Districts#, except as provided in Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts), the obstructions listed in paragraphs (a) through (\underline{hs}) in this Section shall be permitted to penetrate a maximum height limit or #sky exposure plane# set forth in Sections 23-63 (Maximum Height of Walls and Required Setbacks), 23-64 (Alternate Front Setbacks) or 23-69 (Special Height Limitations):

- (a) Awnings and other sun control devices, provided that when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such awnings and other sun control devices:
 - shall be limited to a maximum projection <u>(1)</u> into a required setback of 2 feet, 6 inches, except when located on the first #story# above a setback;
 - <u>(2)</u> shall have solid surfaces that, in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project; and
 - may rise above the permitted #building# <u>(3)</u> height, up to the height of a parapet wall or guardrail permitted in accordance with Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions).

When located on the first #story# above a setback, awnings and other sun control devices shall be limited to a projection of 50 percent of the depth of the required setback, and shall be limited, in total, to 50 percent of the width of the #building# wall from which they project.

- Balconies, unenclosed subject to the provisions of $(\underline{\mathbf{a}}\underline{b})$ Section 23-13;
- #Building# columns, having an aggregate width (**b**<u>c</u>) equal to not more than 20 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building#, to a depth not exceeding 12 inches, in an #initial setback distance#, optional front open area, or any other required setback distance or open area set forth in Sections 23-63, 23-64, or 23-65 (Tower Regulations);
- Chimneys or flues, with a total width not exceeding (**e**<u>d</u>) 10 percent of the # aggregate width of street walls #of a #building# at any level;
- Decks, and other surfaces for recreational activities, <u>(e)</u> not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- $(\mathbf{d}\mathbf{f})$ Dormers having an #aggregate width of street walls# equal to not more than 50 percent of the width of the #street wall# of a #detached# or #semidetached single-# or #two-family residence#;
- Elevators or stair bulkhead, roof water tanks (eg)(including enclosures), each having an #aggregate width of street walls# equal to not more than 30 feet. However, the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to four times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage For the purposes of this paragraph, (d), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#. Portions of elevator shafts and associated vestibules that provide access to a roof pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section shall not be included in the limitations dth or surface area of this paragraph, (d); Elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts; and vestibules not larger than 60 square feet in area providing access to a roof), roof water tanks and #accessory# mechanical equipment (including enclosures), other than solar or wind energy systems, provided that:
 - (1)such obstructions shall be located not less than 10 feet from the #street wall# of a #building#, except that such obstructions <u>need not be set back more than 25 feet</u> from a #narrow street line# or more than 20 feet from a #wide street line#. However, such restrictions on location shall not apply to elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts or vestibules), provided the #aggregate width of street walls# of such bulkheads within 10 feet of <u>a #street wall#, facing each #street#</u> frontage, times their average height, in feet, does not exceed an area equal to four feet times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage.

#building# facing such frontage; or

<u>(b)</u> the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and where the maximum permitted height of a #building# is less than 120 feet, are limited to a maximum height of 25 feet, and where the maximum permitted height of a <u>#building# is 120 feet or</u> greater, are limited to a maximum height of 40 feet.

For the purposes of this paragraph, (g), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#.

- (f) Elevator shafts, portions of which provide an elevator stop with access to a roof, and associated vestibules providing access to such roof, provided that such vestibules include no more than 60 square feet of #floor area#;
- <u>(h)</u> Exterior wall thickness, up to eight inches, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a #building# wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch. Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, such <u>#enlarged# portion may similarly penetrate a</u> maximum height limit in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing #building#, provided such #enlargement# contains less #floor area# than the existing #building#, and there is no penetration of #floor area# above a maximum height limit.
- Flagpoles or aerials; (gi)
- Parapet walls, not more than four feet $\frac{\text{high } in}{2}$ (hj) height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. A guardrail with a surface at least 70 percent open or with an opacity no more than 30 percent (as viewed in elevation), shall be permitted above a parapet wall, provided such guardrail is not more than 3 feet, 6 inches above the accessible level of a roof;
- <u>(k)</u> Roof thickness, up to eight inches, to accommodate $\underline{ the \ addition \ of \ insulation, \ for \ \#buildings \# \ or}$ portions of #buildings# constructed prior to (date of adoption). For a #building# that has added roof thickness pursuant to this paragraph, an #enlargement# may align with the finished roof surface of such #building#, provided the #enlarged# portion does not exceed the maximum height limit height by more than eight inches; <u>(l)</u>
 - Skylights, clerestories or other day lighting devices, not more than four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. Such devices shall be limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 10 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and be located at least eight feet from the #street wall# edge. However, such devices shall not be permitted obstructions above a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
- <u>(m)</u> Solar energy systems:
 - <u>(1)</u> on the roof of a #building#, up to four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
 - on the roof of a #building#, greater than <u>(2)</u> four feet in height, provided that all such portions above four feet are set back at least six feet from a #street wall#, limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 25 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and do not exceed:

| Weirs, check dams and other equipment fo | r |
|--|----------------|
| stormwater management, not more than 3 | <u>feet, 6</u> |
| inches in height, as measured from the ma | <u>ximum</u> |
| height limit, or the finished level of the roo | of as it |
| existed on (date of adoption), whichever is | higher; |

- Wind energy systems on #buildings# with a height of 100 feet or greater, provided:
 - (1)the highest point of the wind turbine assembly does not exceed 55 feet;
 - <u>(2)</u> no portion of the wind turbine assembly is closer than 10 feet to any #lot line#; and
 - the diameter of the swept area of the <u>(3)</u> rotor does not exceed 15 feet;
- <u>(q)</u> Window washing equipment mounted on a roof;
- $(\underline{i}\underline{r})$ Wire, chain link or other transparent fences.

23-621

<u>(o)</u>

<u>(p)</u>

Permitted obstructions in certain districts

R2A R3 R4 R4A R4-1 R5A

In the districts indicated, permitted obstructions (a) are limited to chimneys, exterior wall thickness, flag poles or aerials, parapet walls, roof thickness, skylights, solar energy systems and vegetated roofs pursuant to those listed in paragraphs (c), (f) and (h) of Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions).

R2X

(b) In the district indicated, permitted obstructions are limited to chimneys, exterior wall thickness, flag poles or aerials, parapet walls, roof thickness, skylights, solar energy systems and vegetated roofs pursuant to those listed in paragraphs (c), (f) and (h) of Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions). Dormers may be considered permitted obstructions if: *

R6A R6B R7A R7B R7D R7X R8A R8B R8X R9A R9D R9X **R10A R10X**

- In the districts indicated, and for #Quality Housing (c) buildings# in other R6, R7, R8, R9 and R10 Districts, the permitted obstructions set forth in Section 23-62 shall apply to any #building or other structure#, except that In addition, a dormer may be allowed as a permitted obstruction within a required front setback distance above a maximum base height, the following rules shall apply:-
 - $\underline{ Such \ d} \underline{ D} ormer \underline{ s may } \underline{ shall \ be \ allowed \ as \ a }$ <u>(1)</u> permitted obstruction, exceed a maximum base height specified for such district provided that on any #street# frontage, the aggregate width of all dormers at the maximum base height does not exceed 60 percent of the width of the #street wall# of the highest #story# entirely below the maximum base height. For each foot of height above the maximum base height, the aggregate width of all dormers shall be decreased by one percent of the #street wall# width of the highest #story# entirely below the maximum base height.
 - <u>(2)</u> Solar energy systems on a roof shall be limited to four feet or less in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. However, on a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees, such systems shall be limited to 18 inches in height as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.
 - Wind energy systems shall not be allowed <u>(3)</u> as permitted obstructions.
 - <u>(4)</u> Window washing equipment shall not be allowed as permitted obstructions.
- (\mathbf{d}) In R5D Districts, permitted obstructions shall be as set forth in Section 23-62, except that elevator or

- (2) $\underline{all\ mechanical\ equipment\ shall\ be}$ screened on all sides.
- (3) such obstructions and screening are contained within a volume that complies with one of the following:
 - (a) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, shall not exceed an area equal to eight feet times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the

- in R1 through R5 Districts, a <u>(i)</u> height of six feet;
- in R6 through R10 Districts, a <u>(ii)</u> height of 15 feet; and
- <u>(iii)</u> when located on a bulkhead or other obstruction pursuant to paragraph (g) of this Section, a height of six feet;
- <u>(3)</u> on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

However, any installation on a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees shall be limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.

Vegetated roofs, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in <u>(n)</u> height excluding vegetation, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. On roofs with slopes greater than 20 degrees, vegetated roofs shall be limited to a height of 12 inches measured perpendicular to such roof surface;

stair bulkheads. roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclo may exceed a maximum height limit provided that the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage. For the purpe this paragraph, (d), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#. * *

23-66

R5D

Required Side and Rear Setbacks

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

In all districts, as indicated, side and rear setbacks shall be provided as specified in this Section. Unenclosed balconies, subject to the provisions of Section 23-13 (Balconies), are permitted to project into or over any open areas required by the provisions of this Section. In addition, awnings and other sun control devices, decks, exterior wall thickness, parapet walls, roof thickness, solar energy systems up to four feet high, vegetated roofs and weirs are permitted as set forth in Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions).

23-711 Standard minimum distance between buildings

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

- * * *
- (e) portions of #buildings# above 125 feet that exceed, in aggregate, a #lot coverage# of 40 percent, shall be spaced at least 80 feet apart; and
- (f) in R1, R2, R3, R4A and R4-1 Districts within #lower density growth management areas#, the provisions of this paragraph, (f), shall apply to any #zoning lot# with two or more #buildings# where at least 75 percent of the <code>#floor</code> area<code>#</code> of one #building# is located beyond 50 feet of a #street line# and the #private road# provisions do not apply. For the purposes of this paragraph, any #building# containing #residences# with no #building# containing #residences# located between it and the #street line# so that lines drawn perpendicular to the #street line# do not intersect any other #building# containing #residences# shall be considered a "front building," and any #building# containing #residences# with at least 75 percent of its #floor area# located beyond the #rear wall line#, or prolongation thereof, of a "front building" shall be considered a "rear building." The minimum distances set forth in the table in this Section shall apply, except that a minimum distance of 45 feet shall be provided between any such front and rear #buildings#-; and
- (g) For #buildings# existing on (date of adoption), the minimum distances set forth in the table in this Section, and any non-complying distance greater than 8 feet, may be reduced by up to eight inches of exterior wall thickness from each #building# wall, provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch. A noncomplying distance of 8 feet or less shall be limited to a total reduction of one inch of wall thickness for each foot of such existing distance between buildings.

* * *

23-80

COURT REGULATIONS, MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN WINDOWS AND WALLS OR LOT LINES AND OPEN AREA REQUIREMENTS

* *

23-861 General provisions R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

In R3, R4 and R5 Districts, the minimum dimension between a #legally required window# and a #side lot line# shall be 15 feet. Such 15 foot dimension shall be measured in a horizontal plane perpendicular to the #side lot line# or vertical projection thereof. Furthermore, such area with a 15 foot dimension shall be open to the sky from ground level up for the entire length of the #side lot line#. Only air conditioning condensation units, chimneys, downspouts, eaves, exterior wall thickness, gutters, downspouts, open #accessory# offstreet parking spaces, steps, and ramps for access by the handicapped, and steps shall be permitted obstructions in such open area, subject to the conditions set forth in paragraph (a) of Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), and provided such obstructions may will not reduce the minimum width of the open area by more than three feet.

23-862

Minimum distance between legally required windows and lot lines on small corner lots in R9 or R10 Districts

R9 R10

In the districts indicated, on a #corner lot# less than 10,000 square feet in #lot area#, a #legally required window# may open on a #yard# bounded on one side by a #front lot line# and having a minimum width of 20 feet, provided that the provisions of Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents) shall not apply to such #yard#. <u>However</u>, <u>awnings and other sun control</u> <u>devices</u>, <u>exterior wall thickness and solar energy systems on</u> walls, as set forth in Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), shall be <u>permitted within such minimum distance</u>. wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch, and is limited to one inch of thickness for every foot of existing #court# width, up to a maximum thickness of eight inches. Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, such #enlarged# portion may similarly encroach upon required #courts# in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing #building#, provided such #enlargement# contains less #floor area# than the existing #building#, and there is no encroachment of #floor area# into a required #court#.

- (e) Fences;
- (f) Fire escapes in #outer courts#;

Fire escapes in #outer court recesses# not more than five feet in depth;

Fire escapes in #inner courts# where such fire escapes are required as a result of alterations in #buildings# existing before December 15, 1961;

Fire escapes in #outer court recesses# more than five feet in depth where such fire escapes are required as a result of alterations in #buildings# existing before December 15, 1961;

- (g) Flag poles;
- (h) Open terraces, porches, or steps;
- (i) Recreational or drying yard equipment-;
- (j) Solar energy systems on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects;

In addition, for #courts# at a level higher than the first #story#, decks, parapet walls, roof thickness, solar energy systems up to four feet high, vegetated roofs and weirs as set forth in Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions) shall be permitted. * * * *

23-891

In R1 through R5 Districts

$\mathbf{R1} \ \mathbf{R2} \ \mathbf{R3} \ \mathbf{R4} \ \mathbf{R5}$

In the districts indicated, except R4B and R5B Districts, the provisions of this Section shall apply to all #zoning lots# with two or more #buildings# or #building segments# containing #residences#. All such #buildings# or #building segments# shall provide open areas as fellows: in accordance with this Section. Only those obstructions set forth in Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents) shall be allowed, except that parking spaces, whether enclosed or unenclosed, and driveways, shall not be permitted within such open areas.

An open area shall be provided adjacent to the rear (a) wall of each such #building# or #building segment#. For the purposes of this Section, the "rear wall" shall be the wall opposite the wall of each #building# or #building segment# that faces a #street# or #private road#. The width of such open area shall be equal to the width of each #building# or #building segment#, and the depth of such open area shall be at least 30 feet when measured perpendicular to each rear wall. No such open areas shall serve more than one #building# or #building segment#. Only obstructions set forth in Section 23-44 shall be allowed, except that parking spaces, whether enclosed or unenclosed, and driveways shall not be permitted within such open areas.

24-33

Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents

* *

In all #Residence Districts#, the following obstructions shall be permitted when located within a required #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:

(a) In any #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:

equivalent#, whichever is the lesser distance;

Exterior wall thickness, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a "building" wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (Rvalue) of at least 1.5 per inch, and is limited to one inch of thickness for every foot of existing #yard# width, up to a maximum thickness of eight inches. When an open area is provided along a common #lot line#, then such exterior wall thickness is limited to one inch for every foot of existing open area on the #zoning lot#.

Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, such #enlarged# portion may similarly encroach upon required #yards# in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing #building#, provided such #enlargement# contains less #floor area# than the existing #building#, and there is no encroachment of #floor area# into a required #yard#.

(7) Fences;

<u>(6)</u>

- (8) Flagpoles;
- (9) Parking spaces for automobiles or bicycles, off-street, open, #accessory;
- (10) Solar energy systems, on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects;
- (<u>11</u>) Steps, and ramps for people with disabilities;
- (12) Terraces or porches, open;
- (13) Walls, not exceeding eight feet in height and not roofed or part of a #building#;
- In any #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:
- (1) Balconies, unenclosed, subject to the provisions of Section 24-165;
- (2) Breezeways;

(b)

- <u>(3)</u> Any #building# or portion of a #building# used for #community facility uses#, including #accessory# parking spaces for bicycles within such #building#, provided that the height of such #building# shall not exceed one #story#, nor in any event 23 feet above #curb level#, and further provided that the area within such #building# dedicated to #accessory# parking spaces for bicycles shall not exceed the area permitted to be excluded from #floor area#, pursuant to Section 25-85 (Floor Area Exemption). In addition, decks, parapet walls, roof thickness, skylights, vegetated roofs and weirs pursuant to Section 24-51(Permitted Obstructions), shall be permitted above such an #accessory building#, or portion thereof. However, the following shall not be permitted obstructions:
 - (<u>1</u>) in all <u>#rResidence dD</u>istricts#, any portion of a <u>#building</u># containing rooms used for living or sleeping purposes, other than a room in a hospital used for the care or treatment of patients;
 - (2<u>ii</u>) in R1, R2, R3A, R3X, R3-1, R4A, R4B or R4-1 Districts, any portion of a #building# used for any #community facility use#:

23-87 Permitted Obstructions in Courts

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

In all districts, as indicated, the following obstructions shall be permitted within the minimum area and dimensions needed to satisfy the requirements for a #court#:

- (a) Arbors or trellises;
- (b) Awnings and other sun control devices. However, when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such devices:
 - (1) shall be limited to a maximum projection into such court of 2 feet, 6 inches; and
 - (2) shall have solid surfaces that in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project;
- (c) Eaves, gutters, downspouts, window sills, or similar projections extending into such #court# not more than four inches;
- (d) Exterior wall thickness, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a #building# wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added

- (1) Arbors or trellises;
- (2) Awnings or canopies; and other sun control devices, provided that when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such awnings and other sun control devices:
 - (i) shall be limited to a maximum projection of two feet, six inches into such required #yard#; and
 - (ii) shall have solid surfaces that in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project;
- (3) Canopies
- (4) Chimneys, projecting not more than three feet into, and not exceeding two percent of the area of, the required #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#;
- (5) Eaves, gutters or downspouts, projecting into such #yard# or #rear yard equivalent# not more than 16 inches or 20 percent of the width of such #yard# or #rear yard

- 0 0 0 ,
- (3iii) in all ##Residence dDistricts#, not listed in paragraph (b)(2) of this Section, beyond one hundred feet of a #wide street#, any portion of a #building# used for a #community facility use# other than a #school#, house of worship, college or university, or hospital and related facilities;
- Fire escapes;

<u>(4)</u>

<u>(5)</u>

(7)

- Greenhouses, #accessory#, non-commercial, limited to one #story# or 14 feet in height above natural grade level, whichever is less, and limited to an area not exceeding 25 percent of a required #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent# on a #zoning lot#;
- (6) Parking spaces, off-street, #accessory# to a #community facility use#, provided that the height of an #accessory building#, or portion of a #building# used for
 - such purposes, shall not exceed 14 feet above #curb level#. However, such #accessory building# or portion of a #building# shall not be a permitted obstruction in R1, R2, R3A, R3X, R3-1, R4A, R4B or R4-1 Districts;

- (8) Recreation or drying yard equipment;
- (9) Sheds, tool rooms or other similar #accessory buildings or other structures# for domestic or agricultural storage, with a height not exceeding 10 feet above the level of the #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#;
- (9) Solar energy systems on the roof of a #building# permitted as an obstruction to such #yard#, up to four feet in height as measured perpendicular to the roof surface when located above a permitted #community facility use# or attached parking structure; however, limited to 18 inches in height as measured perpendicular to the roof surface when located above a shed or detached parking structure, or on any roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
- (10) Water-conserving devices required in connection with air conditioning or refrigeration systems in #buildings# existing prior to May 20, 1966, if located not less than eight feet from any #lot line#.

However, no portion of a #rear yard equivalent# which is also a required #front yard# or required #side yard# may contain any obstructions not permitted in such #front yard# or #side yard#.

24-35 Minimum Required Side Yards

R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

(b) In the districts indicated, no #side yards# are required. However, if any open area extending along a #side lot line# is provided at any level, it shall be at least eight feet wide. <u>Permitted</u> obstructions pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 24-33 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), shall be permitted in such open areas.

24-51

Permitted Obstructions In all #Residence Districts#, the following obstructions shall be permitted and may thus penetrate a maximum height

be permitted and may thus penetrate a maximum height limit or #sky exposure plane# set forth in Sections 24-52 (Maximum Height of Walls and Required Setbacks), 24-53 (Alternate Front Setbacks) or 24-591 (Limited Height Districts):

- (a) Awnings and other sun control devices, provided that when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such awnings and other sun control devices:
 - (1) shall be limited to a maximum projection into a required setback of 2 feet, 6 inches, except when located on the first #story# above a setback;
 - (2) shall have solid surfaces that, in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project; and
 - (3) may rise above the permitted #building# height, up to the height of a parapet wall or guardrail permitted in accordance with Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions).

When located on the first #story# above a setback, awnings and other sun control devices shall be limited to a projection of 50 percent of the depth of the required setback, and shall be limited, in total, to 50 percent of the width of the #building# wall from which they project.

- (ab) Balconies, unenclosed, subject to the provisions of Section 24-165;
- (bc) #Building# columns, having an aggregate width equal to not more than 20 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building#, to a depth not exceeding 12 inches, in an #initial setback distance#, optional front open area, or any other required setback distance or open area set forth in Sections 24-52, 24-53 or 24-54 (Tower Regulations);

vestibules not larger than 60 square feet in area providing access to a roof), roof water tanks and #accessory# mechanical equipment (including enclosures), other than solar or wind energy systems, provided that:

- (1) such obstructions shall be located not less than 10 feet from the #street wall# of a #building#, except that such obstructions need not be set back more than 25 feet from a #narrow street line# or more than 20 feet from a #wide street line#. However, such restrictions on location shall not apply to elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts or vestibules), provided the #aggregate width of street walls# of such bulkheads within 10 feet of <u>a #street wall#, facing each #street#</u> frontage, times their average height, in feet, does not exceed an area equal to four feet times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage.
- (2) <u>all mechanical equipment shall be</u> <u>screened on all sides.</u>
- (3) such obstructions and screening are contained within a volume that complies with one of the following:
 - (i) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, shall not exceed an area equal to eight feet times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
 - (ii) the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and where the maximum permitted height of a #building# is less than 120 feet, are limited to a maximum height of 25 feet, and where the maximum permitted height of a #building# is 120 feet or greater, are limited to a maximum height of 40 feet.

For the purposes of this paragraph, (f), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#.

- (g) Exterior wall thickness, up to eight inches, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a "building" wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch. Where "buildings" that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are "enlarged", such "enlarged" portion may similarly penetrate a maximum height limit in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing "building", provided such "enlargement" contains less "floor area" than the existing "building", and there is no penetration of "floor area" above a maximum height limit.
- $(\underline{e}\underline{h})$ Flagpoles or aerials;

<u>(k)</u>

(m)

- (fi) House of worship towers, ornamental, having no #floor area# in portion of tower penetrating such height limit or #sky exposure plane#;
- (gj) Parapet walls, not more than four feet high in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. A guardrail with a surface at least 70 percent open or with an opacity no more than 30 percent (as viewed in elevation), shall be permitted above a parapet wall, provided such guardrail is not more than 3 feet, 6 inches above the accessible level of a roof;

level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;

- (2) on the roof of a #building#, greater than four feet in height, provided that all such portions above four feet are set back at least six feet from a #street wall#, limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 25 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and do not exceed:
 - (i) in R1 through R5 Districts, a height of six feet;
 - (ii) in R6 through R10 Districts, a height of 15 feet; and
 - (iii) when located on a bulkhead or other obstruction pursuant to paragraph (f) of this Section, a height of six feet;
- (3) on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

However, any installation on a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees shall be limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.

(**h**<u>o</u>) Spires or belfries;

<u>(p)</u>

<u>(r)</u>

<u>(s)</u>

24-55

Vegetated roofs, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height excluding vegetation, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. On roofs with slopes greater than 20 degrees, vegetated roofs shall be limited to a height of 12 inches measured perpendicular to such roof surface;

- (q) Weirs, check dams and other equipment for stormwater management, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
 - Wind energy systems on #buildings# with a height of 100 feet or greater, provided:
 - (1) the highest point of the wind turbine assembly does not exceed 55 feet;
 - (2) no portion of the wind turbine assembly is closer than ten feet to any #lot line#; and
 - (3) the diameter of the swept area of the rotor does not exceed 15 feet;

* *

- Window washing equipment mounted on a roof;
- (it) Wire, chain link or other transparent fences.

*

Required Side and Rear Setbacks

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

In all districts, as indicated, side and rear setbacks shall be provided as specified in this Section. Unenclosed balconies, subject to the provisions of Section 24-165 (Balconies); and awnings and other sun control devices, decks, exterior wall thickness, parapet walls, roof thickness, solar energy systems up to four feet high, vegetated roofs and weirs as set forth in Section 24-51 (Permitted Obstructions), are permitted to project into or over any open areas required by the provisions of this Section.

24-65

Minimum Distance between Required Windows and Walls or Lot Lines

 ${\rm R1} \; {\rm R2} \; {\rm R3} \; {\rm R4} \; {\rm R5} \; {\rm R6} \; {\rm R7} \; {\rm R8} \; {\rm R9} \; {\rm R10}$

In all districts, as indicated, the minimum distance between required windows and walls or #lot lines# shall be as set forth in this Section, except that this Section shall not apply to required windows in #buildings# of three #stories# or less. For #buildings# existing on (date of adoption), the minimum distances set forth in this Section, and any non-complying distance greater than 8 feet, may be reduced by up to eight inches of exterior wall thickness from each #building# wall, provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch. A non-complying distance of 8 feet or less shall be limited to a total reduction of one inch of wall thickness for each foot of such existing distance between buildings.

- (ed) Chimneys or flues, with a total width not exceeding 10 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building# at any level;
- (e) Decks, and other surfaces for recreational activities, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (df) Elevators or stair bulkhead, roof water tanks or cooling towers (including enclosures), each having an #aggregate width of street walls# equal to not more than 30 feet. However, the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to four times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage. For the purposes of this paragraph, (c), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#;
 - Elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts; and

- Roof thickness, up to eight inches, to accommodate the addition of insulation, for #buildings# or portions of #buildings# constructed prior to (date of adoption). For a #building# that has added roof thickness pursuant to this paragraph, an #enlargement# may align with the finished roof surface of such #building#, provided the #enlarged# portion does not exceed the maximum height limit height by more than eight inches;
- (1) Rooftop greenhouses, permitted pursuant to Section 75-01 (Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses);
 - Skylights, clerestories or other day lighting devices, not more than four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. Such devices shall be limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 10 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and be located at least eight feet from the #street wall# edge. However, such devices shall not be permitted obstructions above a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
- (n) Solar energy systems:
 - (1) on the roof of a #building#, up to four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished

24-68 Permitted Obstruction in Courts

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10

In all districts, as indicated, the following shall not be considered obstructions when located within a #court#:

(a) Arbors or trellises;

(b)

- Awnings and other sun control devices. However, when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such devices:
 - (1) shall be limited to a maximum projection into such court of 2 feet, 6 inches; and
 - (2) <u>shall have solid surfaces that in</u>

<u>(c)</u>

<u>(d)</u>

<u>(e)</u>

<u>(f)</u>

<u>(g)</u>

<u>(h)</u>

<u>(i)</u>

<u>(j)</u>

25-62

26-42

Planting Strips

THE CITY RECORD

| | ~ | - |
|-----|---|---|
| - 4 | 2 | 7 |

#building#, provided such #enlargement# aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 pavement, there is structural soil or aggregate containing at percent of the area of the #building# wall least 25 percent pore space, or other kind of engineered contains less #floor area# than the (as viewed in elevation) from which they system that absorbs stormwater, as acceptable to the existing #building#, and there is no Department of Transportation. Any area improved with encroachment of #floor area# into a project; permeable pavers or pavement pursuant to this paragraph required #yard#. Eaves, gutters, downspouts, window sills or similar shall be no less than three feet in width except where projections, extending into such #court# not more necessary for compliance with the Americans with (7)Fences; than four inches: **Disabilities** Act. * * <u>(8)</u> Flagpoles; Exterior wall thickness, where such wall thickness 32-15 <u>(9)</u> is added to the exterior face of a #building# wall Parking spaces for automobiles or Use Group 6 * * * existing on (date of adoption), provided the added bicycles, off-street, open, #accessory#; D. Public Service Establishments***** wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch, and is limited to one inch of <u>(10)</u> Solar energy systems on walls existing on * * * thickness for every foot of existing #court# width, (date of adoption), projecting no more up to a maximum thickness of eight inches. Telephone exchanges or other communications equipment than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the structures. In all districts the height above #curb level# of Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall such structures not existing on December 15, 1961, shall not #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) exceed that attributable to #commercial buildings# of thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, from which it projects; such #enlarged# portion may similarly encroach equivalent #lot coverage#, having an average floor to floor height of 14 feet above the lobby floor which may be as much Steps, and ramps for people with upon required #courts# in order to align with the (11) as 25 feet in height. For the purpose of making this height exterior walls of the existing #building#, provided disabilities; computation, the gross area of all floors of the #building# such #enlargement# contains less #floor area# than including accessory mechanical equipment space except the (12) the existing #building#, and there is no encroachment Terraces or porches, open; of #floor area# into a required #court#. #cellar# shall be included as #floor area#. <u>(13)</u> Walls, not exceeding eight feet in height Fences: Solar energy systems and not roofed or part of a #building#; Fire escapes in #inner courts#, where such fire Such height computation for the structure shall not preclude (b) In any #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#: the ability to utilize unused #floor area# anywhere on the escapes are required as a result of alterations in Balconies, unenclosed, subject to the #buildings# existing before December 15, 1961; #zoning lot# or by special permit, subject to the normal <u>(1)</u> provisions of the Resolution provisions of Section 24-165; Fire escapes in #outer courts#; * <u>(2)</u> Breezeways; Fire escapes in #outer court recesses#, not more 32-16 Any #building# or portion of a #building# <u>(3)</u> than five feet in depth; **Use Group 7** used for any permitted #use# other than #residences#, except that any portion of a Fire escapes in #outer court recesses#, more than Auto Service Establishments five feet in depth, where such fire escapes are D. #building# containing rooms used for required as a result of alterations in #buildings# living or sleeping purposes (other than a room in a hospital used for the care or existing before December 15, 1961; Automobile glass and mirror shops [PRC-B1] treatment of patients) shall not be a Automobile seat cover or convertible top permitted obstruction, and provided that Flagpoles; establishments, selling or installation [PRC-B1] the height of such #building# shall not Recreational or yard drying equipment; exceed one #story#, excluding #basement#, Electric vehicle charging stations and automotive nor in any event 23 feet above #curb battery swapping facilities [PRC-B1] Solar energy systems on walls existing on (date of level#. In addition, decks, parapet walls, roof thickness, skylights, vegetated roofs adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface Tire sales establishments, including installation and weirs pursuant to Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions), shall be area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) services [PRC-B1] from which it projects; Ε. permitted above such a #building#, or #Accessory Uses# portion thereof. * In a C6-1A District, #uses# in Use Group 7 are not permitted Terraces, open, porches or steps. Fire escapes; <u>(4)</u> * * <u>(5)</u> Parking spaces for automobiles or Size and Location of Spaces 33-23 Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear bicycles, off-street, #accessory#, provided R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10 that the height of an #accessory building# Yard Equivalents used for such purposes and located in a required #rear yard# or #rear yard In all #Commercial Districts#, the following obstructions In all districts, as indicated, for all #accessory# off-street shall be permitted when located within a required #yard# or equivalent# shall not exceed 23 feet above parking spaces, open or enclosed, each 300 square feet of #rear yard equivalent#: #curb level#. In addition, decks, parapet unobstructed standing or maneuvering area shall be walls, roof thickness, skylights, vegetated considered one parking space. However, an area of less than In any #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#: (a) roofs and weirs, as set forth in Section 33-300 square feet, but in no event less than 200 square feet, 42, shall be permitted above such an may be considered as one space, where the layout and design (1)Arbors or trellises; #accessory building#, or portion thereof; of the parking area are adequate to permit convenient access and maneuvering in accordance with regulations promulgated by <u>(2)</u> Awnings or canopies; and other sun <u>(6)</u> Solar energy systems: the Commissioner of Buildings, or where the developer or control devices, provided that when applicant for a building permit or certificate of occupancy located at a level higher than a first <u>(i)</u> on the roof of a #building# certifies that such spaces will be fully attended. #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such permitted as an obstruction to awnings and other sun control devices: such #yard#, up to four feet in Driveways used to access required parking spaces must be height as measured perpendicular <u>(i)</u> shall be limited to a maximum unobstructed for a width of at least eight feet and a height of to the roof surface when located eight feet above grade and if connecting to a #street#, such projection of 2 feet, 6 inches into above a permitted #commercial driveway may only be accessed by a curb cut. such required #yard#; and or community facility use# or attached parking structure; In any case where a reduction of the required area per (ii) shall have solid surfaces that in parking space is permitted on the basis of the developer's <u>(ii)</u> <u>aggregate, cover an area no</u>

on the roof of a #building# permitted as an obstruction to such #yard#, shall be limited to 18 inches in height as measured perpendicular to the roof surface when located above a shed or detached parking structure, or on any roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;

(iii) on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

In accordance with applicability requirements of underlying district regulations, the owner of the #development#, #enlargement# or #converted building# shall provide and maintain a planting strip. #Street# trees required pursuant to Section 26-41 shall be planted within such planting strip. In addition to such #street# trees, such strip shall be fully planted with grass or groundcover, except as provided in Section 26-421. Such planting strip shall be located adjacent to, and extend along, the entire length of the curb of the #street#. However, in the event that both adjoining properties have planting strips adjacent to the #front lot line#, such planting strip may be located along the #front lot line#. The width of such planting strip shall be the greatest width feasible given the required minimum paved width of the sidewalk on #street# segments upon which the #building# fronts, except that no planting strip less than six inches in width shall be required. Driveways are permitted to travers such planting strip, and utilities are permitted to be located within such planting strip.

certification that such spaces will be fully attended, it shall

spaces shall be available to handle the parking and moving of

* * *

attendants employed by the owners or operators of such

automobiles at all times when such spaces are in use.

be set forth in the certificate of occupancy that paid

<u>26-421</u> Modifications of planting strip requirements

Driveways are permitted to traverse planting strips. Planting strips may be interrupted by utilities and paved areas required for bus stops.

On #zoning lots# containing #schools#, permeable pavers or permeable pavement may be substituted for grass or ground cover, provided that, beneath such permeable pavers or

the area of, the required #vard# or #rear yard equivalent#;

Chimneys, projecting not more than three

feet into, and not exceeding two percent of

they project;

Canopies

(3)

(4)

more than 30 percent of the

area of the #building# wall (as

viewed in elevation) from which

- <u>(5)</u> Eaves, gutters or downspouts, projecting into such #yard# or #rear yard equivalent# not more than 16 inches or 20 percent of the width of such #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#, whichever is the lesser distance
- <u>(6)</u> Exterior wall thickness, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a #building# wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (Rvalue) of at least 1.5 per inch, and is limited to one inch of thickness for every foot of existing #yard# width, up to a maximum thickness of eight inches. When an open area is provided along a common <u>#lot line#, then such exterior wall</u> thickness is limited to one inch for every foot of existing open area on the #zoning lot#.

Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, such #enlarged# portion may similarly encroach upon required #yards# in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing

Water-conserving devices required in connection with air conditioning or refrigeration systems in #buildings# existing prior to May 20, 1966, if located not less than 8 feet from any #lot line#.

However, no portion of a #rear yard equivalent# that is also a required #front yard# or required #side yard# may contain any obstructions not permitted in such #front yard# or #side yard#. *

33-25 **Minimum Required Side Yards**

C1 C2 C3 C4 C5 C6 C7 C8

(7)

In all districts, as indicated, no #side yards# are required. However, if an open area extending along a #side lot line# is provided at any level, it shall be either:

- (a) at least eight feet wide at every point; or
- (b) at least five feet wide at every point, with an

- (1) such widest point shall be on a #street line#;
- (2) no portion of a #building# shall project beyond a straight line connecting such two points; and
- (3) in the case of a #zoning lot# bounded by a #side lot line# extending from #street# to #street#, such average shall be computed and such open area shall be provided as though each half of such #side lot line# bounded a separate #zoning lot#.

Permitted obstructions pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 33-23(Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), shall be permitted in such open areas.

33-42 Permitted Obstructions

In all #Commercial Districts#, the following obstructions shall be permitted and may thus penetrate a maximum height limit or #sky exposure planes#, as set forth in Sections 33-43 (Maximum Height of Walls and Required Setbacks), 33-44 (Alternate Front Setbacks) or 33-491 (Limited Height Districts):

- (a) Awnings and other sun control devices, provided that when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such awnings and other sun control devices:
 - (1) shall be limited to a maximum projection into a required setback of 2 feet, 6 inches, except when located on the first #story# above a setback;
 - (2) <u>shall have solid surfaces that, in</u> aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project; and
 - (3) may rise above the permitted #building# height, up to the height of a parapet wall or guardrail permitted in accordance with Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions).

When located on the first #story# above a setback, awnings and other sun control devices shall be limited to a projection of 50 percent of the depth of the required setback, and shall be limited, in total, to 50 percent of the width of the #building# wall from which they project.

- (b) Balconies, unenclosed, subject to the provisions of Section 24-165;
- (bc) #Building# columns, having an aggregate width equal to not more than 20 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building#, to a depth not exceeding 12 inches, in an #initial setback distance#, optional front open area, or any other required setback distance or open area set forth in Sections 33-43, 33-44 or 33-45 (Tower Regulations);
- (ed) Chimneys or flues, with a total width not exceeding 10 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building# at any given level;
- (e) Decks, and other surfaces for recreational activities, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (df) Elevators or stair bulkhead, roof water tanks or cooling towers (including enclosures), each having an #aggregate width of street walls# equal to not more than 30 feet. However, the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such

wall# of the #building# facing such frontage.

- (2) all mechanical equipment shall be screened on all sides.
- (3) such obstructions and screening are contained within a volume that complies with one of the following:
 - (a) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, shall not exceed an area equal to eight feet times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
 - (b) the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and where the maximum permitted height of a #building# is less than 120 feet, are limited to a maximum height of 25 feet, and where the maximum permitted height of a #building# is 120 feet or greater, are limited to a maximum height of 40 feet.

For the purposes of this paragraph, (f), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#.

- (f) Exterior wall thickness, up to eight inches, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a "building" wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch. Where "buildings" that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are "enlarged", such "enlarged" portion may similarly penetrate a maximum height limit in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing "building", provided such "enlargement" contains less "floor area" than the existing "building", and there is no penetration of "floor area" above a maximum height limit.
- (\underline{eh}) Flagpoles or aerials;
- (fi) House of worship towers, ornamental, having no #floor area# in portion of tower penetrating such height limit or #sky exposure plane#;
- (gj) Parapet walls, not more than four feet high in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. A guardrail with a surface at least 70 percent open or with an opacity no more than 30 percent (as viewed in elevation), shall be permitted above a parapet wall, provided such guardrail is not more than 3 feet, 6 inches above the accessible level of a roof;
- (k) Roof thickness, up to eight inches, to accommodate the addition of insulation, for #buildings# or portions of #buildings# constructed prior to (date of adoption). For a #building# that has added roof thickness pursuant to this paragraph, an #enlargement# may align with the finished roof surface of such #building#, provided the #enlarged# portion does not exceed the maximum height limit height by more than eight inches;
- (1) Rooftop greenhouses, permitted by pursuant to Section 75-01 (Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses);
- (m) Skylights, clerestories or other day lighting devices, not more than four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. Such devices shall be limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 10 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and be located at least

other obstruction pursuant to paragraph (f) of this Section, a height of six feet.

(3) on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

However, any installation on a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees shall be limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.

Spires or belfries;

(<u>ho</u>)

(p)

<u>(q)</u>

Vegetated roofs, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height excluding vegetation, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. On roofs with slopes greater than 20 degrees, vegetated roofs shall be limited to a height of 12 inches measured perpendicular to such roof surface;

Weirs, check dams and other equipment for stormwater management, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;

- (r) Wind energy systems on #buildings# with a height of 100 feet or greater, provided:
 - (1) the highest point of the wind turbine assembly does not exceed 55 feet;
 - (2) no portion of the wind turbine assembly is closer than 10 feet from any #lot line#; and
 - (3) in districts where new #residences# or new #joint living work quarters for artists# are allowed as-of-right or by special permit or authorization, or within 100 feet of such districts, the diameter of the swept area of the rotor does not exceed 15 feet;
- (s)
 Window washing equipment mounted on a roof;

 (it)
 Wire, chain link or other transparent fences.

* * *

34-232 Modification of side yard requirements

C1 C2 C3 C4 C5 C6

In the districts indicated, except as otherwise provided in Section 34-233 (Special provisions applying along district boundaries), no #side yard# shall be required for any #residential building#. However, if any open area extending along a #side lot line# is provided, such open area shall have a width of not less than eight feet. <u>Permitted obstructions</u> pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), shall be permitted in such open areas.

35-24

Special Street Wall Location and Height and Setback Regulations in Certain Districts

C1-6A C1-7A C1-8A C1-8X C1-9A C2-6A C2-7A C2-7X C2-8A C4-2A C4-3A C4-4A C4-4D C4-5A C4-5D C4-5X C4-6A C4-7A C5-1A C5-2A C6-2A C6-3A C6-3D C6-3X C6-4A C6-4X

(a) Permitted obstructions

C1-6A C1-7A C1-8A C1-8X C1-9A C2-6A C2-7A C2-7X C2-8A C4-2A C4-3A C4-4A C4-4D C4-5A C4-5D C4-5X C4-6A C4-7A C5-1A C5-2A C6-2A C6-3A C6-3D C6-3X C6-4A C6-4X

In the districts indicated, and in other C1 or C2 Districts when mapped within R6A, R6B, R7A, R7B, R7D, R7X, R8A, R8B, R8X, R9A, R9D, R9X, R10A or R10X Districts, and for #Quality Housing buildings# in other #Commercial Districts#, the provisions of Section 33-42 shall apply to any #building or other structure#. In addition, a dormer may be allowed as a permitted obstruction pursuant to paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts), and an elevator shaft and associated vestibule may be allowed as a permitted obstruction, pursuant to paragraph (f) of Section 23 62.

obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to four times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage. For the purposes of this paragraph, (e), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#;

Elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts; and vestibules not larger than 60 square feet in area providing access to a roof), roof water tanks and #accessory# mechanical equipment (including enclosures), other than solar or wind energy systems, provided that:

<u>(1)</u> such obstructions shall be located not less than 10 feet from the #street wall# of a #building#, except that such obstructions need not be set back more than 25 feet from a #narrow street line# or more than 20 feet from a #wide street line#. However, such restrictions on location shall not apply to elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts or vestibules), provided the #aggregate width of street walls# of such bulkheads within 10 feet of <u>a #street wall#, facing each #street#</u> frontage, times their average height, in feet, does not exceed an area equal to four feet times the width, in feet, of the #street eight feet from the #street wall# edge. However, such devices shall not be permitted obstructions above a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;

(n) Solar energy systems:

- (1) on the roof of a #building#, up to four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (2) on the roof of a #building#, greater than four feet in height, provided that all such portions above four feet are set back at least six feet from a #street wall#, limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 25 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and do not exceed:
 - (i) in #Commercial Districts# mapped within #Residence Districts#, and in C3 and C4-1 Districts, a height of six feet;
 - (ii) in all other #Commercial Districts#, a height of 15 feet; and
 - (iii) when located on a bulkhead or

* * *

35-52 Modification of Side Yard Requirements

$C1\ C2\ C3\ C4\ C5\ C6$

In the districts indicated, except as otherwise provided in Section 35-54 (Special Provisions Applying Adjacent to R1 through R6B Districts), no #side yard# shall be required although, if any open area extending along a #side lot line# is provided at any level, it shall have a width of not less than eight feet. <u>Permitted obstructions pursuant to paragraph (a)</u> of Section 33-23 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), shall be permitted in such open areas.

However, in C3A Districts, #side yards# shall be provided in accordance with the regulations for R3A Districts as set forth in Section 23-461 (Side yards for single- or two-family residences).

35-53 Modification of Rear Yard Requirements

C1 C2 C3 C4 C5 C6

In the districts indicated, for a #residential# portion of a #mixed building#, the required #residential rear yard# shall be provided at the floor level of the lowest #story# used for #dwelling units# or #rooming units#, where any window of such #dwelling units# or #rooming units# faces onto such #rear yard#. If the level of such #yard# is at or higher than the first #story#, decks, parapet walls, roof thickness, solar energy systems up to four feet high, vegetated roofs and weirs shall be permitted pursuant to Section 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions).

* * *

36-521 Size of spaces

$C1\ C2\ C3\ C4\ C5\ C6\ C7\ C8$

In all districts, as indicated, for all #accessory# off-street parking spaces, open or enclosed, each 300 square feet of unobstructed standing or maneuvering area shall be considered one parking space. However, an area of less than 300 square feet, but in no event less than 200 square feet, may be considered as one space, where the layout and design of the parking area are adequate to permit convenient access and maneuvering in accordance with regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Buildings, or where the developer or applicant for a building permit or certificate of occupancy certifies that such spaces will be fully attended.

Driveways used to access required parking spaces must be unobstructed for a width of at least eight feet and a height of eight feet above grade and if connecting to a #street#, such driveway may only be accessed by a curb cut.

In any case where a reduction of the required area per parking space is permitted on the basis of the developer's certification that such spaces will be fully attended, it shall be set forth in the certificate of occupancy that paid attendants employed by the owners or operators of such spaces shall be available to handle the parking and moving of automobiles at all times when such spaces are in use.

37-53

(a) Arcade * * *

*

(3) Permitted obstructions

Except for #building# columns<u>, and</u> exterior wall thickness pursuant to Section 33-23 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), an arcade shall be free from obstructions of any kind.

(b) #<u>B</u>building# entrance recess area

(2)

(c)

A #building# entrance recess area is a space that adjoins and is open to a sidewalk or sidewalk widening for its entire length and provides unobstructed access to the #building's# lobby entrance or to the entrance to a ground floor #use#.

* * * Permitted obstructions

Any portion of a #building# entrance recess area under an overhanging portion of the #building# shall have a minimum clear height of 15 feet. It shall be free of obstructions except for <u>exterior wall</u> <u>thickness as set forth in Section 33-23,</u> <u>and</u> #building# columns, between any two of which there shall be a clear space of at least 15 feet measured parallel to the #street line#. Between a #building# column and a wall of the #building#, there shall be a clear path at least five feet in width. trees, planters, vehicle storage, parking or trash storage. <u>However, exterior wall</u> <u>thickness may be added as pursuant to</u> <u>Section 33-23.</u> No gratings, except for drainage, shall be permitted.

* * *

* *

Sidewalk widening

Permitted obstructions

(f)

(3)

(h)

A sidewalk widening shall be unobstructed from its lowest level to the sky except for those obstructions permitted under paragraph (f)(2) of this Section, for exterior wall thickness pursuant to Section 33-23, and for temporary elements of weather protection, such as awnings or canopies, provided that the total area of such elements, measured on the plan, does not exceed 20 percent of the sidewalk widening area, and that such elements and any attachments thereto are at least eight feet above #curb level#.

* * * Through #block# connection

* * *

- (2) Design standards for a through #block# connection
 - A through #block# connection shall provide a straight, continuous, unobstructed path at least 15 feet wide. If covered, the clear, unobstructed height of a through #block# connection shall not be less than 15 feet. <u>Exterior wall thickness as set</u> forth in Section 33-23 shall be a permitted obstruction to such path.

(c)

* *

37-721 Sidewalk frontage

* * *

(b) In the remaining 50 percent of such area, only those obstructions listed in Section 37-726 (Permitted obstructions) shall be allowed, provided such obstructions are not higher than two feet above the level of the public sidewalk fronting the #public plaza#, except for light stanchions, public space signage, railings for steps, exterior wall thickness pursuant to Section 33-23 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), trash receptacles, trees and fixed or moveable seating and tables. Furthermore, planting walls or trellises, water features and artwork may exceed a height of two feet when located within three feet of a wall bounding the #public plaza#.

For #corner public plazas#, the requirements of this Section shall apply separately to each #street# frontage, and the area within 15 feet of the intersection of any two or more #streets# on which the #public plaza# fronts shall be at the same elevation as the adjoining public sidewalk and shall be free of obstructions.

* * *

37-726 Permitted obstructions

(b)

 (a) #Public plazas# shall be open to the sky and unobstructed except for the following features, equipment and appurtenances normally found in #public parks# and playgrounds: water features, including fountains, reflecting pools, and waterfalls; sculptures and other works of art; seating, including benches, seats and moveable chairs; trees, planters, planting beds, lawns and other landscape features; arbors or trellises; litter For #public plazas# 10,000 square feet or more in area with a permitted open-air cafe: 60 percent.

The area of permitted obstructions shall be measured by outside dimensions. Obstructions that are non-permanent or moveable, such as moveable chairs, open air cafes, or temporary exhibitions shall be confined within gross areas designated on the site plan, and not measured as individual pieces of furniture.

Trees planted flush-to-grade in accordance with the provisions of Section 37-742 (Planting and trees) and tree canopies do not count as obstructions for the purpose of calculating total area occupied by permitted obstructions. Planting beds and their retaining walls for trees count as obstructions, except that lawn, turf or grass areas intended for public access and seating shall not count as obstructions, provided such lawns do not differ in elevation from the adjoining #public plaza# elevation by more than six inches. Exterior wall thickness added pursuant to Section 33-23 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents) in any #publicly accessible open area# or #public plaza# built prior to the (date of adoption) shall not count as obstructions for the purpose of calculating total area occupied by permitted obstructions.

* * * Canopies, awnings, and marquees <u>and sun control</u> <u>devices</u>

- (1) Entrances to #buildings# located within a #public plaza# may have a maximum of one canopy, awning or marquee, provided that such canopy, awning or marquee:
 - (1)(i) has a maximum area of 250 square feet;
 - (2)(ii) does not project into the #public plaza# more than 15 feet when measured perpendicular to the #building# facade;
 - (2)(iii) is located a minimum of 15 feet above the level of the #public plaza# adjacent to the #building# entrance; and

(4)(iv) does not contain vertical supports.

Such canopies, awnings, and marquees shall be designed to provide maximum visibility into the #public plaza# from adjoining #streets# and the adjacent #building#. However, canopies, awnings, and marquees associated with entrances to #buildings# containing #residences# located within a #public plaza# may project more than 15 feet into the #public plaza# and contain vertical supports if they are located entirely within 10 feet of the edge of the #public plaza#.

- Sun control devices may be located within a #public plaza#, provided that all such devices:
 - (i) shall be located above the level of the first #story# ceiling;
 - (ii) shall be limited to a maximum projection of two feet, six inches;
 - (iii) shall have solid surfaces that in aggregate, cover an area no more than 20 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project; and
 - (iv) may rise above the permitted #building# height, up to the height of a parapet wall or guardrail permitted within Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions);

* * *

(2) Permitted obstructions

Except for #building# columns, <u>and</u> <u>exterior wall thickness pursuant to</u> <u>Section 33-23</u>, a corner arcade shall be free from obstructions of any kind.

* * *

(d) Corner circulation space

* * *

(2) Permitted obstructions

A corner circulation space shall be completely open to the sky from its lowest level, except for temporary elements of weather protection, such as awnings or canopies, provided that the total area of such elements does not exceed 20 percent of the area of the corner circulation space and that such elements and any attachments thereto are at least eight feet above #curb level#. A corner circulation space shall be clear of all other obstructions including, without limitation, door swings, #building# columns, #street# receptacles; bicycle racks; tables and other outdoor furniture; lights and lighting stanchions; public telephones; public restrooms; permitted temporary exhibitions; permitted awnings, canopies or marquees; permitted freestanding signs; play equipment; <u>exterior wall thickness added pursuant to Section 33-23 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents);</u> permitted kiosks and open-air cafes; stages; subway station entrances, which may include escalators; and drinking fountains.

However, an area occupied in aggregate by such permitted obstruction shall not exceed the maximum percentage cited in paragraph (b) of this Section. In addition, certain of the obstructions listed in this paragraph, (a), shall not be permitted within the sidewalk frontage of a #public plaza#, as described in Section 37-721 (Sidewalk frontage).

Permitted obstructions may occupy a maximum percentage of the area of a #public plaza#, as follows:

For <code>#public plazas#</code> less than 10,000 square feet in area: 40 percent

For #public plazas# less than 10,000 square feet in area with a permitted open air cafe: 50 percent

For #public plazas# 10,000 square feet or more in area: 50 percent

43-23

<u>(2)</u>

<u>(2)</u>

Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents

In all #Manufacturing Districts#, the following obstructions shall be permitted within a required #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:

- (a) In any #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:
 - (1) Arbors or trellises;
 - Awnings or canopies; <u>and other sun</u> control devices, provided that when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such awnings and other sun control devices:
 - (i) shall be limited to a maximum projection of 2 feet, 6 inches into such required #yard#; and
 - (ii) shall have solid surfaces that in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project;

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2012

(3) <u>Canopies</u>

- (4) Chimneys, projecting not more than three feet into, and not exceeding two percent of the area of, the required #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#;
- (5) Eaves, gutters or downspouts, projecting into such #yard# or #rear yard equivalent# not more than 16 inches or 20 percent of the width of such #yard# or #rear yard equivalent#, whichever is the lesser distance;

(6) Exterior wall thickness, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a "building" wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch, and is limited to one inch of thickness for every foot of existing "yard" width, up to a maximum thickness of eight inches. When an open area is provided along a common "lot line", then such exterior wall thickness is limited to one inch for every foot of existing open area on the "zoning lot".

Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, such #enlarged# portion may similarly encroach upon required #yards# in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing #building#, provided such #enlargement# contains less #floor area# than the existing #building#, and there is no encroachment of #floor area# into a required #yard#.

- (7) Fences;
- (8) Flagpoles;
- (9) Parking spaces for automobiles or bicycles, off-street, open, #accessory#;
- (10) Solar energy systems on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects;
- (11) Steps, and ramps for persons with physical disabilities;
- (12) Terraces or porches, open;
- (13) Walls, not exceeding eight feet in height and not roofed or part of a #building#;
- (b) In any #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent#:
 - Any #building# or portion of a #building# (1)used for any permitted #use#, except that any portion of a #building# containing rooms used for living or sleeping purposes (other than a room in a hospital used for the care and treatment of patients, or #joint living-work quarters for artists#) shall not be a permitted obstruction, and provided that the height of such #building# shall not exceed one #story#, excluding #basement#, nor in any event 23 feet above #curb level#. In addition, decks, parapet walls, roof thickness, skylights, vegetated roofs and weirs shall be permitted upon such #building#, or portion thereof, as listed within Section 43-42 (Permitted Obstructions);
 - (2) Breezeways;
 - (3) Fire escapes;
 - (<u>4</u>) Parking spaces for automobiles or bicycles, off-street, #accessory#, provided that the height of an #accessory building# used for such purposes and located in a required #rear yard# or #rear yard equivalent# shall not exceed 23 feet above #curb level#;

not less than eight feet from any #lot line#.

However, no portion of a #rear yard equivalent# which is also a required #front yard# or required #side yard# may contain any obstructions not permitted in such #front yard# or #side yard#.

* * *

Permitted Obstructions

43-42

In all #Manufacturing Districts#, the following obstructions shall be permitted to penetrate a maximum height limit or a #sky exposure plane# set forth in Sections 43-43 (Maximum Height of Front Wall and Required Front Setbacks), 43-44 (Alternate Front Setbacks) or 43-49 (Limited Height Districts).

- (a) Awnings and other sun control devices, provided that when located at a level higher than a first #story#, excluding a #basement#, all such awnings and other sun control devices:
 - (1) shall be limited to a maximum projection into a required setback of 2 feet, 6 inches, except when located on the first #story# above a setback;
 - (2) shall have solid surfaces that, in aggregate, cover an area no more than 30 percent of the area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which they project; and
 - (3) may rise above the permitted #building# height, up to the height of a parapet wall or guardrail permitted in accordance with Section 43-42 (Permitted Obstructions).

When located on the first #story# above a setback, awnings and other sun control devices shall be limited to a projection of 50 percent of the depth of the required setback, and shall be limited, in total, to 50 percent of the width of the #building# wall from which they project.

- (eb) #Building# columns, having an aggregate width equal to not more than 20 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building#, to a depth not exceeding 12 inches, in an #initial setback distance#, optional front open area, or any other required setback distance or open area set forth in Sections 43-43, 43-44 or 43-45 (Tower Regulations);
- (bc) Chimneys or flues, with a total width not exceeding 10 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building# at any given level;
- (d) Decks, and other surfaces for recreational activities, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (ee) Elevators or stair bulkhead, roof water tanks or cooling towers (including enclosures), each having an #aggregate width of street walls# equal to not more than 30 feet. However, the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to four times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage. For the purposes of this paragraph, (b), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#;

Elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts; and vestibules not larger than 60 square feet in area providing access to a roof), roof water tanks and #accessory# mechanical equipment (including enclosures), other than solar or wind energy systems, provided that:

(1) such obstructions shall be located not less than 10 feet from the #street wall# of a #building#, except that such obstructions need not be set back more than 25 feet from a #narrow street line# or more than 20 feet from a #wide street line#. However, such restrictions on location shall not apply to elevator or stair bulkheads (including shafts or vestibules), provided the #aggregate width of street walls# of such bulkheads within 10 feet of a #street wall#, facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, does not exceed an area equal to four feet times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage.

percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and where the maximum permitted height of a #building# is less than 120 feet, are limited to a maximum height of 25 feet, and where the maximum permitted height of a #building# is 120 feet or greater, are limited to a maximum height of 40 feet.

For the purposes of this paragraph, (e), #abutting buildings# on a single #zoning lot# may be considered to be a single #building#.

Exterior wall thickness, up to eight inches, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a #building# wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch. Where #buildings# that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are #enlarged#, such #enlarged# portion may similarly penetrate a maximum height limit in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing #building#, provided such #enlargement# contains less #floor area# than the existing #building#, and there is no penetration of #floor area# above a maximum height limit.

Flagpoles or aerials;

<u>(f)</u>

 $(\mathbf{d}\mathbf{g})$

(fi)

(j)

(1)

(m)

- (eh) House of worship towers, ornamental, having no #floor area# in portion of tower penetrating such height limit or #sky exposure plane#;
 - Parapet walls, not more than four feet <u>high in</u> height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. A guardrail with a surface at least 70 percent open or with an opacity no more than 30 percent (as viewed in elevation), shall be permitted above a parapet wall, provided such guardrail is not more than 3 feet, 6 inches above the accessible level of a roof;
 - Roof thickness, up to eight inches, to accommodate the addition of insulation, for #buildings# or portions of #buildings# constructed prior to (date of adoption). For a #building# that has added roof thickness pursuant to this paragraph, an #enlargement# may align with the finished roof surface of such #building#, provided the #enlarged# portion does not exceed the maximum height limit height by more than eight inches;
- (k) Rooftop greenhouses, permitted pursuant to Section 75-01 (Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses);
 - Skylights, clerestories or other day lighting devices, not more than four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. Such devices shall be limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 10 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and be located at least eight feet from the #street wall# edge. However, such devices shall not be permitted obstructions above a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
 - <u>Solar energy systems:</u>
 - (1) on the roof of a #building#, up to four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
 - (2) on the roof of a #building#, greater than four feet in height, provided that all such portions above four feet are set back at least six feet from a #street wall#, limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 25 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and do not exceed:
 - (i) a height of 15 feet:

- (5) Solar energy systems on the roof of a #building# permitted as an obstruction to such #yard#:
 - (i) up to four feet in height as measured perpendicular to the roof surface when located above a permitted #commercial or community facility use# or attached parking structure; however
 - (ii) shall be limited to 18 inches in height as measured perpendicular to the roof surface when located above a shed or detached parking structure, or on any roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
- (6) Water-conserving devices, required in connection with air conditioning or refrigeration systems in #buildings# existing prior to May 20, 1966, if located

(2) all mechanical equipment shall be screened on all sides.

<u>b.</u>

- (3) such obstructions and screening are contained within a volume that complies with one of the following:
 - a. the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, shall not exceed an area equal to eight feet times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
 - <u>the #lot coverage# of all such</u> <u>obstructions does not exceed 20</u>

- (ii) when located on a bulkhead or other obstruction pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section, a height of six feet;
- on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

<u>However, any installation on a roof with a slope</u> greater than 20 degrees shall be limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.

(<u>gn</u>) Spires or belfries;

<u>(o)</u>

<u>(p)</u>

<u>(3)</u>

- Vegetated roofs, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height excluding vegetation, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. On roofs with slopes greater than 20 degrees, vegetated roofs shall be limited to a height of 12 inches measured perpendicular to such roof surface;
- Weirs, check dams and other equipment for stormwater management, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum

height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;

- (q) Wind energy systems on #buildings# with a height of 100 feet or greater, provided:
 - (1) the highest point of the wind turbine assembly does not exceed 55 feet;
 - (2) no portion of the wind turbine assembly is closer than 10 feet from any #lot line#; and

(3) in districts where #residences# new #joint living work quarters for artists# are permitted as-of-right, by special permit or authorization, or within 100 feet of such districts, the diameter of the swept area of the rotor does not exceed 15 feet;

- (r) Window washing equipment mounted on a roof;
- (\underline{hs}) Wire, chain link or other transparent fences.

* * *

Size and Identification of Spaces

M1 M2 M3

44-42

(a) Size of spaces

In all districts, as indicated, for all #accessory# offstreet parking spaces, open or enclosed, each 300 square feet of unobstructed standing or maneuvering area shall be considered one parking space. However, an area of less than 300 square feet, but in no event less than 200 square feet, may be considered as one space, where the layout and design of the parking area are adequate to permit convenient access and maneuvering in accordance with regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Buildings, or where the applicant for a building permit or certificate of occupancy certifies that such spaces will be fully attended.

Driveways used to access required parking spaces must be unobstructed for a width of at least eight feet and a height of eight feet above grade and if connecting to a #street#, such driveway may only be accessed by a curb cut.

In any case where a reduction of the required area per parking space is permitted on the basis of the applicant's certification that such spaces will be fully attended, it shall be set forth in the certificate of occupancy that paid attendants employed by the owners or operators of such spaces shall be available to handle the parking and moving of automobiles at all times when such spaces are in use.

In no event shall the dimensions of any parking stall be less than 18 feet long and 8 feet, 6 inches wide.

54-313

Single- or two-family residences with non-complying front yards or side yards

* * *

- (b) In all districts, for an existing #single-# or #two-family residence# with a #non-complying side yard#, an #enlargement# involving a vertical extension of existing #building# walls facing such #non-complying side yard# is permitted, provided the following conditions are met:
 - (1) the portion of the #building# which is being vertically extended complies with the height and setback regulations applicable to an R3-2 District;
 - (2) the #non-complying side yard# where the #building# wall is being vertically extended is at least three feet in width and the minimum distance between such #building# wall and the nearest #building# wall or vertical prolongation thereof on an adjoining #zoning lot# across the common

#zoning lot# is entirely obstructed by existing elevated roads, bridges or similar structures which are less than 50 feet above mean high water and within 200 feet of the #shoreline#, #developments# shall be exempt from the requirements of this Section. Height and setback regulations for #developments# on #piers# and #floating structures# are set forth in Sections 62-342 and 62-343.

(a) For the purposes of applying the height and setback regulations of this Section, the following provisions shall apply:

(4) Permitted obstructions

The obstructions permitted pursuant to Sections 23-62, 24-51, 33-42 or 43-42 shall apply. In addition, the following <u>regulations regarding</u> <u>permitted</u> obstructions shall <u>be permitted</u> apply:

- Within an #initial setback distance#, a (i) dormer may exceed a maximum base height specified in Table A of this Section or penetrate a required setback area above a maximum base height specified in Table C of this Section, provided that on any #street# frontage the aggregate width of all dormers at the maximum base height does not exceed 60 percent of the width of the #street wall# of the highest #story# entirely below the maximum base height. At any level above the maximum base height, the width of a #street wall# of a dormer shall be decreased by one percent for every foot that such level of dormer exceeds the maximum base height. (See Illustration of Dormer)
- (iii) Wind energy systems

* * *

Regulations governing wind energy systems are modified pursuant to this paragraph:

In R6 through R10 Districts, Commercial Districts other than C1 or C2 Districts mapped within R1 through R5 Districts and C4-1, C7, C8-1, and Manufacturing Districts other than M1-1 Districts, wind energy systems located on a roof of a #building# shall not exceed a height equivalent to 50 percent of the height of the #building# or 55 feet, whichever is less, as measured from the roof of the #building# to the highest point of the wind turbine assembly.

In C4-1, C7, C8-1 and M1-1 Districts, for #buildings# containing #commercial# or #community facility uses#, wind energy systems shall not exceed a height of 55 feet when located above a roof of the #building# as measured to the highest point of the wind turbine assembly.

In all districts, no portion of a wind energy system may be closer than ten feet to a #waterfront public access area# boundary or a #zoning lot line#.

(b) Lower density districts

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 C3 C4-1 C7 C8-1 M1-1

(4) Other structures

All structures other than #buildings# shall be limited to a height of 35 feet, except that in C4-1, C7, C8-1 and M1-1 Districts, freestanding wind energy systems shall be permitted to a height of 85 feet, as measured from the base plane to the highest point of the wind turbine assembly.

(c) Medium and high density non-contextual districts

#pier# shall not exceed 30 feet. However, where a setback at least 15 feet deep is provided, the maximum height of a #building or other structure# shall be 40 feet. Such required setback shall be provided at a minimum height of 25 feet and a maximum height of 30 feet, and may be reduced to ten feet in depth along any portion of the #building or other structure# fronting on an open area of the #pier# having a dimension of at least 40 feet measured perpendicular to such fronting portion. \underline{In} addition, wind energy systems shall be allowed, provided such a system does not exceed a height of <u>85 feet, as measured from the base plane to the</u> highest point of the wind turbine assembly or, when located above a roof of the #building#, a height of 55 feet, as measured to the highest point of the wind turbine assembly, whichever is higher.

(b) #<u>B</u>building# width and spacing regulations on #piers#

Article VII Administration

Chapter 1

Enforcement, and Administration and Amendments

* *

71-00 ENFORCEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

71-10 PROCEDURE FOR AMENDMENTS

The City Planning Commission shall adopt resolutions to amend the text of this Resolution or the #zoning maps# incorporated therein, and the City Council shall act upon such amendments, in accordance with the provisions of the New York City Charter.

Chapter 5 Amendments

75-00 PROCEDURE FOR AMENDMENTS

The City Planning Commission shall adopt resolutions to amend the text of this Resolution or the #zoning maps# incorporated therein, and the City Council shall act upon such amendments, in accordance with the provisions of the New York City Charter.

<u>Chapter 5</u> <u>Certifications</u>

75-00 CERTIFICATIONS

<u>75-01</u>

<u>(e)</u>

<u>(f)</u>

<u>(1)</u>

Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses

A rooftop greenhouse shall be excluded from the definition of #floor area# and may exceed #building# height limits, upon certification by the Chairperson of the City Planning Commission that such rooftop greenhouse:

- (a) is located on the roof of a #building# that does not contain #residences# or other #uses# with sleeping accommodations;
- (b) will only be used for cultivation of plants, or primarily for cultivation of plants when #accessory# to a #community facility use#;
- (c) exceeds #building# height limits by no more than 25 feet;
- (d) has roofs and walls consisting of at least 70 percent transparent materials, except as permitted pursuant to paragraph (f)(3) of this Section;
 - where exceeding #building# height limits, is set back from the perimeter wall of the #story# immediately below by at least 6 feet on all sides; and
 - has been represented in plans showing:

- #side lot line# is eight feet;
- (3) the #enlarged building# does not contain more than two #dwelling units#;
- (4) that there is no encroachment on the existing #non-complying side yard# except as set forth in this Section; and
- (5) the #enlargement# does not otherwise result in the creation of a new #noncompliance# or in an increase in the degree of #non-compliance#.

Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in paragraphs (a)(1) and (b)(1) of this Section, when an existing #building# has added exterior wall thickness pursuant to Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions in Required Yards or Rear Yard Equivalents), such vertical extensions may align with the location of the finished exterior #building# wall of the existing #building#.

* * *

62-341 Developments on land and platforms

All #developments# on portions of a #zoning lot# landward of the #shoreline# or on #platforms# shall be subject to the height and setback provisions of this Section. However, when the seaward view from all points along the #shoreline# of a Table A HEIGHT AND SETBACK FOR ALL BUILDINGS <u>AND</u> <u>OTHER STRUCTURES</u> IN MEDIUM AND HIGH DENSITY NON-CONTEXTUAL DISTRICTS*

* * *

(d) Medium and high density contextual districts

R6A R6B R7A R7B R7D R7X R8A R8B R8X R9A R9X R10A

C1-6A C1-7A C1-8A C1-8X C1-9A C2-6A C2-7A C2-7X C2-8A C4-2A C4-3A C4-4A C4-5A C4-5D C4-5X C4-6A C4-7A C5-1A C5-2A C6-2A C6-3A C6-4A

In the districts indicated, and in C1 and C2 Districts mapped within such #Residence Districts#, the height and setback regulations of Sections 23-60, 24-50 and 35-24 shall not apply. In lieu thereof, the <u>height and setback regulations set</u> <u>forth in this Section following regulations</u> shall apply:

: * *

62-342 Developments on piers

* * *

(a) Height and setback regulations on #piers#

The height of a #building or other structure# on a

- the area and dimensions of the proposed greenhouse, the location of the existing or proposed #building# upon which the greenhouse will be located, and <u>access to</u> and from the #building# to the greenhouse;
- (2) that the design of the greenhouse incorporates a rainwater collection and reuse system; and
- (3) any portions of the greenhouse dedicated to #accessory# office or storage space, which shall be limited to 20 percent of the floor space of the greenhouse, and shall be exempt from the transparency requirement in paragraph (d) of this Section.

<u>Plans submitted shall include sections and elevations, as</u> necessary to demonstrate compliance with the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Section, as applicable.

No building permits or certificates of occupancy related to the addition of #residences# or other #uses# with sleeping accommodations within the #building# may be issued by the Department of Buildings, unless and until such rooftop greenhouse has been fully dismantled. A Notice of Restrictions shall be recorded for the #zoning lot# providing notice of the certification pursuant to this Section. The form and contents of the legal instrument shall be satisfactory to the Chairperson of the City Planning Commission, and the

filing and recording of such instrument shall be a precondition to the use of such rooftop greenhouse. The recording information for the rooftop greenhouse certification shall be referenced on the first Certificate of Occupancy to be issued after such notice is recorded, as well as all subsequent Certificates of Occupancy, for as long as the rooftop greenhouse remains intact.

* * *

81-252 Permitted obstructions

With the exception of unenclosed balconies conforming to the provisions of Section 23-13 (Balconies), the Except as set forth in this Section, structures which under the provisions of Sections 33-42 or 43-42 (Permitted Obstructions) or 34-11 or 35-11 (General Provisions), are permitted to penetrate a maximum height limit or a #sky exposure plane# shall not be permitted as exceptions to the height limitations, setback requirements or rules for the measurement of #encroachments# or #compensating recesses# set forth in Section 81-26 (Height and Setback Regulations), nor shall they be excluded in determining daylight blockage pursuant to the provisions of Section 81-27 (Alternate Height and Setback Regulations).

The following shall be permitted as exceptions to the height regulations, setback requirements or rules for the measurement of #encroachments# or #compensating recesses# set forth in Section 81-26 (Height and Setback Regulations) and shall be excluded in determining daylight blockage pursuant to the provisions of Section 81-27 (Alternate Height and Setback Regulations).

- (a) <u>Unenclosed balconies conforming to the provisions</u> of Section 23-13 (Balconies); and
- (b) Exterior wall thickness, up to eight inches, where such wall thickness is added to the exterior face of a "building" wall existing on (date of adoption), provided the added wall thickness has a thermal resistance (R-value) of at least 1.5 per inch. Where "buildings" that have added exterior wall thickness pursuant to this Section are "enlarged", such "enlarged" portion may similarly penetrate a maximum height limit in order to align with the exterior walls of the existing "building", provided such "enlargement" contains less "floor area" than the existing "building", and there is no penetration of "floor area" above a maximum height limit.

84-135 Limited height of buildings

For the purposes of this Section, the term "#buildings#" shall include #buildings or other structures#. No portion of any #building# may be built to a height greater than 85 feet above #curb level#, except that:

* *

- (e) Sections 23-62 (Permitted Obstructions) and 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) are hereby made inapplicable. Any portion of a #building# that exceeds an established height limit shall be subject to the following provisions:
 - (1) The following shall not be considered obstructions and may thus penetrate a maximum height limit:
 - (i) Chimneys or flues, with a total width not exceeding 10 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# of a #building# at any level
 - (ii) Elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers and or other #accessory# mechanical equipment (including enclosure walls), provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage times their average height, in feet, shall ed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage at #curb level#, or the #lot coverage# of all ructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building# and the height of all such etions does not exceed 40 feet pursuant to Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions)

<u>3 feet, 6 inches above the accessible level</u> <u>of a roof;</u>

- (viii)Roof thickness, up to eight inches, to
accommodate the addition of insulation,
for #buildings# or portions of #buildings#
constructed prior to (date of adoption).
For a #building# that has added roof
thickness pursuant to this paragraph, an
#enlargement# may align with the
finished roof surface of such #building#,
provided the #enlarged# portion does not
exceed the maximum height limit height
by more than eight inches;
- (ix) Rooftop greenhouses, permitted pursuant to Section 75-01 (Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses);
- (x) Skylights, clerestories or other day lighting devices, not more than four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. Such devices shall be limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 10 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and be located at least eight feet from the #street wall# edge. However, such devices shall not be permitted obstructions above a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
- (xi) Solar energy systems:
 - (1) on the roof of a #building#, up to four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
 - (2) on the roof of a #building#, greater than four feet in height, provided that all such portions above four feet are set back at least six feet from a #street wall#, limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 25 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and do not exceed a height of 15 feet, or when located on a bulkhead or other obstruction pursuant to paragraph (f) of Section 33-42, do not exceed a height of six feet.
 - (3) on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

However, any installation on a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees shall be limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.

- (xii)Vegetated roofs, not more than 3 feet, 6
inches in height excluding vegetation, as
measured from the maximum height
limit, or the finished level of the roof as it
existed on (date of adoption), whichever is
higher. On roofs with slopes greater than
20 degrees, vegetated roofs shall be
limited to a height of 12 inches measured
perpendicular to such roof surface;
- (xiii) Weirs, check dams and other equipment for stormwater management, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher:

3.2 <u>of this Chapter</u>, no portion of a #building#, including permitted obstructions, shall exceed a height of 450 feet above #curb level#.

* *

84-333 Limited height of buildings

The maximum height of any #building or other structure#, or portion thereof, shall not exceed 400 feet on any portion of subzone C-1 shown as a #special height location# in Appendix 3.2 of this Chapter, except that permitted obstructions pursuant to Section 33-42 shall be allowed to penetrate a maximum height limit.

The maximum height of any #building or other structure#, or any portion thereof, located within subzone C-2 shall not exceed 180 feet above #curb level#, except that:

- (a) the maximum height of any #building or other structure#, or portion thereof, shown as a #special height location# shall not exceed the height set forth in Appendix 3.2; and
- (b) Sections 23-62 and 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) are hereby made inapplicable. Any portion of a #building or other structure# that exceeds an established height limit shall be subject to the following provisions:
 - (1) The following shall not be considered obstructions and may this penetrate a maximum height limit:
 - (i) Chimneys or flues, with a total width not exceeding 10 percent of the #aggregate width of street walls# or a #building# at any level;
 - (ii) Decks, and other surfaces for recreational activities, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
 - Elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water (iii) tanks, cooling towers or other accessory mechanical equipment (including enclosure walls), provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage times their average height, in feet, shall not ex ed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #buildings# facing such frontage at #curb level#, or the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions, does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building# and the height of all such obstruction does not exceed 40 feet pursuant to Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions);
 - (iv) Fences, wire, chain link or other transparent type;
 - (v) Flagpoles and aerials;
 - (vi) Parapet walls, not more than four feet high in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. A guardrail with a surface at least 70 percent open or with an opacity no more than 30 percent (as viewed in elevation), shall be permitted above a parapet wall, provided such guardrail is not more than 3 feet, 6 inches above the accessible level of a roof;
 - (vii) Roof thickness, up to eight inches, to accommodate the addition of insulation, for #buildings# or portions of #buildings# constructed prior to (date of adoption). For a #building# that has added roof thickness pursuant to this paragraph, an

- (iii) Decks, and other surfaces for recreational activities, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (iv) External wall thickness, pursuant to Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions)
- (v) Flagpoles and aerials
- (vi) Heliostats and wind turbines energy systems
- (vii) Parapet walls, not more than four feet high in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. A guardrail with a surface at least 70 percent open or with an opacity no more than 30 percent (as viewed in elevation), shall be permitted above a parapet wall, provided such guardrail is not more than

- (xiv) Wire, chain link or other transparent fences;
- (2) The maximum permitted size of enclosure walls surrounding elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers and or other #accessory# mechanical equipment may be increased by authorization of the City Planning Commission, provided the Commission finds that:
- the width of such additional enclosure wall at each #building# face does not exceed 80 percent of the width of the enclosure wall as allowed in paragraph (e)(1) of this Section;
- the additional area of the enclosure wall at each #building# face is not more than 50 percent of the area permitted as-ofright; and
- (iii) the enclosure wall is compatible with the #building# and the urban design goals of the Special District and complements the design by providing a decorative top; and
- in #special height locations# in Appendices 2.2 and

(f)

#enlargement# may align with the finished roof surface of such #building#, provided the #enlarged# portion does not exceed the maximum height limit height by more than eight inches;

- (viii) Rooftop greenhouses, permitted pursuant to Section 75-01 (Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses);
 - Skylights, clerestories or other day lighting devices, not more than four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. Such devices shall be limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 10 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and be located at least eight feet from the #street wall# edge. However, such devices shall not be permitted obstructions above a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
 - <u>Solar energy systems:</u>

<u>(ix)</u>

<u>(x)</u>

(a) on the roof of a #building#, up to four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;

- (b) on the roof of a #building#, greater than four feet in height, provided that all such portions above four feet are set back at least six feet from a #street wall#, limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 25 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and do not exceed a height of 15 feet, or when located on a bulkhead or other obstruction pursuant to paragraph (f) of Section 33-42, do not exceed a height of six feet.
- (c) on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

However, any installation on a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees shall be limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.

- (xi) Vegetated roofs, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height excluding vegetation, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. On roofs with slopes greater than 20 degrees, vegetated roofs shall be limited to a height of 12 inches measured perpendicular to such roof surface;
- (xii) Weirs, check dams and other equipment for stormwater management, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum
- (xiii) height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (2) The maximum permitted size of enclosure walls surrounding elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers and or other #accessory# mechanical equipment may be increased by authorization of the City Planning Commission, provided the Commission finds that:
 - (i) the width of such additional enclosure wall at each #building# face does not exceed 80 percent of the width of the enclosure wall as allowed in paragraph (b)(1) of this Section;
 - (ii) the additional area of the enclosure wall at each #building# face is not more than 50 percent of the area permitted as-ofright; and
 - the enclosure wall is compatible with the #building# and the urban design goals of the Special District and complements the design by providing a decorative top.
- (c) Notwithstanding the above, iIn no event, shall the height of any #building#, including permitted obstructions, exceed 800 feet above #curb level#.

* * *

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings# within Subdistricts A through E, except that elevator or stair bulkheads, water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a maxim height limit provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not e figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage or, the #lot coverage# ed 20 of all such obstructions does not ex percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet. In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

(b) (2) Subdistrict F

In Subdistrict F, the provisions of paragraph (4f) of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall not apply<u>, except that. In lieu thereof, the following</u> shall apply:

(i) #Building# bases and transition heights

For all #building# bases and transition heights, rooftop mechanical structures, including but not limited to elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling ers or other mechanical equipment, and their required enclosures may penetrate a maximum height limit, provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage or, the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not a ed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such ructions does not a ed 40 feet.

(ii) Towers

For all towers, rooftop mechanical equipment, including, but not limited to, elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, ecoling towers or other mechanical equipment, and their required enclosures, may penetrate a maximum height limit. Ffor towers above a height of 350 feet, such rooftop mechanical structures shall comply with the tower top articulation provisions set forth in Section 93-569 (Tower top articulation).

(b) Screening requirements for mechanical equipment

For all #developments# and #enlargements#, all mechanical equipment located on any roof of a #building or other structure# shall be fully enclosed, except that openings in such enclosure shall be permitted only to the extent necessary for ventilation and exhaust.

* * *

Special Height and Setback Regulations in the South of Port Authority Subdistrict E

- #Zoning lots# with Eighth Avenue frontage
 - * * *
 - (2) permitted obstructions, as listed in paragraph (a) of Section 93-41, may penetrate the #sky exposure plane#. In

In Areas A, C and E, all #developments# which are located on a #zoning lot# with frontage along Emmons Avenue, except for a #zoning lot# of less than 8,000 square feet which was in existence as of November 1, 1972, shall provide and maintain a plaza for public use which complies with the following requirements:

* * *

(c) The size of the plaza shall be at least 4,000 square feet in one location and shall not at any point be more than two feet below or five feet above #street# level, with a minimum dimension of 35 feet. At least 15 percent of the plaza area shall be landscaped and planted with trees, except when a #zoning lot# abutting both Dooley Street and Emmons Avenue is #developed#, then such landscaping shall be at least 75 percent of the total plaza area provided with such #development#.

* * * A plaza may include as permitted obstructions, sculptures, kiosks, or open cafes occupying in the aggregate no more than 30 percent of the total plaza area. Ice skating rinks are also allowed as permitted obstructions within such plazas only for the months from October through March, provided the minimum area of such plaza is 7,500 square feet. Exterior wall thickness, awnings and other sun control devices pursuant to Section 37-726 (Permitted Obstructions) shall also be allowed as permitted obstructions.

* *

97-441 Permitted obstructions

(f)

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings# within the Special District, except that the provisions of paragraph (d) shall not apply. In lieu thereof, the following regulations shall apply:

*

Elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a maximum height limit or #sky exposure plane# provided that either:

- (a) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
- (b) for #buildings# at least 120 feet in height, the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet.

In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph $(c)(\underline{1})$ of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

*

*

98-422 Special rooftop regulations

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings or other structures# within the #Special West Chelsea District#, except <u>that as modified as follows:</u>

Permitted Obstructions

(1)Elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a #sky exposure plane# or a maximum height limit provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage or, the #lot coverage# of all ed 20 such obstructions does not exe

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings#., except that elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a maximum height limit, provided that either:

a) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or

b) the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet.

In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(<u>1</u>) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

* * *

93-41 Rooftop Regulations

87-31

Permitted Obstructions

(a) Permitted obstructions

(1) Subdistricts A, B, C, D and E

addition, a dormer, as listed in paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621, may penetrate the #sky exposure plane#.

* *

93-77

93-55

(a)

Design Criteria for Public Access Areas in Subdistrict F

Public access areas in Subdistrict F shall be comprised of publicly accessible open spaces, private streets and pedestrian ways.

(a) Design criteria

* * *

(12) Canopies, awnings, and marquees <u>and</u> <u>sun control devices</u>

> Where #buildings# front onto publicly accessible open spaces, private streets and pedestrian ways, canopies, awnings, and marquees and sun control devices shall be permitted pursuant to the standards set forth in paragraph (c) of Section 37-726 (Permitted obstructions).

> > * * *

94-072 Special plaza provisions percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet.

<u>Ddormers</u> may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(<u>1</u>) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts). However, dormers may not exceed the maximum #building# height in Subareas C, F and G where the maximum base height and maximum #building# height are the same.

(b) Ventilation and mechanical equipment

All mechanical equipment located within 15 feet of the level of the #High Line bed# that is within 25 feet of the #High Line#, measured horizontally, or within the #High Line frontage#, as applicable, shall be screened and buffered with no intake or exhaust fans or vents facing directly onto the #High Line#.

101-221 Permitted Obstructions

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings# within the #Special Downtown

* *

Brooklyn District#, except that elevator or stair bulkheads, water tanks, cooling towers or other #accessory# roof echanical equipment (including enclosures) may penetrate a maximum height limit, provided the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such ructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage or, the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building# and the height of all such uctions does not exceed 40 feet. In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

104-322

Permitted Obstructions

* * *

* * *

- (a) Chimneys, flues, intake and exhaust vents limited to a #lot coverage# of 900 square feet with neither length nor width of any single such obstruction, nor the total length or width of all such obstructions, greater than 30 feet;
- (b) Decks, and other surfaces for recreational activities, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (d) Elevator and stair bulkheads to a maximum height of 15 feet above the permitted maximum height of mechanical equipment;
- (e) Flagpoles or aerials;
- (f) House of worship towers, ornamental, having no #floor area# in portion of tower penetrating such #sky exposure plane#;
- (g) Parapet walls, not more than four feet high in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. A guardrail with a surface at least 70 percent open or with an opacity no more than 30 percent (as viewed in elevation), shall be permitted above a parapet wall, provided such guardrail is not more than 3 feet, 6 inches above the accessible level of a roof;
- (<u>h</u>) Pipes and supporting structures;
- (i) Railings;
- Roof thickness, up to eight inches, to accommodate the addition of insulation, for #buildings# or portions of #buildings# constructed prior to (date of adoption). For a #building# that has added roof thickness pursuant to this paragraph, an #enlargement# may align with the finished roof surface of such #building#, provided the #enlarged# portion does not exceed the maximum height limit height by more than eight inches;
- (k) Rooftop greenhouses, permitted pursuant to Section 75-01 (Certification for Rooftop Greenhouses);
- Skylights, clerestories or other day lighting devices, not more than four feet in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. Such devices shall be limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 10 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and be located at least eight feet from the #street wall# edge. However, such devices shall not be permitted obstructions above a roof with a slope greater than 20 degrees;
- (m) Solar energy systems:
 - (1) on the roof of a #building#, up to four feet in height, as measured from the

Spires or belfries;

<u>(n)</u>

107-223

- (o) Vegetated roofs, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height excluding vegetation, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher. On roofs with slopes greater than 20 degrees,
- (p) vegetated roofs shall be limited to a height of 12 inches measured perpendicular to such roof surface;
- (q) Weirs, check dams and other equipment for stormwater management, not more than 3 feet, 6 inches in height, as measured from the maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;
- (<u>r</u>) Window washing equipment <u>mounted on the roof;</u>

* * *

- (s) Wire, chain link or other transparent fences.

Permitted obstruction in designated open space

The following shall not be considered as obstructions when located in #designated open space#:

- (a) Awnings and other sun control devices pursuant to Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions)
- (b) Balconies, unenclosed, subject to the provisions of Section 23-13; or
- (bc) Eaves, gutters or downspouts projecting into such #designated open space# not more than 16 inches; or
- (ed) Fences or walls, conditioned upon certification by the City Planning Commission that:
 - such fences or walls will not obstruct or preclude public access or circulation of pedestrians, cyclists or horseback riders through the public easement within #designated open space#; and
 - (2) the location, size, design and materials of such fences or walls are appropriate to the character of the #designated open space#.
- (e) Exterior wall thickness, pursuant to Section 23-44 (Permitted Obstructions)
- (f) Solar energy systems on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects;

No #accessory# off-street parking facilities shall be permitted in #designated open space#. No #building or other structure# shall be erected in #designated open space# except as permitted by the provisions of Section 107-221 (Active recreational activities). Any existing #building or other structure# located within the #designated open space# on September 11, 1975, and not complying with the provisions of this Section or the other Sections specified in the preceding paragraph, shall not be #enlarged# but may be continued as a #non-conforming use# or #non-complying building# subject to the applicable provisions of Article V (Non-Conforming Uses and Non-Complying Buildings) in accordance with the underlying district regulations.

* * *

111-20 SPECIAL BULK PROVISIONS FOR AREAS A1 THROUGH A7 * * *

(d) Area A4, A5, A6 and A7

Except as set forth herein, the bulk regulations of the underlying district shall apply.

(2) The provisions of Section 33-42
 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all

Section 33 42 shall not apply. In lieu thereof, the following regulations shall apply:

Elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures) may exceed a maximum height limit provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage or, the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot eoverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 feet. In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

* * * 115-231 Permitted obstructions

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings# within the #Special Downtown Jamaica District#, except <u>that the provisions of paragraph (d) of Section 33 42 shall not apply. In lieu thereof, the following regulations shall apply:</u>

Elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures) may penetrate a maximum height limit or #sky exposure plane#, provided that either:

- (a) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
- (b) for #buildings# at least 120 feet in height, the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet.

*

In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph $(c)(\underline{1})$ of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

* * 116-231 Special rooftop regulations

(a)

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings or other structures# in the #Special Stapleton Waterfront District#, except <u>that</u> the provisions of paragraph (d) of Section 33-42 shall not apply. In lieu thereof, the following regulations shall apply:

Elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures) may exceed a maximum height limit provided that either:

- the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
- (b) the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 feet.

maximum height limit, or the finished level of the roof as it existed on (date of adoption), whichever is higher;

- (2) on the roof of a #building#, greater than four feet in height, provided that all such portions above four feet are set back at least six feet from a #street wall#, limited to a #lot coverage# not greater than 25 percent of the #lot coverage# of the roof and do not exceed:
 - (i) <u>a height of 15 feet; and</u>
 - (iii) when located on a bulkhead or other obstruction pursuant to paragraph (d) of this Section, a height of six feet;
- (3) on walls existing on (date of adoption), projecting no more than 10 inches and occupying no more than 20 percent of the surface area of the #building# wall (as viewed in elevation) from which it projects.

<u>However, any installation on a roof with a slope</u> greater than 20 degrees shall be limited to 18 inches in height, as measured perpendicular to the roof surface.

#buildings#, except that eleve bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling , or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a maximum height limit provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage or, the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet. In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

* * *

114-121 Special rooftop regulations

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings or other structures# in R6A, R6B, R7A, R7B, C4-2A and C8-2 Districts in the #Special Bay Ridge District#, except that the provisions of paragraph (d) of

In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph $(c)(\underline{1})$ of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

* *

121-32

Height of Street Walls and Maximum Building Height

- * * *
- (b) Maximum #building# height
 - * * *
 - (2)

permitted obstructions, as listed in paragraph (a) of Section 93-41, may penetrate the #sky exposure plane# and the height limit of 250 feet. In addition, a dormer, as listed in paragraph (c)(<u>1</u>) of Section 23-62<u>1</u>, may penetrate the #sky exposure plane#.

125-31 Rooftop Regulations

a) Permitted obstructions

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings# within

*

*

the #Special Southern Hunters Point District#, except that elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a maximum height limit, provided that either:

- (1) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
- (2) the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet. In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in
- $\begin{array}{ll} (3) & \mbox{accordance with the provisions of} \\ & \mbox{paragraph}\left(c\right)(\underline{1}) \mbox{ of Section 23-621} \\ & \mbox{(Permitted obstructions in certain} \\ & \mbox{districts}). \end{array}$

(b) Screening requirements for mechanical equipment

For all #developments# and #enlargements#, all mechanical equipment located on any roof of a #building or other structure# shall be fully enclosed, except that openings in such enclosure shall be permitted only to the extent necessary for ventilation and exhaust.

128-31 Rooftop Regulations

The provisions of this Section shall apply to all #buildings# in C4 2 Districts within the Upland and Waterfront Subdistricts.

* *

(a) Permitted obstructions

The provisions of Section 33-42 (<u>Permitted</u> <u>Obstructions</u>) shall apply to all #buildings# <u>in C4-2</u> <u>Districts within the Upland and Waterfront</u> <u>Subdistricts</u>, except that elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a maximum height limit, provided that either:

- (1) the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage, times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of the #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage; or
- (2) the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot coverage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet. In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts).

(b) Screening requirements for mechanical equipment

For all #developments# and #enlargements#, and #conversions# of #non-residential buildings# to #residences#, all mechanical equipment located on any roof of a #building or other structure# shall be fully enclosed, except that openings in such enclosure shall be permitted only to the extent necessary for ventilation and exhaust.

* * * 131-40 HEIGHT AND SETBACK REGULATIONS enclosed, except that openings in such enclosure shall be permitted only to the extent necessary for ventilation and exhaust.

> * * * BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN Nos. 5, 6 & 7 *MILL BASIN* No. 5

> > C 120108 ZMK

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by NYC Department of Small Business Services pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter, for the amendment of the Zoning Map, Section Nos. 29a and 29c, changing from a C3 District to a C8-1 District property bounded by a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line of Flatbush Avenue*

CD 18

distant 1290 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of Flatbush Avenue* and the northerly street line of Shore Parkway, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Flatbush Avenue*, a line at an angle of 42 degrees to Flatbush Avenue* and passing through a point on the northeasterly street line of Flatbush Avenue* distant 1290 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of Flatbush Avenue* and the northerly street line of Shore Parkway, a line 400 feet northeasterly of Flatbush Avenue*, a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line of Flatbush Avenue* distant 420 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of Flatbush Avenue* and the northerly street line of Shore Parkway, and Flatbush Avenue*, as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated November 28, 2011.

*Note: a portion of Flatbush Avenue is proposed to be narrowed under a concurrent related application (C 070512 MMK) for a change in the City Map.

No. 6 C 070512 MMK

CD 18 C 070512 MMH IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of Small Business Services pursuant to Sections 1302, 197-c and 199 of the New York City Charter and Section 5-430 *et seq.* of the New York City Administrative Code for an amendment to the City Map involving:

- the narrowing, by elimination, discontinuance and closing, of a portion of Flatbush Avenue between Avenue U and Pelican Street;
- the elimination, discontinuance and closing of Marginal Street, Wharf or Place bounded by Flatbush Avenue, Shore Parkway and Mill Basin*; and
- the adjustment of grades necessitated thereby,

including authorization for any disposition or acquisition of real property related thereto, in accordance with Map Nos. Z-2703 and Z-2704, dated July 30, 2008 and signed by the Borough President.

* This change to Marginal Street, Wharf or Place, where such Marginal Street, Wharf or Place is shown on any existing plans for the water front or portion thereof, shall be incorporated into the City Map.

No. 7

CD 18 C 120111 PPK IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the NYC Department of Small Business Services (SBS), pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter, for disposition to the New York City Economic Development Corporation (EDC) of city-owned property located at 2875 Flatbush Avenue (Block 8591, p/o Lot 100, p/o Lot 125, and p/o Lot 175), which includes the disposition of an easement over p/o Lot 100 and a restriction prohibiting Use Group 16 on Block 8591, p/o Lot 100, p/o Lot 125 and p/o Lot 175.

BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN No. 8

EAST 10TH STREET HISTORIC DISTRICT N 120184 HKM

CD 3 N 120184 HKM IN THE MATTER OF a communication dated January 26, 2012, from the Executive Director of the Landmarks Preservation Commission regarding the landmark of 323 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property lines of 323 to 339 East 10th Street, southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 339 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property lines of 341 to 345 East 10th Street to the western curbline of Avenue B, southerly along the western curbline of Avenue B to its intersection with the northern curbline of East 10th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of East 10th Street to the point of the beginning.

YVETTE V. GRUEL, Calendar Officer City Planning Commission 22 Reade Street, Room 2E New York, New York 10007 Telephone (212) 720-3370

f15-29

COMMUNITY BOARDS

PUBLIC HEARINGS

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF THE BRONX

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 04 - Tuesday, February 28, 2012 at 6:00 P.M., Bronx Museum of the Arts, 1040 Grand Concourse, Bronx, NY

Fiscal Year 2013 Perliminary Budget public hearing.

```
f22-28
```

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF QUEENS

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 08 - Monday, February 27, 2012 at 7:30 P.M., Silvercrest Senior Building, 86-19 144th Street (Community Rm.), Briarwood, NY

#C 110042ZSQ

Silvercrest Senior Housing: IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by Silvercrest Center for Nursing and Rehabilitation, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit, to permit the allowable community facility floor area ratio of Section 24-11 and to apply to a 6-story non-profit institution on property located at 144-45 87th Avenue (a.k.a. 86-19 144th Street).

f21-27

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 10 - Monday, February 27, 2012 at 7:15 P.M., Knights of Columbus, 1305 86th Street, Brooklyn, NY

A public hearing on Capital and Expense Budget for Fiscal Year 2013.

f21-27

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 09 - Tuesday, February 28, 2012 at 7:00 P.M., Middle School 61 (Auditorium), 400 Empire Boulevard, Brooklyn, NY

A public hearing on the Fiscal Year 2013 Preliminary Budget.

f22-28

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

Rooftop Regulations (a) Permitted obstructions

131-41

The provisions of Section 33-42 (Permitted Obstructions) shall apply to all #buildings# within the #Special Coney Island District#, except that elevator or stair bulkheads, roof water tanks, cooling towers or other mechanical equipment (including enclosures), may penetrate a maximum height limit provided that either the product, in square feet, of the #aggregate width of street walls# of such obstructions facing each #street# frontage. times their average height, in feet, shall not exceed a figure equal to eight times the width, in feet, of #street wall# of the #building# facing such frontage or, the #lot coverage# of all such obstructions does not exceed 20 percent of the #lot rerage# of the #building#, and the height of all such obstructions does not exceed 40 feet. In addition, dormers may penetrate a maximum base height in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(1) of Section 23-621 (Permitted obstructions in certain districts) only in the Mermaid Avenue Subdistrict.

(b)

Screening requirements for mechanical equipment

For all #developments# and #enlargements#, all mechanical equipment located on any roof of a #building or other structure# shall be fully designation of the East 10th Street Historic District, designated by the Landmarks Preservation Commission on January 17, 2012 (List No. 451, LP No. 2492). The district boundaries are:

The East 10th Street Historic District consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the intersection of the northern curbline of East 10th Street and the eastern curbline of Avenue A, continuing northerly along the eastern curbline of Avenue A to its intersection with a line extending westerly from northern property line of 293 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property line of 293 East 10th Street, northerly along a portion of the western property line of 295 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property lines of 295 to 299 East 10th Street, southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 299 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property lines of 301 to 303 East 10th Street and a portion of the northern property line of 305 East 10th Street, northerly along a portion of the western property line of 305 East 10th Street, easterly along a potion of the northern property line of 305 East 10th Street and the northern property line of 307 East 10th Street, southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 307 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property line of 309 East 10th Street, southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 309 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property lines of 311 to 319 East 10th Street, southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 319 East 10th Street, easterly along the northern property line of 321 East 10th Street, northerly along a portion of the western property line

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 12 - Monday, February 27, 2012 at 6:30 P.M., Community Board 12 Office, 5910 13th Avenue, Brooklyn, NY

BSA# 359-01-BZ

500214th Avenue

Application filed pursuant to Sections 72-01 and 72-22 of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York as amended to herein as the Zoning Resolution.

12 Dahill Road, Brooklyn, NY

This application is filed pursuant to Section 72-21 of the Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, as amended to waive Sections 23-146 (c)(d), to allow the construction of a 3rd floor on an existing residential building.

f21-27

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 16 - Tuesday, February 28, 2012 at 7:00 P.M., Brownsville Multi Service Center, 444 Thomas S. Boyland Street, Brooklyn, NY

Comments on the FY 2013 Capital and Expense Budget requests.

f22-28

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by **Community Boards:**

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 02 - Monday, February 27, 2012 at 6:00 P.M., Long Island University - LLC Room 515, (Flatbush and DeKalb Avenues), Brooklyn, NY

Public Hearing

To provide the public with the opportunity to comment on the Preliminary Budget for FY 2013.

f21-27

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

BOROUGH OF THE BRONX

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 10 - Wednesday, February 29, 2012 at 7:30 P.M., Community Board 10 Office, 3165 East Tremont Avenue, Bronx, NY

Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2013, residents of the Board service areas are encouraged to attend this public hearing to learn how the City's Capital and Expense Budgets will affect their communities.

f23-29

BOARD OF EDUCATION RETIREMENT SYSTEM

MEETING

The next regular meeting of the Board of Education Retirement System (BERS) of the City of New York Trustees will meet on Thursday, March 1, 2012. This meeting will be held at Brooklyn Technical High School of Fashion Industries, located at 29 Fort Greene Place, Brooklyn, New York 11217.

The meeting will convene at 4:30 P.M. An agenda will be distributed to BERS Trustees prior to the meeting.

If you need more information, please contact Noro Healy at (718) 935-4529 or email: nhealy@bers.nyc.gov f23-29

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

INVESTMENT MEETING

Please be advised that the next Investment Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the New York City Employees Retirement System has been scheduled for Tuesday, February 28, 2012 at 9:30 A.M. to be held at the New York City Employees' Retirement System, 335 Adams Street, 22nd Floor Boardroom, Brooklyn, NY 11201-3751.

f21-27

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to the provisions of Title 25, chapter 3 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York (Sections 25-307, 25-308, 25,309, 25-313, 25-318, 25-320) (formerly Chapter 8-A, Sections 207-6.0, 207-7.0, 207-12.0, 207-17.0, and 207-19.0), on Tuesday, March 6, 2012 at 9:30 A.M. in the morning of that day, a public hearing will be held in the Conference Room at 1 Centre Street, 9th Floor, Borough of Manhattan with respect to the following properties and then followed by a public meeting. Any person requiring reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the hearing or attend the meeting should call or write the Landmarks Commission no later than five (5) business days before the hearing or meeting.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-6141 - Block 583, lot 29-32 Morton Street - Greenwich Village Historic District A utilitarian building designed by Hobart B. Upjohn and built in 1920. Application is to enlarge window openings at the penthouse. Community District 2.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-8128 - Block 795, lot 44-641 6th Avenue - Ladies' Mile Historic District A Beaux Arts style department store building designed by William H. Hume & Son and built in 1900-02. Application is to alter the facade, install new storefronts and louvers, and install a marquee. Community District 4.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-4961 - Block 823, lot 65-40 West 22nd Street - Ladies' Mile Historic District A neo-Renaissance style store and loft building designed by Korn & Zipkes and built in 1909-10. Application is to install a marquee. Community District 5.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-3901 - Block 821, lot 1-636 6th Avenue, aka 56 West 19th Street - Ladies' Mile Historic District

A neo-Renaissance style store building designed by Buchman and Deisler and built in 1896. Application is to construct a rooftop addition. Zoned C6-2A & C6-4A. Community District 5.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-7711 - Block 895, lot 34-141-147 East 39th Street, aka 145 East 39th Street - The Allerton 39th Street House - Individual Landmark A Northern Italian Renaissance style hotel designed by Arthur Loomis Harmon and built in 1916-18. Application is to install marquees at the front and side entrances and illuminated signage, and replace windows. Community District 6.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-7901 - Block 1296, lot 46-150 East 42nd Street - Socony-Mobil Building - Individual Landmark

An International Style skyscraper designed by Harrison & Abramowitz and John B. Peterlin, built in 1953-56. Application is to replace ground floor infill. Community District 6.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-4278 - Block 1120, lot 38-12 West 68th Street - Upper West Side/Central Park West Historic District A Queen Anne style house designed by Louis Thouvard and built in 1895, with an attached studio building designed by Edwin C. Georgi and built in 1925. Application is to demolish a rooftop addition constructed without Landmarks Preservation Commission permits, and alter the facade and construct a new rooftop addition. Zoned R8 and R10A. Community District 7.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-5665 - Block 1407, lot 57-1016 Lexington Avenue - Upper East Side Historic District -Extension

A neo-Grec style rowhouse designed by Thom and Wilson and built in 1880-81 with later alterations. Application is to legalize the installation of an awning without Landmarks Preservation Commission permits. Community District 8.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-1671 - Block 1720, lot 108-17 West 120th Street - Mount Morris Park Historic District A rowhouse designed by Alfred Barlow and built in 1887-88.

f22-m6

f10-28

MAYOR'S OFFICE OF OPERATIONS

■ PUBLIC MEETING

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

The Report and Advisory Board Review Commission will hold its first organizational meeting to discuss its Chartermandated responsibilities and initial stages of its work. While public testimony will not be received at this meeting, the Commission will afford opportunities for the public's input at later dates.

BOARD OF STANDARDS AND APPEALS

PUBLIC HEARINGS

MARCH 6, 2012, 10:00 A.M.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a public hearing, Tuesday morning, **March 6, 2012, 10:00 A.M.**, at 40 Rector Street, 6th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10006, on the following matters:

SPECIAL ORDER CALENDAR

433-65-BZ

APPLICANT - Andrea Claire/Peter Hirshman, for 15 West 72 Owner Corporation, owner; Mafair Garage Corporation,

SUBJECT – Application July 22, 2010 – Extension of Term for transient parking in an accessory parking garage of a multiple dwelling building which expired on June 22, 2010. R8B/R10A zoning district.

PREMISES AFFECTED – 15 West 72nd Street, 200'-2½ west of Central Park West 72nd Street, Block 1125, Lot 24, Borough of Manhattan.

COMMUNITY BOARD #7M

997-84-BZ

APPLICANT – Akerman Senterfitt, for 222 Union Associates, owner; Central Parking System of New York, Inc., lessee. SUBJECT – Application February 6, 2012 – Extension of Time to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for an existing six story public parking garage with an automobile rental establishment which expired on June 4, 2008. R6A zoning

district. PREMISES AFFECTED – 800 Union Street, southside of Union Street between 6th and 7th Avenues, Block 957, Lot 29, Borough of Brooklyn. COMMUNITY BOARD #6BK

271-90-BZ APPLICANT – Rothkrug Rothkrug & Spector LLP, for EPT Realty Corp., owner. SUBJECT – Application October 11, 2011 – Pursuant to (ZR 11-411) an Extension of Term of a previously granted Variance (72-21) for the continued operation of a UG16 Automotive Repair shop with used car sales which expired on October 29, 2011. R7X/C2-3 zoning district. PREMISES AFFECTED –68-01/5 Queens Boulevard, Partheast corper of intersection of Queens Boulevard and northeast corner of intersection of Queens Boulevard and 68th Street, Block 1348, Lot 53, Borough of Queens. COMMUNITY BOARD #2Q

APPEALS CALENDAR

155-11-A

APPLICANT - Sheldon Lobel, P.C., for 10 Stratford Associates, owners.

SUBJECT - Application October 3, 2011 - Appeal seeking a common law vested right to continue construction commenced under the prior R6 zoning. R3X zoning district. PREMISES AFFECTED - 480 Stratford Road, west side of Stratford Road, through to Coney Island Avenue between Dorchester and Ditmas Avenue, Block 5174, Lot 16, Borough of Brooklyn.

COMMUNITY BOARD #14BK

162-11-A

APPLICANT - Akerman Senterfitt, LLP, for 179 Ludlow Holding LLC, owners.

SUBJECT - Application October 17, 2011- Appeal seeking a determination that the owner has acquired a common law vested right to continue construction commenced under prior C6-1 zoning district regulations. C4-4A Zoning district. PREMISES AFFECTED - 179 Ludlow Street, western side of Ludlow on a block bounded by Houston to the north and Stanton to the south, Block 412, Lot 26, Borough of

Manhattan. COMMUNITY BOARD #3M

MARCH 6, 2012, 1:30 P.M.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a public hearing, Tuesday afternoon, **March 6, 2012, at 1:30 P.M**., at 40 Rector Street, 6th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10006, on the following matters:

ZONING CALENDAR

195-11-BZ APPLICANT - Law Office of Fredrick A. Becker, for Harriet Mandalaoui and David Mandalaoui, owners.

SUBJECT – Application December 22, 2011 – Special Permit (§73-622) for the enlargement of an existing single family

home contrary to floor area, open space and lot coverage (\$23-141(b)); side yard (\$23-461) and less than the required rear yard (§23-47). R3-2 zoning district. PREMISES AFFECTED – 2070 East 21st Street, west side of

East 21st Street, between Avenue S and Avenue T, Block

Application is to legalize window replacement and facade alterations performed without Landmarks Preservation Commission permits. Community District 10.

BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN 12-4580 - Block 2103, lot 65-151 Lafayette Avenue - Fort Greene Historic District A transitional French Second Empire style rowhouse designed by Thomas H. Brush and built in 1874. Application is to alter the entrance. Community District 2.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-6491 - Block 215, lot 1-10 Hubert Street - Tribeca North Historic District A Romanesque Revival style store and loft building designed by Julius Kastner and built in 1892. Application is to construct a rooftop addition, remove the fire-escape, alter ground floor window and door openings, and install storefront infill. Zoned C6-2A/TM. Community District 1.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-7630 - Block 501, lot 15-130 Prince Street - SoHo-Cast Iron Historic Distict A garage building built in 1925. Application is to alter the ground floor and install storefront infill. Zoned M1-5A. Community District 2.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN 12-5373 - Block 572, lot 45-5 West 8th Street - Greenwich Village Historic District A neo-Classical style apartment building designed by Hugo Kafka, and built in 1900-02. Application is to enlarge a bulkhead, install rooftop mechanicals equipment, construct an addition, install awnings, a canopy and storefront infill. Zoned C4-5. Community District 2.

- DATE: Tuesday, February 28, 2012 TIME: 3:00 P.M.

.

•

PLACE: Department of City Planning, Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, Manhattan

In November 2010, New York City voters approved a ballot proposal creating the Report and Advisory Board Review Commission to review and assess the continued usefulness of certain requirements for reports and advisory boards (City Charter Section 1113). The Commission is chaired by the Director of the Mayor's Office of Operations and consists of representatives from the City Council, the Office of the Corporation Counsel, the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), and the Department of Information Technology and Telecommunications (DOITT).

Individuals requesting sign language interpreters or other accommodations for a disability at the public meetings should contact Rosa Reinat by emailing rreinat@cityhall.nyc.gov or calling (212) 788-1400.

Contact: Mayor's Press Office (212) 788-2958

Lot 39 Boro ı of Brooklyn **COMMUNITY BOARD #15BK**

4-12-BZ APPLICANT – Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel, LLP, for 56th and Park (NY) Owner, LLC. SUBJECT - Application January 11, 2012 - Special Permit (§73-36) to permit the operation of a physical culture establishment. C5-3/C5-2.5 (MID) zoning district. PREMISES AFFECTED - 432-440 Park Avenue, northwest corner of Park Avenue and East 56th Street, Block 1292, Lot 33, 43, 45, 46, Borough of Manhattan. **COMMUNITY BOARD #5M**

Jeff Mulligan, Executive Director

f24-27

TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to law, that the following proposed revocable consents, have been scheduled for a public hearing by the New York City Department of Transportation. The hearing will be held at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, Room 945 commencing at 2:00 P.M. on Wednesday, February 29, 2012. Interested parties can obtain copies of proposed agreements or request sign-language interpreters

(with at least seven days prior notice) at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor SW, New York, NY 10041, or by calling (212) 839-6550.

#1 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing 95-97 Horatio LLC to construct, maintain and use an entrance detail on the south sidewalk of Gansevoort Street, between West and Washington Streets, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2022:

For the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2012-\$15,027/annum

For the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 - \$15,464 For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$15,901 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$16,338 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$16,775 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$17,212 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$17,649 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$18,086 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$18,523 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$18,960 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$19,397

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$19,400 and the filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$500,000/\$2,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$200,000.

#2 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Anne Christensen to continue to maintain and use an entrance stoop on the south sidewalk of East 7th Street between Avenue D and Avenue C, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2021 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2021 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,500 and the filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$250,000/\$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$100,000.

#3 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing ExxonMobil Oil Corporation to continue to maintain and use a tunnel under and across Kingsland Avenue, south of Greenpoint Avenue, and a conduit under and across Monitor Street, south of Greenpoint Avenue, in the Borough of Brooklyn. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2022 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

For the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2012 \$10,012/annum

For the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 - \$10,303 For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$10,594 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$10,885 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$11,176 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$11,467 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$11,758 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$12,049 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$12,340 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$12,631 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$12,922

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$6,000 and the filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$1,250,000/\$5,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$200,000.

#4 In the matter of a modification of a revocable consent authorizing the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey to maintain and use bollards on the north sidewalk of 40th Street, north and south sidewalk of 41st Street, on the south sidewalk of 42nd Street between Eighth and Ninth Avenues, on the west sidewalk of Eighth Avenue and on the east sidewalk of Ninth Avenue between 40th and 42nd Streets, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed modified revocable consent is for a term of twenty three years from the date of approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2035.

9th Floor, Room 945 commencing at 2:00 P.M. on Wednesday, March 14, 2012. Interested parties can obtain copies of proposed agreements or request sign-language interpreters (with at least seven days prior notice) at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor SW, New York, NY 10041, or by calling (212) 839-6550.

#1 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing New York University to continue to maintain and use conduits under and across Waverly Place, Washington Place and West 4th Street, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2022 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 - \$26,922 For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$27,705 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$28,488 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$29,271 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$30,054 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$30,837 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$31,620 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$32,403 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$33,186 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$33,969

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$4,000 and the filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$250,000/\$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$100,000.

#2 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing The Plaza Condominium to continue to maintain and use two lampposts, together with electrical conduits, on the south sidewalk of West 59th Street, west of Grand Army Plaza, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2020 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period from July 1, 2010 to the date of approval - $\ensuremath{\mathsf{-}}$ \$1.025/annum

From the date of approval to June 30, 2020 - \$300/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,700 and the filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$250,000/\$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$100,000

#3 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing The Therapy and Learning Center, Inc. to continue to maintain and use an accessibility ramp and stairs on the east sidewalk of Eighth Avenue, north of 18th Street, and a fenced-in area on the north sidewalk of 18th Street, east of Eighth Avenue, in the Borough of Brooklyn. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2022 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 - \$1,888 For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$1,941 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$1,994 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$2,047 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$2,100 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$2,153 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$2,206 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$2,259 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$2,312 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$2,365

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$3,500and the filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$500,000/\$2000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$200,000.

#4 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Timothy de llly and Victoria Touchberry to continue to maintain and use a fenced-in area on the west sidewalk of St. Nicholas Avenue, north of 146th Street, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2019 and provides among others terms and condition for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

For the period from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2019 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$1,000

until 9:00 A.M. The auction begins at 9:00 A.M.

LOCATION: 570 Kent Avenue, Brooklyn, NY (in the Brooklyn Navy Yard between Taylor and Clymer Streets).

A listing of vehicles to be offered for sale in the next auction can be viewed on our website on the Friday prior to the sale date at:

http://www.nyc.gov/autoauction or http://www.nyc.gov/autoauctions.

Terms and Conditions of Sale can also be viewed at this site.

For further information, please call (718) 417-2155 or (718) 625-1313.

f22-m7

SALE BY SEALED BID

SALE OF: 3 LOTS OF MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT, UNUSED.

S.P.#: 12014

DUE: March 6, 2012

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. DCAS, Division of Municipal Supply Services, 18th Floor Bid Room, Municipal Building, New York, NY 10007. For sales proposal contact Gladys Genoves-McCauley (718) 417-2156.

f22-m6

POLICE

OWNERS ARE WANTED BY THE PROPERTY CLERK DIVISION OF THE NEW YORK CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT.

The following listed property is in the custody, of the Property Clerk Division without claimants.

Recovered, lost, abandoned property, property obtained from prisoners, emotionally disturbed, intoxicated and deceased persons; and property obtained from persons incapable of caring for themselves

Motor vehicles, boats, bicycles, business machines, cameras, calculating machines, electrical and optical property, furniture, furs, handbags, hardware, jewelry, photographic equipment, radios, robes, sound systems, surgical and musical instruments, tools, wearing apparel, communications equipment, computers, and other miscellaneous articles.

INQUIRIES

*

*

Inquiries relating to such property should be made in the Borough concerned, at the following office of the Property Clerk.

FOR MOTOR VEHICLES

- (All Boroughs): College Auto Pound, 129-01 31 Avenue,
- *
- College Point, NY 11354, (718) 445-0100 Gowanus Auto Pound, 29th Street and 2nd Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11212, (718) 832-3852 Erie Basin Auto Pound, 700 Columbia Street, Brooklyn, NY 11231, (718) 246-2029

FOR ALL OTHER PROPERTY

- Manhattan 1 Police Plaza, New York, NY 10038, (212) 374-4925. *

- 10038, (212) 374-4925. Brooklyn 84th Precinct, 301 Gold Street, Brooklyn, NY 11201, (718) 875-6675. Bronx Property Clerk 215 East 161 Street, Bronx, NY 10451, (718) 590-2806. Queens Property Clerk 47-07 Pearson Place, Long Island City, NY 11101, (718) 433-2678. Staten Island Property Clerk 1 Edgewater Plaza, Staten Island, NY 10301, (718) 876-8484.

j1-d31

PROCUREMENT

"Compete To Win" More Contracts! Thanks to a new City initiative - "Compete to Win" - the NYC Department of Small Business Services offers a new set of FREE services to help create more opportunities for minority and women-owned businesses to compete, connect and grow their business with the City. With NYC Construction Loan, Technical Assistance, NYC Construction Mentorship, Bond Readiness, and NYC Teaming services, the City will be able to help even more small businesses than before.

There shall be no compensation required for this revocable consent

there shall be no security deposit and filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$250,000/\$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$100.000.

#5 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Ray Mortenson and Jean Wardle to continue to maintain and use a stoop and a fenced-in area on the north sidewalk of Charles Street, west of West 4th Street, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2022 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2022 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$3,500 and filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$250,000/1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$100,000.

f8-29

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to law, that the following proposed revocable consents, have been scheduled for a public hearing by the New York City Department of Transportation. The hearing will be held at 55 Water Street, and filing of an insurance policy in the minimum amount of \$250,000/\$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence in the aggregate amount of \$100,000.

f23-m14

PROPERTY DISPOSITION

CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

MUNICIPAL SUPPLY SERVICES

SALE BY AUCTION

PUBLIC AUCTION SALE NUMBER 12001-M

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a public auction of City fleet vehicles consisting of cars, vans, light duty vehicles, trucks, heavy equipment and miscellaneous automotive equipment to be held on Wednesday, March 7, 2012 (SALE NUMBER 12001-M). Viewing is on auction day only from 8:30 A.M.

• Win More Contracts at nyc.gov/competetowin

"The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed to the City's prestige as a global destination. The contracting opportunities for construction/construction services and construction-related services that appear in the individual agency listings below reflect that commitment to excellence.³

ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES

SOLICITATIONS

Human / Client Services

NON-SECURE DETENTION GROUP HOMES

Negotiated Acquisition – Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN# 06811N0004 – DUE 05-31-13 AT 2:00 P.M .M. The Administration for Children's Services, Division of Youth and Family Justice is soliciting applications from

organizations interested in operating non-secure detention group homes in New York City. This is an open-ended solicitation; applications will be accepted on a rolling basis until 2:00 P.M. on 5/31/13.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Administration for Children's Services, 150 William Street, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10038. Patricia Chabla (212) 341-3505; Fax: (212) 341-3625;

patricia.chabla@dfa.state.ny.us

j1-n14

• f27

CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

MUNICIPAL SUPPLY SERVICES

AWARDS

Goods

PIPE, COPPER TUBING, RIGID AND FLEXIBLE -Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 8571200237 – AMT: \$483,179.75 – TO: A and M Wholesale Hardware Co. A

and M Industrial Supply Co., 1414 Campbell Street, P.O. Box 1044, Rahway, NJ 07065.
 MEDICAL SUPPLIES FOR FDNY EMS RE-AD –

Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 8571100544 – AMT: \$49,475.00 – TO: Boro Health Care Supply Inc., 101 Clay Street, Brooklyn, NY 11222.

VENDOR LISTS

Goods

EQUIPMENT FOR DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION -In accordance with PPB Rules, Section 2.05(c)(3), an acceptable brands list will be established for the following equipment for the Department of Sanitation:

A. Collection Truck Bodies

B. Collection Truck Cab Chassis

C. Major Component Parts (Engine, Transmission, etc.)

Applications for consideration of equipment products for inclusion on the acceptable brands list are available from: Mr. Edward Andersen, Procurement Analyst, Department of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of Citywide Procurement, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007. (212) 669-8509.

j5-d31

DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION

SOLICITATIONS

Construction Related Services

LRCA11LPA, THE NEW YORK PUBLIC LIBRARY LIBRARY FOR THE PERFORMING ARTS - FACADE TRAVERTINE RESTORATION, MANHATTAN – Sole Source – Available only from a single source - PIN# 8502012LN0004P – DUE 03-07-12 AT 4:00 P.M. – The Department of Design and Construction intends to enter into a Sole Source contract with the New York Public Library -Library for the Performing Arts for the above project. The contractor must have unique knowledge of the site, and must guarantee the assumption of all costs above the estimated cost of construction. Any firm which believes that it is also qualified to provide these services would like to provide such services in the future is invited to indicate by letter to: Steven Wong, Program Director, 5th Floor, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, Long Island City, New York 11101, (718) 391-2550; wongs@ddc.nyc.gov

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Design and Construction,

30-30 Thomson Avenue, 4th Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Carlo DiFava (718) 391-1541; difavac@ddc.nyc.gov

f23-29

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

CONSTRUCTION OF A DISINFECTION DEMONSTRATION FACILITY AT THE PORT Last day for questions: no later than ten (10) business days prior to the Bid submission date.

A non-mandatory pre-bid meeting is scheduled for Thursday, March 8, 2012, at FDNY Headquarters, 9 MetroTech Center, 2nd Floor, Room 14, Brooklyn, NY 11201 at 10:30 A.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Fire Department, 9 MetroTech Center, 5th Floor, Brooklyn, NY 11201. Kristina LeGrand (718) 999-1233; Fax: (718) 999-0177; legrankm@fdny.nyc.gov

🖝 f27

HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

The New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation is regularly soliciting bids for supplies and equipment at its Central Purchasing Offices, 346 Broadway, New York City, Room 516, for its Hospitals and Diagnostic and Treatment Centers. All interested parties are welcome to review the bids that are posted in Room 516 weekdays between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. For information regarding bids and the bidding process, please call (212) 442-4018.

j1-d31

HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE

AGENCY CHIEF CONTRACTING OFFICER SOLICITATIONS

Human / Client Services

NEW YORK/NY III SUPPORTED HOUSING

CONGREGATE – Competitive Sealed Proposals – Judgment required in evaluating proposals -

PIN# 81608P0076300R0X00-R - DUE 09-18-12 AT 4:00 P.M. - The Department is issuing a RFP to establish 3,000 units of citywide supportive housing in newly constructed or rehabilitated single-site buildings for various homeless populations pursuant to the New York III Supported Housing agreement. The subject RFP will be open-ended and proposals will be accepted on an on-going basis. The RFP is available on-line at

http://www.nyc.gov/html/doh/html/acco/acco-rfp-nynycongregate-20070117-form.shtml. A pre-proposal conference was held on March 6, 2007 at 2:00 P.M. at 125 Worth Street, 2nd Floor Auditorium, New York, N.Y. Any questions regarding this RFP must be sent in writing in advance to Contracting Officer at the above address or e-mailed to the above address All proposals must be hand delivered at the Agency Chief Contracting Officer, Gotham Center, CN#30A, 42-09 28th Street, 17th Floor, Queens, NY 11101-4132, no later than September 18, 2012.

As a minimum qualification requirement for (1) the serious and persistent mentally ill populations, the proposer must be incorporated as a not-for-profit organization, and (2) for the young adult populations, the proposer must document site control and identify the source of the capital funding and being used to construct or renovate the building.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Health and Mental Hygiene, ACCO, Gotham Center, CN#30A, 42-09 28th Street, 17th Floor, Queens, NY 11101-4132. Huguette Beauport (347) 396-6633; hbeaupor@health.nyc.gov

a6-s17

HOUSING AUTHORITY

■ SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

EXTERIOR RESTORATION AT BROWNSVILLE -Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# BW1202810 – DUE 03-19-12 AT 10:00 A.M.

• ELEVATOR REHABILITATION AND **MAINTENANCE AND SERVICE FOR EIGHT (8)** ${\bf ELEVATORS}\ - {\rm Competitive\ Sealed\ Bids} - \\$

PIN# 06906X0055CNVN001 – DUE 03-01-12 AT 5:00 P.M. -*For Informational Purposes Only* HRA intends to extend the contract with Friends Quarters Housing Development Fund Corp., located at 130 East 25th

Street, New York, NY 10010. EPIN: 06906X0055CNVN001 -Contract Amount: \$930,103.00

HRA has determined that there is a compelling need, in light of the Agency's programmatic responsibilities, for the use of the Negotiated Acquisition Extension process to extend the contract for the following permanent congregate vendor: Friends Quarters Housing Development Fund Corporation. This vendor is currently providing Permanent Congregate Housing and Supportive Services to Persons Living with AIDS (PLWA's). This extension will ensure that these fragile clients continue to receive needed critical services until a new contract is in place. The term of this contract period is from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Human Resources Administration, 180 Water Street, 14th Floor, New York, NY 10038. Barbara Beirne (212) 331-3436; beirneb@hra.nyc.gov

f21-27

INDEPENDENT BUDGET OFFICE

SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

DATABASE DESIGN AND CONSULTING - Negotiated Acquisition – Judgment required in evaluating proposals PIN# 121320000001 - DUE 03-19-12 AT 5:00 P.M. - For public education related data, including provision of specifications for the design of a relational database for education data.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Independent Budget Office, 110 William Street, 14th Floor, New York, New York 10038. Ray Domanico (212) 442-8616; Fax: (212) 442-0350; RaymondĎ@ibo.nyc.ny.us

🖝 f27

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS

FRANCHISE ADMINISTRATION ■ SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

MOBILE TELECOM SUBWAY FRANCHISE - Other -PIN# 85812FRANCHI – DUE 12-31-14 AT 3:00 P.M. -Solicitation of Proposals for Franchises for the installation of Fiber Optic Cables and Related Equipment in City Streets in connection with the Provision of Mobile Telecommunications Services to underground subway stations in New York City.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Information Technology and Telecommunications, 75 Park Place, New York, NY 10007. Brett Sikoff (212) 788-6781; bsikoff@doitt.nyc.gov 2 Metrotech Center, 4th Floor, Brooklyn, NY 11201. f21-m5

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Services (Other Than Human Services)

NOT-FOR-PROFIT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Sole Source – Available only from a single source PIN# 0212S0001 - DUE 03-16-12 AT 4:00 P.M. - The Office of the Mayor intends to enter into sole source negotiations with the Mayor's Fund to Advance New York City to raise support for City programs and improvements. Any firm which believes it can also provide these services is invited to indicate so, by letter

RICHMOND WWTP, STATEN ISLAND, NY – Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN# 82612WPC1238 - DUÉ 03-30-12 AT 11:30 A.M. - Project No. EE-PR-TRC. Document Fee: \$100.00. There will be a pre-bid conference on 3/6/2012 at 10:00 A.M. at the Port Richmond WWTP, at the Administration Building, 1801 Port Richmond Terrace and Bodine Street, Staten Island, N.Y. 10310. Mauro Orpianesi, Project Manager, (718) 595-5032. Please be advised that this contract is subject to the Project Labor Agreement. This contract is also subject to the Local Law 129 M/WBE requirements.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Environmental Protection, 59-17 Junction Blvd., 17th Floor, Flushing, NY 11373. Greg Hall (718) 595-3236; ghall@dep.nyc.gov 🖝 f27

FIRE

SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

PROVISION OF TEMPORARY PERSONNEL IN VARIOUS TITLES - Competitive Sealed Bids -PIN# 057110002818 - DUE 03-23-12 AT 4:00 P.M. -E-PIN: 05712B0006. Vendor Source ID#: 78580.

PIN# EV1128305 – DUE 03-19-12 AT 10:30 A.M. • REPLACEMENT OF BOILERS AT 131ST ST., NICHOLAS AVENUE - Competitive Sealed Bids -PIN# HE1123911 - DUE 03-20-12 AT 10:00 A.M.

Bid documents are available Monday through Friday, 9:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M., for a \$25.00 fee in the form of a money order or certified check payable to NYCHA. Documents can also be obtained by registering with I-supplier and downloading documents.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Housing Authority, 90 Church Street, 11th Floor, New York, NY 10007. Gloria Guillo, MPA, CPPO, (212) 306-3121; Fax: (212) 306-5151; gloria.guillo@nycha.nyc.gov

🖝 f27

HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION

AGENCY CHIEF CONTRACTING OFFICER/CONTRACTS

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Human / Client Services

PROVISION OF PERMANENT CONGREGATE HOUSING FOR PERSONS LIVING WITH AIDS (PLWA'S) – Negotiated Acquisition –

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Mayor's Office, 100 Gold Street, 2nd Floor, New York, NY 10038. Marie Delus (212) 788-2680; Fax: (212) 788-2406; m delus@cityhall.nyc.gov

€ f27-m2

PARKS AND RECREATION

PURCHASING AND ACCOUNTING

SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

TREE REMOVAL IN VAN CORTLANDT PARK -Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 84612B0031 -DUE 03-14-12 AT 3:00 P.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, 24 West 61st Street, New York, NY 10023. Victor Baez (212) 830-7954; Fax: (917) 849-6453; victor.baez@parks.nyc.gov

🖝 f27

SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION AUTHORITY

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

BOATHOUSE - Competitive Sealed Bids -PIN# SCA12-13818D-1 - DUE 03-13-12 AT 11:00 A.M. - New York Harbor School (Manhattan). Range: \$2,920,000.00 to \$3,080,000.00. Non-refundable bid documents charge: \$100.00, certified check or money order only. Make checks payable to the New York City School Construction Authority. Bidders must be pre-qualified by the SCA.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

School Construction Authority, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, Long Island City, NY 11101. Rookmin Singh (718) 752-5843; rsingh@nycsca.org

🖝 f27

CONTRACT SERVICES SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS/EXISTING

BUILDING – Competitive Sealed Bids PIN# SCA12-010662-1 - DUE 03-22-12 AT 3:00 P.M. -PS 87 (Queens). Project Range: \$19,670,000.00 to \$20,702,000.00. Non-refundable bid documents charge: \$250.00, certified check or money order only. Limited list bids will only be accepted from the following Construction Managers/Prime General Contractors: Arnell Construction Corp.; Citnalta Construction Corp.; Iannelli Construction Co., Inc.; J. Petrocelli Construction, Inc.; Pavarini McGovern; Petracca and Sons, Inc.; Turner Construction Company. Make checks payable to the New York City School Construction Authority. Bidders must be pre-qualified by the SCA.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

School Construction Authority, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, Long Island City, NY 11101. Lily Persaud (718) 752-5852; lpersaud@nycsca.org

🖝 f27

AGENCY RULES

CONSUMER AFFAIRS

NOTICE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

- Subject: Notice of Public Hearing and Opportunity to Comment on Proposed Rule regarding the implementation of a \$300 biennial fee for participation in the directed accident response program (DARP).
- **Date/Time:** March 29, 2012 at 11:00 A.M.
- Department of Consumer Affairs Location: 66 John Street, 11th floor hearing room New York, NY 10038
- **Contact:** Erik Joerss Director of City Legislative Affairs Department of Consumer Affairs 42 Broadway, 8th floor New York, N.Y. 10004 (212) 487 - 4248

reasonable time after receipt, between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M. at the office of Erik Joerss.

Statement of Basis and Purpose

The directed accident response program (DARP) is administered by the Commissioner of the Department ("the Commissioner") pursuant to Section 20-518 of the Administrative Code. The DARP program was established by Local Law Number 28 of the City of New York for the year 1987 in an effort to end the practice of "chasing," in which tow truck operators monitored police radio transmissions to learn of vehicular accidents and then raced each other to accident scenes in an attempt to secure the resultant towing and ancillary repair work, often posing a threat to life and property in the process. Under the DARP program, participating towing companies are placed on a rotating list and are summoned after an accident by the New York City Police Department to remove vehicles that cannot be safely driven under their own power.

Section 20-518(a)(5) authorizes the Commissioner to adopt a biennial fee for participation in the DARP program. Section 20-518(g) further authorizes the Commissioner to promulgate rules and regulations as necessary to effectuate Section 20-518. The proposed rule would impose a biennial fee on DARP participants to recoup the costs of administering the program.

RULE

Section 1. Subdivision (r) of Section 2-371 of Subchapter EE of Chapter 2 of Title 6 of the Rules of the City of New York is hereby amended to read as follows:

(r) [Reserved.] Participants shall pay a biennial fee of \$300.

• f27

MAYOR'S OFFICE OF CONTRACT SERVICES

NOTICE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Subject: Opportunity to comment on the proposed amendments to Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York, "Environmental Preferable Purchasing Program."

| Date / Time: | March 29, 2012 9:30 A.M. – 11:30 A.M. |
|--------------|--|
| Location: | Spector Hall 22 Reade Street New York, NY 10007 |
| Contact: | Marla G. Simpson Director Mayor's Office of Contract Services 253 Broadway, 9th Floor New York, New York 10007 |

Proposed Rule Amendment

Pursuant to the authority vested in the Director of Citywide Environmental Purchasing ("Director") by §§ 6-302, 6-304, 6-306, 6-308, 6-312, 6-313, 6-314, 6-315, and 6-316 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York ("Administrative Code"), and in accordance with the requirements of § 1043 of the New York City Charter and Chapter 3 of Title 6 of the Administrative Code, the Director hereby proposes to amend Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York ("RCNY").

The proposed amendments were not included in this agency's regulatory agenda.

Instructions

Written comments regarding the proposed amendments must be received by close of business on March 29, 2012. Written comments should be sent to:

Marla G. Simpson Director Mayor's Office of Contract Services 253 Broadway, 9th Floor New York, New York 10007

construction work through an expanded applicability rule (section 11-2),

- reduce hazardous substances through the addition of an environmental purchasing standard (within section 11-6) that reduces the City's purchase and use of added urea-formaldehyde resins in composite wood or agrifiber products,
- reduce hazardous substances through the addition of an environmental purchasing standard (within section 11-7) that requires the City's purchase and use of paper products processed without any chlorine or chlorine derivatives, the combustion of which has been determined to be the largest contributor of dioxin into the atmosphere,
- conserve energy and water by expanding the types of energy- and water-using products that are required to meet the energy and water efficiency standards set forth by the U.S. Department of $% \mathcal{T}_{\mathcal{T}}$ Energy's Federal Energy Management Program ("FEMP"), within a new subchapter (3: Energy and Efficiency) and a new section (11-8),
- increase the use of recycled and reused materials by incorporating several new products that are required to meet the minimum recycled content standards set forth by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Comprehensive Procurement Guideline for Products Containing Recovered Materials ("CPG"), within a new subchapter (4: Recycled Materials) and a new section (11-9), and improve indoor air quality and enhance environmental
- health by establishing new green cleaning product purchasing standards, within a new subchapter (5: Green Cleaning) and a new section (11-10).

Background

•

•

•

•

In 2005, the New York City Council passed Local Laws 118, 119, 120, and 121 to establish environmentally preferable standards for products purchased by the City. The purchase of such products protects the environment by reducing the City's energy consumption, air pollution, hazardous releases, and water use. Local Law 118 also created the position of Citywide Director of Environmental Purchasing ("Director"), who is responsible for issuing rules and establishing environmental purchasing standards to:

- conserve energy and water; ۰
- increase the use of recycled and reused materials; •
- reduce hazardous substances, especially persistent,
- bioaccumulative and toxic chemicals; ulletdecrease greenhouse gas emissions;
 - improve indoor air quality;
- ulletpromote end-of-life management; and
- reduce waste.

In 2005, the City Council also passed Local Law 123, which required the Director to develop and administer a green cleaning pilot program to determine the feasibility of using green cleaning products in City facilities and to assess products selected for the program based upon effectiveness, health and safety, and costs and savings. Based on the results of the pilot program, the Director developed the new green cleaning product purchasing standards in the proposed rule amendments.

Statutory Authority

•

•

•

•

The proposed rule amendments are being promulgated pursuant to the Director's authority as set forth in §§ 6-302, 6-304, 6-306, 6-308, 6-312, 6-313, 6-314, 6-315, and 6-316 of Title 6 of the Administrative Code to:

- develop, establish, and promulgate rules and implement environmental purchasing standards, •
- designate any contract as being subject to Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the RCNY in whole or in part, •
 - promulgate rules to conserve energy and water; increase the use of recycled and reused materials; reduce hazardous substances, with an emphasis on persistent, bioaccumulative and toxic chemicals; and improve indoor air quality,
 - promulgate rules to reduce the City's purchase or lease of composite wood or agrifiber products that contain added urea-formaldehyde resins,
 - promulgate rules to reduce the City's purchase or lease of materials whose combustion may lead to the formation of dioxin or dioxin-like compounds,
- make a determination whether certain products purchased or leased by a City agency must comply with energy efficiency or flow rate standards recommended by FEMP, make a determination whether certain products purchased or leased by a City agency contain at least the minimum amount of recovered material and postconsumer material recommended in the most recent CPG notice, publish a list of green cleaning products for the City's purchase and use that have been determined to be feasible under the green cleaning pilot program or through any other testing and evaluation conducted by the Director. review and, if necessary, update or revise the City's environmental purchasing standards at least once every two years.

Proposed Rule Amendment

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN PURSUANT TO THE

AUTHORITY VESTED IN the Commissioner of the Department of Consumer Affairs ("the Department") by Section 20-518(a)(5) and (g) of Subchapter 31 of Chapter 2, Title 20 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York ("Administrative Code") and in accordance with the requirements of Section 1043 of the New York City Charter that the Department intends to implement a \$300 biennial fee for participation in the directed accident response program (DARP). This proposed rule was not included in the Department's most recent regulatory agenda because at the time the regulatory agenda was prepared, the Department had not decided to adopt the rule.

Instructions

Written comments regarding this amendment may be sent to Erik Joerss by mail or electronically through NYC RULES www.nyc.gov/nycrules by March 29, 2012.

Persons who request that a sign language interpreter or other form of reasonable accommodation for a disability be provided are asked to notify the Office of the Commissioner at the above address by March 15, 2012.

Written comments and a summary of oral comments received at the hearing will be available for public inspection, within a

or electronically through NYCRULES at www.nyc.gov/nycrules by March 29, 2012.

If you need a sign language interpreter or other form of reasonable accommodation for disability at the hearing, please notify Marla G. Simpson by close of business on March 21.2012.

Written comments and a summary of the oral comments will be available for public inspection within a reasonable time after receipt between 9:00 A.M. and 4:30 P.M. at the Mayor's Office of Contract Services.

Statement of Basis and Purpose

The purpose of the proposed rule amendments is to:

- incorporate certain terms from § 6-301 of Title 6 of the Administrative Code and Local Law 123 relating to the purchase of environmentally preferable products into the "Definitions" section (11-1) of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the RCNY,
- reduce hazardous substances by applying the City's environmentally preferable purchasing standards (in existing sections 11-3, 11-4, and 11-5, and the proposed new sections 11-8 and 11-9) to the purchase or lease of applicable products by City agencies as well as by City contractors for

The Proposed Rule Amendments

New material is underlined and deletions are [bracketed].

Section 1. Subdivision (a) of Section 11-1 of Subchapter 1 of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended as follows:

§ 11-1 **Definitions.** (a) For the purposes of this chapter only, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(1) "Added urea-formaldehyde resins" means any one of a class of substances belonging to the family of organic polymers prepared by heating urea and formaldehyde in the presence of mild alkalies, such as pyridine or ammonia.

(2) "Air freshener" means any product including, but not limited to, sprays, wicks, powders, blocks, gels and crystals, designed for the purpose of masking odor or freshening, cleaning, scenting or deodorizing the air, but such term shall not include any product that is used on the human body or any product that functions primarily as a cleaning or disinfectant product claiming to deodorize by killing germs on surfaces.

[(1)] (3) "Architectural coatings" means any coating to be applied to stationary structures and their appurtenances at the site of installation, to portable buildings at the site of installation, to pavements, or to curbs. This term shall not include the following: marine-based paints and coatings; coatings or materials to be applied to metal structures, such as bridges; or coatings or materials labeled and formulated for application in roadway maintenance activities.

(4) "Bathroom cleaner" means any product used to clean hard surfaces in a bathroom, such as counters, walls, floors, fixtures, basins, tubs and tiles. This term may include products that are required to be registered under the federal insecticide fungicide and rodenticide act, such as disinfectants and sanitizers, but shall not include products specifically intended to clean toilet bowls.

[(2)] (5) "Cadmium plating" means any deposit or coating of metallic cadmium on a metallic surface.

[(3)] (6) "Carpet" means any fabric used as a floor covering, but such term shall not include artificial turf.

[(4)] (7) "Carpet adhesive" means any substance used to adhere carpet to a floor by surface attachment, including any latex multi-purpose floor adhesive, pressure-sensitive floor adhesive, vinyl-backed floor adhesive, latex seam adhesive, vinyl-backed seam sealer, cove base adhesive, tackless cushion adhesive and contact adhesive.

[(5)] (8) "Carpet cushion" means any kind of material placed under carpet to provide softness when it is walked upon. [(6)] (9) "Cathode ray tube" means any vacuum tube, typically found in computer monitors, televisions and oscilloscopes, in which a beam of electrons is projected on a phosphorescent screen.

(10) "City's environmental purchasing standards" or "city environmental purchasing standard" means any standard set forth in chapter 3 of title 6 of the administrative code of the city of New York, and any directives, guidelines or rules promulgated by the director of citywide environmental purchasing pursuant to chapter 3 of title 6 of such code. [(7)] (11) "Clear brushing lacquer" means any clear wood finish, excluding any clear lacquer sanding sealer, formulated with nitrocellulose or synthetic resins to dry by solvent evaporation without chemical reaction and to provide a solid, protective film, that is intended exclusively for application by brush.

[(8)] (12) "Coating" means any material that is applied to a surface in order to beautify, protect, or provide a barrier to such surface.

(13) "Composite wood or agrifiber product" means any plywood, particleboard, chipboard, medium density fiberboard, standard fiberboard, orient strand board, glulam product, wheatboard or strawboard or any other particleboard made from post-agricultural resources.

(14) "Construction work" means any work or operations necessary or incidental to the erection, demolition, assembling or alteration of any building, but such term shall not include minor repairs.

(15) "Contractor" means any person or entity that enters into a contract with any agency, or any person or entity that enters into an agreement with such person or entity, to perform work or provide labor or services related to such contract.

(16) "CPG" means the Comprehensive Procurement Guideline for Products Containing Recovered Materials, as set forth in part 247 of title 40 of the United States code of federal regulations.

(17) "Degreaser" means any product designed to remove or dissolve grease, grime, oil and other oil-based contaminants from interior or exterior building surfaces.

(18) "Dioxin producing product" means any product that leads to the formation of dioxin or dioxin-like compounds upon combustion.

[(9)] (19) "Director" means the director of citywide environmental purchasing.

(20) "Disinfectant" means any United States

environmental protection agency-registered agent that is used to destroy or irreversibly inactivate infectious fungi, viruses and bacteria, but not necessarily their spores. This term shall include any agent that is required to be registered under the federal insecticide, fungicide, and rodenticide act. [(10)] (21) "Emission factor" means the mass of a volatile organic compound emitted from a specific unit area, mass or length, as appropriate, of product surface per unit of time.

strip, polish, or wax floors; any cleaner intended primarily for cleaning toilet bowls, dishes, laundry, glass, carpets, upholstery, wood or polished surfaces; or any product required to be registered under the federal insecticide fungicide and rodenticide act, such as those making claims as sterilizers, disinfectants or sanitizers.

(28) "Glass cleaner" means any product used to clean windows, glass and polished surfaces. This term shall not include any product required to be registered under the federal insecticide fungicide and rodenticide act, such as those making claims as sterilizers, disinfectants or sanitizers.

(29) "Green Seal" means the independent, non-profit organization that sets standards for environmentally responsible products.

[(13)] (30) "Homogeneous" means of uniform composition throughout, such as plastics, ceramics, glass, metals, alloys, paper, board, resins and coatings.

[(14)] (31) "Homogeneous material" means a material that cannot be mechanically disjointed into different materials through actions such as unscrewing, cutting, crushing, grinding and abrasive processes.

[(15)] (32) "Lacquer" means any clear or pigmented wood finish, including clear lacquer sanding sealers, formulated with nitrocellulose or synthetic resins to dry by evaporation without chemical reaction and to provide a solid, protective film.

[(16)] (33) "Lamp" means any glass envelope with a gas, coating, or filament that produces visible light when electricity is applied, but such term shall not include automotive light bulbs.

[(17)] (34) "Lamp life" means the rated hours of output for a fluorescent tube lamp measured using instant-start ballasts at 3 hours per start, except for T5 lamps, which shall be measured using program start ballasts.

(35) "LVP-VOC" means a chemical compound or mixture that contains at least one carbon atom and meets one of the following:

(i) has a vapor pressure less than 0.1 mm Hg at 20oC, as determined by the California Air Resources Board ("ARB") Method 310; or,

(ii) is a chemical compound with more than 12 carbon atoms, or a chemical mixture comprised solely of compounds with more than 12 carbon atoms, as verified by formulation data, and the vapor pressure and boiling point are unknown; or,

(iii) is a chemical compound with a boiling point greater than 216oC, as determined by ARB Method 310; or, (iv) is the weight percent of a chemical mixture that

boils above 216oC, as determined by ARB Method 310. For the purposes of the definition of LVP-VOC, chemical "compound" means a molecule of definite chemical formula and isomeric structure, and chemical "mixture" means a substance comprised of two or more chemical compounds. [(18)] (36) "Maximum mercury" means the total weight of mercury in a lamp.

[(19)] (37) "Medical device" means any equipment for fertilization testing, laboratory equipment for in-vitro diagnosis, medical analyzer, medical freezer, pulmonary ventilator, cardiology, dialysis, radiotherapy or nuclear medicine equipment and any other appliance for detecting, preventing, monitoring, treating, alleviating illness, injury or disability.

(38) "Minor repairs" means the replacement of any part of a building for which a permit issued by the department of buildings is not required by law, where the purpose and effect of such work or replacement is to correct any deterioration or decay of or damage to such building or any part thereof and to restore same, as nearly as may be practicable, to its condition prior to the occurrence of such deterioration, decay or damage.

[(20)] (39) "Monitoring and control instrument" means any heating regulator, smoke detector, thermostat, device for measuring, weighing or adjusting any device for use in a household or laboratory and any other monitoring and control instrument used in industrial installations. [(21)] (40) "Multi-function device" means any physically integrated device or a combination of functionally integrated components that performs the function of a copier as well as the functions at least one of the following devices: printer, facsimile machine or scanner.

[(22)] (41) "Nonflat paint" means any coating that registers a gloss of 5 or greater on a 60 degree meter and a gloss of 15 or greater on an 85 degree meter.

(42) "Paper product" means any commercial/industrial sanitary tissue products, miscellaneous papers, newsprint, paperboard and packaging products, or printing and writing papers as such terms are used in the CPG. (23)] (43) "Primer" means any coating applied

[(28)] (50) "Volatile organic compound" means any compound of carbon, excluding carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic carbides or carbonates, and ammonium carbonate, which participates in atmospheric photochemical reactions, as specified in part 51.100 of chapter 40 of the United States code of federal regulations.

Section 2. Section 11-2 of Subchapter 1 of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended as follows:

 $\S~11\text{-}2$ Applicability, exemptions and waivers. $\underline{\text{Except as}}$ provided for in sections 11-6, 11-7, and 11-10 and notwithstanding sections 6-302(a)(3)(i)-(vi) of the administrative code of the city of New York, [T]these rules shall apply to products purchased or leased by any agency or purchased or leased by a contractor pursuant to any contract with any agency for construction work in any building, such contracts being designated as being subject to this chapter, pursuant to section 6-302 of the administrative code of the city of New York on the applicability of the environmentally preferable purchasing program contained in chapter three of title six of such code. These rules shall be subject to any exemption or waiver contained in section 6-303 of such code or contained in any other provision of such chapter

Section 3. Subdivision (a) of Section 11-3 of Subchapter 2 of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended as follows:

§ 11-3 Hazardous content of electronic devices. (a) No new cathode ray tube, product containing a cathode ray tube, liquid crystal display (LCD), plasma screen or other flat panel television or computer monitor or similar video display product, desktop computer or laptop computer, computer peripheral including, but not limited to, a keyboard, mouse and other pointing device, printer, scanner, facsimile machine and card reader, copier, and multi-function device [purchased or leased by any agency] shall contain lead, mercury, cadmium, hexavalent chromium, polybrominated biphenyls or polybrominated diphenyl ethers, except that this section shall not apply to:

Section 4. Subdivisions (a)(1), (a)(2), (b)(1), and (b)(2) of Section 11-4 of Subchapter 2 of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended as follows:

§ 11-4 Volatile organic compounds and other airborne hazards. (a) (1) No carpet or carpet adhesive [purchased or leased by any agency] shall contain any volatile organic compound in any concentration exceeding that specified below, according to the selected test method.

* * *

(2) No carpet cushion [purchased or leased by any agency] shall contain any volatile organic compound in any concentration exceeding that specified below, according to the selected test method. * * *

(b) (1) No architectural coating regulated under part 205 of title six of the New York codes, rules and regulations [and purchased or leased by any agency] shall contain any volatile organic compound in any concentration exceeding that permitted under such part. * * *

(2) None of the following architectural coatings [purchased or leased by any agency] shall contain any volatile organic compound in any concentration exceeding that specified below, according to the selected test method.

Section 5. Section 11-5 of Subchapter 2 of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended as follows:

§ 11-5 Mercury-added lamps. Any of the following mercury-added lamps [purchased or leased by any agency] shall comply with the standards specified below:

Section 6. Subchapter 2 of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended by adding a new Section 11-6, Added urea-formaldehyde resins reduction, to read as follows:

* * *

§ 11-6 Added urea-formaldehyde resins reduction. Any of the following composite wood or agrifiber products con added urea-formaldehyde resins purchased or leased by any agency shall meet the standards specified below, except that this section shall not apply to any composite wood or agrifiber product containing added urea-formaldehyde resins purchased or leased by any contractor pursuant to any contract with any agency.

(22) "ENERGY STAR labeled" means a designation indicating that a product meets the energy efficiency standards set forth by the United States environmental protection agency and the United States department of energy for compliance with the ENERGY STAR program.

[(11)] (23) "Flat paint" means any coating that registers a gloss of less than 15 on an 85-degree meter or less than 5 on a 60-degree meter.

[(12)] (24) "Floor coating" means any opaque coating that is formulated for or applied to flooring, including but not limited to decks, porches, gymnasiums, and bowling alleys, but does not include any industrial maintenance coating.

(25) "Flow rate" means the volume, mass, or weight of water flowing past a given point per unit of time.

(26) "Fragrance" means a substance or complex mixture of aroma chemicals, natural essential oils, and other functional components with a combined vapor pressure not in excess of 2 mm of Hg at 20oC, the sole purpose of which is to impart an odor or scent, or to counteract a malodor.

(27) "General-purpose cleaner" means any product used for routine cleaning of hard surfaces, including impervious flooring, such as concrete or tile. This term shall not include any cleaner intended primarily for the removal of rust, mineral deposits or odors; any product intended primarily to substrate to provide a firm bond between the substrate and subsequent coats.

(44) "Process-chlorine free" means a paper recycling process in which no chlorine or chlorine derivatives were used. [(24)] (45) "Rust preventative/anti-corrosive paint" means any coating formulated exclusively for nonindustrial use to prevent the corrosion of metal surfaces. [(25)] (46) "Sanding sealer" means any clear or semitransparent wood coating formulated for or applied to bare wood to seal the wood and to provide a coat that can be abraded to create a smooth surface for subsequent applications of coatings. A sanding sealer that also meets the definition of a lacquer is not included in this category, but it

is included in the lacquer category.

(47) "Sanitizer" means any United States environmental protection agency-registered agent that is used to reduce, but not necessarily eliminate, microorganisms to levels considered safe by public health codes or regulations. This term shall include any agent that is required to be registered under the federal insecticide fungicide and rodenticide act. [(26)] (48) "Selected test method" means the American Society for Testing and Materials test method D 5116 (guide for small-scale environmental chamber determinations of organic emissions from indoor materials/products). [(27)] (49) "Varnish" means any clear or semi-transparent wood coating, excluding lacquers and shellacs, formulated to dry by chemical reaction on exposure to air. Varnishes may contain small amounts of pigment to color a surface, or to control the final sheen or gloss of the finish.

| Product | Formaldehyde Emission Standards (ppm)* | | | | |
|---------------------------------|---|--|--|--|--|
| Hardwood Plywood-Veneer Core | 0.08 | | | | |
| Hardwood Plywood-Composite Core | 0.08 | | | | |
| Particleboard | 0.18 | | | | |
| Medium Density Fiberboard | 0.21 | | | | |
| Thin Medium Density Fiberboard | 0.21 | | | | |
| Orient Strand Board | No added urea formaldehyde resins | | | | |
| Glulam Product | No added urea formaldehyde resins | | | | |
| Wheatboard | No added urea formaldehyde resins | | | | |
| Strawboard | No added urea formaldehyde resins | | | | |

* Based on the primary test method [ASTM E 1333-96(2002)] in parts per million (ppm).

Section 7. Subchapter 2 of Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended by adding a new Section 11-7, Dioxin reduction, to read as follows:

§ 11-7 Dioxin reduction. Any of the following dioxin producing products purchased or leased by any agency shall meet the standards specified below, except that this section shall not apply to any dioxin producing products purchased

or leased by any contractor pursuant to any contract with any ag<u>ency.</u>

| Product | Standard |
|----------------|-----------------------|
| Paper Products | Process-chlorine free |

Section 8. Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended by adding a new Subchapter 3, Energy and Efficiency, and a new Section 11-8, Energy and water efficiency standards, to read as follows:

SUBCHAPTER 3: ENERGY AND EFFICIENCY

§ 11-8 Energy and water efficiency standards

§ 11-8 Energy and water efficiency standards. (a) Any energy-using product for which the United States environmental protection agency and the United States department of energy have developed energy efficiency standards for compliance with the Energy Star program shall be ENERGY STAR labeled.

(b) Any faucet, showerhead, toilet, urinal, fluorescent tube lamp, fluorescent ballast, industrial HID luminaire, downlight luminaire, fluorescent luminaire, or compact fluorescent lamp for which the federal energy management program of the United States department of energy has issued product energy efficiency recommendations shall achieve no less energy efficiency or flow rate than the minimum recommended in such recommendations unless the director makes a determination otherwise for any particular contract.

(c) Any air-cooled chiller or water-cooled chiller for which the federal energy management program of the United States department of energy has issued product energy efficiency recommendations shall achieve no less energy efficiency or flow rate than the minimum recommended in such recommendations unless the director makes a determination otherwise for any particular contract.

(d) Any electric motor or microwave oven for which the federal energy management program of the United States department of energy has issued product energy efficiency recommendations shall achieve no less energy efficiency or flow rate than the minimum recommended in such recommendations unless the director makes a determination otherwise for any particular contract.

Section 9. Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended by adding a new Subchapter 4, Recycled Materials, and a new Section 11-9, Minimum recycled material content, to read as follows:

SUBCHAPTER 4: RECYCLED MATERIALS

§ 11-9 Minimum recycled material content.

§ 11-9 Minimum recycled material content. (a) Any of the following products listed in the CPG, that can be procured at a reasonably competitive price, and for which the United States environmental protection agency has issued a recovered materials advisory notice, shall contain no less recovered material and postconsumer material than the minimum amount recommended in the most recent such notice:

- reprographic paper,
- tablet paper,
- envelope paper,
- file folder,
- commercial/industrial sanitary tissue,
- rock wool or fiberglass building insulation, •
- polyester carpet,
- flowable fill,
- steel shower or restroom divider/partition,
- traffic cone,
- plastic fencing,
- plastic park bench, •
- hydraulic mulch,
- garden or soaker hose,
- plastic trash bag,
- office recycling container,
- office waste receptacle,
- mat,
- signage or pallet.

- traffic barricade, traffic control device (channelizer),

•

•

.

- traffic control device (delineator),
- traffic control device (flexible delineator).

(c) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) and (b) of this section, any paper product listed in subdivisions (a) or (b) of this section that can be procured at a reasonably competitive price, and for which the United States environmental protection agency has issued a recovered materials advisory notice, shall contain no less than fifty percent agricultural wastes.

THE CITY RECORD

Section 10. Chapter 11 of Title 43 of the Rules of the City of New York is amended by adding a new Subchapter 5, Green Cleaning, and a new Section 11-10, Green cleaning product categories, to read as follows:

SUBCHAPTER 5: GREEN CLEANING

§ 11-10 Green Cleaning product categories

§ 11-10 Green Cleaning product categories. (a) (1) No agency shall purchase and use bathroom cleaners, degreasers, general purpose cleaners, or glass cleaners, unless such cleaning products comply with the standards set forth by one of the following third-party programs: Green Seal; (i)

- (ii) United States environmental protection agency's design for the environment program; and/or
- (iii) New York State office of general services green cleaning program.

(2) (i) Except as provided for in subdivisions (a)(2)(ii) and (a)(2)(iii) of this section, no agency shall purchase and use any air freshener product containing volatile organic compounds exceeding the maximum percentage specified below.

| Product | Maximum Percentage (%) of Volatile Organic Compounds by Weight |
|------------------------------|--|
| Double Phase Aerosols | 25 |
| Single Phase Aerosols | 30 |
| Dual Purpose Air Fresheners/ | |
| Disinfectant Aerosols | 60 |
| Liquid/Pump Sprays | 18 |
| Solids/Semi-Solid | 3 |

(ii) The maximum percentage of volatile organic compounds contained in any air freshener product listed in subdivision (a)(2)(i) of this section shall not apply to any air freshener product:

- A) identified as LVP-VOC, or
- that is comprised entirely of fragrance and does not B) contain any of the following compounds:
 - 0
 - carbon monoxide; 0 carbon dioxide;
 - 0
 - <u>carbonic acid;</u> ο
 - metallic carbides or carbonates; 0
 - ammonium carbonate;
 - methane, including methylene chloride 0 (dichloromethane), 1,1,1-trichloroethane (methyl chloroform), trichlorofluoromethane (CFC-11), dichlorodifluoromethane (CFC-12), 1,1,2-trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (CFC-113), 1,2-dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (CFC-114), chloropentafluoroethane (CFC-115), chlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22), 1,1,1-trifluoro-2,2-dichloroethane (HCFC-123), 1,1-dichloro-1fluoroethane (HCFC-141b), 1-chloro-1,1difluoroethane (HCFC-142b), 2-chloro-1,1,1,2tetrafluoroethane (HCFC-124), trifluoromethane (HFC-23), 1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (HFC-134), 1,1,1,2-tetrafluoroethane (HFC-134a), pentafluoroethane (HFC-125), 1,1,1-trifluoroethane (HFC-143a), 1,1-difluoroethane (HFC-152a), ethoxynonafluorobutane (HFE 7200), cyclic, branched, or linear completely methylated siloxanes, and the following classes of perfluorocarbons:
 - cyclic, branched, or linear, completely fluorinated alkanes;
 - cyclic, branched, or linear, completely fluorinated ethers with no unsaturations;
 - cyclic, branched, or linear, completely
 - fluoringted tertigry gmines with

RULE TITLE: Purchase of Environmentally Preferable Products

REFERENCE NUMBER: 2012 RG 003

RULEMAKING AGENCY: Mayor's Office of Contract Services

I certify that this office has reviewed the above-referenced proposed rule as required by section 1043(d) of the New York City Charter, and that the above-referenced proposed rule:

- is drafted so as to accomplish the purpose of the (i) authorizing provisions of law;
- (ii) is not in conflict with other applicable rules;
- (iii) to the extent practicable and appropriate, is narrowly drawn to achieve its stated purpose; and
- (iv) to the extent practicable and appropriate, contains a statement of basis and purpose that provides a clear explanation of the rule and the requirements imposed by the rule.

/s/ STEVEN GOULDEN Acting Corporation Counsel

Date: January 26, 2012

NEW YORK CITY MAYOR'S OFFICE OF OPERATIONS 253 BROADWAY, 10th FLOOR NEW YORK, NY 10007 212-788-1400

CERTIFICATION / ANALYSIS PURSUANT TO CHARTER SECTION 1043(d)

RULE TITLE: Purchase of Environmentally Preferable Products

REFERENCE NUMBER: MOCS-1

RULEMAKING AGENCY: MOCS

I certify that this office has analyzed the proposed rule referenced above as required by Section 1043(d) of the New York City Charter, and that the proposed rule referenced above:

- Is understandable and written in plain language for (i) the discrete regulated community or communities;
- Minimizes compliance costs for the discrete (ii) regulated community or communities consistent with achieving the stated purpose of the rule; and
- Does not provide a cure period because it does not (iii) establish a violation, modification of a violation, or modification of the penalties associated with a violation.

/s/ Francisco Navarro Mayor's Office of Operations January 26, 2012 Date

🖝 f27

SPECIAL MATERIALS

COMPTROLLER

NOTICE

ADVANCE PAYMENT OF AWARDS PURSUANT TO THE STATUTES IN SUCH cases made and provided, notice is hereby given that the Comptroller of the City of New York, will be ready to pay, at 1 Centre St., Rm. 629, New York, NY 10007, on May 14, 2012, to the person or persons legally entitled an amount as certified to the Comptroller by the Corporation Counsel on damage parcels, as follows:

| | <u>fluorinated tertiary amines with no</u> | | | |
|---|---|--|---|-----------------|
| (b) Any of the following products listed in the CPG, that | unsaturations; and | Damage Parcel No. | Block | Lot |
| can be procured at a reasonably competitive price, and for | sulfur-containing perfluorocarbons with | 1 | 6511 | 111 |
| which the United States environmental protection agency | no unsaturations and with the sulfur | $\frac{2}{3}$ | 6469 | 30 |
| has issued a recovered materials advisory notice, shall | bonds to carbon and fluorine; | う イ | $\begin{array}{c} 6469 \\ 6469 \end{array}$ | 37 39 |
| | • <u>acetone</u> ; | 5 | 6469 | 39 43 |
| contain no less recovered material and postconsumer | • ethane; | 6 | 6469 | 46 |
| material than the minimum amount recommended in the | • methyl acetate: | 7 | 6247 | 1 |
| <u>most recent such notice:</u> | • parachlorobenzotrifluoride | 8 | 6247 | $1\overline{0}$ |
| • \underline{carpet} , | (1-chloro-4-trifluoromethyl benzene); and | 9 | 6247 | 20 |
| • <u>carpet adhesive</u> , | • perchlorethylene (tetrachlorethylene). | 10 | 6247 | 29 |
| • <u>carpet cushion</u> , | (iii) No agency shall purchase and use any solid or semi- | 11 | 6247 | 34 |
| • <u>cement and concrete</u> , | | 12 and 14 | 6247 | 37 |
| <u>commercial and industrial low voltage transformer</u>, | solid air freshener product containing para-dichlorobenzene. | 15 | 6246 | 21 |
| foam-in-place insulation, | (3) No agency shall purchase and use disinfectant or | 16 | 6246 | 30 |
| glass fiber reinforced insulation, | sanitizer unless such product is registered under the federal | 17 | 6245 | 108 |
| heavy duty/commercial use floor tile, | insecticide fungicide and rodenticide act. | 18 | 6249 | 222 |
| <u>laminated paperboard</u>, | (b) Agencies shall transition to the use of green cleaning | 19 | 6249 | 174 |
| • $latex paint,$ | products identified in subdivision (a) of this section in a | 20 | 6249 | 214 |
| <u>loose fill and spray-on cellulose insulation</u>, | manner that avoids the waste of existing inventories, enables | 21 | 6249 | 207 |
| <u>modular threshold ramp</u>, | the training of personnel in appropriate green cleaning work | 22 and 23 | 6249 | 200 |
| • <u>nonpressure pipe,</u> | practices, and provides for the gradual phase-out of products | 24 | 6249 | 38 |
| perlite composition board insulation, | and practices inconsistent with the use of environmentally | 25 | 6249 | 33 |
| <u>phenolic rigid foam insulation</u>, | preferable purchasing alternatives. | 26 | 6249 | 30 |
| plastic non-woven batt insulation, | (c) This section shall not apply to products purchased or | 27 | 6249 | 25 |
| plastic or aluminum sign, | leased by any contractor pursuant to any contract with any | 28 | 6249 | 21 |
| plastic or steel sign post/support, | agency. | | | |
| • plastic rigid foam, | | acquired in the proceeding, en | titled: Albee Avenue, | Amboy |
| polyisocyanurate/polyurethane-rigid foam | NEW YORK CITY LAW DEPARTMENT | Road, Annadale Road, Etc. su encumbrances of record on su | bject to any liens and | t |
| insulation, | 100 CHURCH STREET | advanced shall cease to bear i | | |
| • residential entry or patio door, | NEW YORK, NY 10007 | above. | interest on the specific | u uute |
| • roof products, | 212-788-1087 | | | |
| • roofing material, | | JOHN | I C. LIU | |
| steel restroom divider/partition, | CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO | | otroller | |
| structural fiberboard. | CHARTER §1043(d) | , | | f15-29 |
| - <u>Stravarar instristara</u> | Cimitilit Storo(u) | | | |
| | | | | |

CHANGES IN PERSONNEL

BOARD OF ELECTION POLL WORKERS

| CHANGES | | | | | | | GONZALEZ | DIANA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
|--|---------------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------|----------------------------------|
| | IN PERS | ONNE | T. | | | | GONZALEZ GONZALEZ | RICHARD B ROSA L | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| CHANGES | | | | | | | GONZALEZ GOODING | TANYA LINDA M | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| | | | ELECTION POLL W | | | | GORDON GRANIZO | SUSAN ELENA I | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| NAME | | TITLE NUM | SALARY | ACTION | PROV | EFF DATE | GRANT GREEN GREEN | RAYMOND CYNTHIA LATASHA M | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 01/01/11 |
| DELTORO DEMARY | THERESA F TARA T | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | GREEN GREEN | LYNNISE MARSHA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| DEMERS DEMETROPOULOS | ERNEST W DENNIS | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/24/12 01/01/12 01/17/12 | GREENBERG GREZETTE | EILEEN SILVIA T | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DEMONTAGNAC DENHAM DENNIS | SHELDON R PATRICIA A JILLIAN | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/17/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | GRIEVE GRIFFITH | DANIEL P IVAN R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DEPRIEST DHAMECHA | FARMER T NAYANABE N | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | GRIFFITH | SHIRLEY A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| DHAMRAIT DI CARIO DIAGANA | MANPREET S KRISTY SIDI C | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/17/12 01/01/11 01/01/12 | GRINKOVITCH GRIPPER | BARBARA LORRAINE | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DIAZ-HUARCAYA DIDONATO | WENDY A JOHN | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/11 | GROSS-HALL GRULLON | ROSILAND I CHANEL J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DIO DIXON DOBLE-ABREU | FE K DAVID P MARTHA I | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | GUAMAN GUIDO | EBELIN G GABRIELL L | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DOBLE-ABRED DOCKERY DOLAN | KALENA WILLIAM J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 01/01/12 | GUIFARRO GUIFARRO | GLORIA MARVIN | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DOONA DOULAH-RIVERA | MAURICE MAIMUNA R | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | GULSTON GUMENYUK | DELORES E ROZA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DOWDY DOWNER DRAGIC | CATHERIN KENNETH ZELJKO | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | GUSIKOFF GUTIERREZ | STEVEN G CHRISTY | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/20/12 |
| DREW DROZ | JOSEPH A RUTH | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | GUTTERMAN HABIBA | MIRIAM | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| DUBOW DUKES | DOUGLAS J ZONA A | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HADI | ANILA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/18/12 |
| ECHANIQUE EDUN EDWARDS | ANA M KAMEELA M GERALDIN | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HAICH HALL | JULIA GEORGIA I | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| EDWARDS EDWARDS | LLOYD LOREASE | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HAM HAMILTON | SAEROMI JOSEPH A | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| EGER EILAM | LARRY H FREDERIC PEARLY L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 01/01/12 | HAMLOR HAMMER | DARRELL B JAMES S | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| EILETS EIRLAND EISSA | PEARLY L YVETTE ALI | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HANSEN HARDING | LESLIE GARTH R | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 09/08/11 01/01/11 |
| EL KAYED EL-SHARKAWI | AMAL LAILA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/23/12 01/01/12 | HARDWICK HAROLD | SYLVIA M VIRGINIA | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| ELLIOTT ELLISON EMANUEL | MIN W ALARICE DESIREE A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HARRIS | GINA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| EROLES | HERMINA S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | HARRIS HARRISON | MONAY WANDA L | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/11 |
| ESH ESPINAL ESPINOZA | ANUP K ELIZABET SEVERO A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HARRISON HARTNETT | XAVIER A KATHLEEN C | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| ESTHE ETIENNE | GINETTE P DANIEL C | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/19/12 01/01/12 | HASSAN HATTAR | NOURA I WILLIAM F | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| ETZL EUGENIO | CATHERIN I EVELYN | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HAZARI HEARD | TANIAAKM S TERRY | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| EVANS FABISEVICH FAHIM | DORIS NATALYA GEORGE A | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HELWIG HENDERSON | DORIS TONYA L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| FALLS FANA | DANIEL A MARILYN T | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HENDRICKS | COREY S DAINA | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/18/12 |
| FANDINO FARA FARRUGGIO | CINDY PHILIP A VINCENZO | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HENRY HENRY | JASMINE T | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| FARROGGIO FELDER FELICIANO | CHERYL J MARGIE | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 01/01/12 | HENRY HENRY | JULIET RENITA D | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FELICIANO FELIX | NANCY M LARYEA N | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HENRY HERB | RICHARD CORA L | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FENG FERDOUS | SHU YU SALMA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HERBERT HERFIELD | CARMELLA E DONNA L | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/24/12 01/01/12 |
| FERNANDEZ FERNANDEZ | DOMINGO JUDITHSA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HERNANDEZ HERNANDEZ | ALICIA DONNA R | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FERREIRA FERRERA | JENNIFER LINDA R | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HERNANDEZ HERNANDEZ | EVELYN JOANLY E | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FERRERIS FETTERMAN | BLANCA BONNY V | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HERNANDEZ-FELIX HERRERA | | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FEUER FICALORA | FRED L DIANE P | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HILLIARD | MELODY-E G | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| FIDLER FIGUEROA FIGUEROA | RUBIN I MARIA MARIBEL | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 01/01/12 | HINTON HO | ARNOLD C BERNADET | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FIGUEROA FIGUEROA FIGUEROA | MILDRED STEPHANI | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/17/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HOBBS HOCHMAN | BEVERLY MELBA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/18/12 |
| FINZ FISCHER | SUSAN C RENEE M | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HODGE HODGES | CARL O WILLIAM | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| FISHER FITZGERALD | KHADEENI K DARRYN T | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HOGAN HOLLIS | RIA CHRISTIN L | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 02/28/11 01/01/12 |
| FLETCHER FLETCHER | ANAMARYR R ARAYNIA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HOLLIS HOLLIS | JABARI I LINDA J | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| FONTANEZ FORBES | ZENAIDA BIONCA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 | HOLLO HOLMES | BARRETT C THOMAS F | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FORD FORD | ANTHONY MELANIE O | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 | HOOD | EVONNE MIKE R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FOSTER FOUNTAIN | ALEXCIA IDA L | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HOPE | JUNIOR Q | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| FRANCIS FRANCIS-PIGOTT FRANCO | BINNY HAZEL CAROL | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HORNE HOSEIN | MAXINE CARL S | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| FRANKE FRANKLIN | DEBORAH E TIAUNDRA J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HOSSAIN HOUSTON | AULAD DOROTHY J | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/18/12 01/01/12 |
| FRAZIER FREEDMAN FREEMAN | CAROLYN E EILEEN LATOYA B | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HOWARD HOWELL | RUTH KEVIN | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FREESE FRIAS-MONCION | LATOYA B ALICE L JUNELSI | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/11 01/01/12 | HU HUANG | YIN ALI | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FRISCH FU | HARRIET PONG PON | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HUBBARD HUGGINS | DOROTHY S LATASHA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| FUENTES FUNES | NELIS L KAREN | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HUGHES HUGHLEY | DANEEN S HERBENA T | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| FUNG GANT | TERESA WANDA D | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 | HULEN HUMEN | MARLON SHEILA M | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| GARCIA GARCIA GARCIA | DOMINGA A GLORIA S IVETTE | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/17/12 01/01/12 01/01/11 | HUNT | VERONICA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| GARCIA GARCIA GARCIA | LUZ S SACHA M | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 01/01/12 | HUNTER HUSNAIN | LATRICE RASHIDA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GARCIA GARCIA | SATURNIN R TONYA L | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/17/12 01/01/12 | IANNITELLI ISLAM | STEPHANI A MD. M | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GARCIA-VELEZ GATEWOOD GAUTHIER | NILSA L SHARON TRINA | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 01/01/12 | ISLAM ISRAILOV | NAVID ILYA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GBARRE GBOLADE | MAWATE S KAFAYAT | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | IYOKHO IZQUIERDO | ADESUWA J EZEQUIEL L | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GELFAND GENDY | SUSAN B AMIRA N | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/11 | JACKSON JACKSON | JEFFREY | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/26/12 |
| GEORGIEVA GERMANY | VLADIMIR V LORRIAN L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 | JACKSON JACKSON | SHALONDA M SHARONNI | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GHANI GHOBRIAL | MUHAMMAD S MINA M | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 | JACOB JACQUET | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GIACOBINO GILMORE | DOMENICA RACHEL N | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | JADWISZCZOK | AGATHA E | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| GIMBL GINETTE GINSBERG | DAWN M RAPHAEL L ALAN L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | JAILALL JAIMES-RODRIGUE | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GIZAS GLICKENSTEIN | VALERIE DAVID L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 01/01/11 | JALALUDDIN JAMES | SHEIKH M ABISHAI G | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GLYNN GOLD | MYRA A LAURIE B | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | JAMES JAMES | ALFREDA EBONY | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| GOLDWATER | LAURIE B LINDA B JESSICA Y | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 | JAMES JAMES | MICHELLE A SUZETTE S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GOMEZ GOMEZ GOMZALLEZ BALI | JESSICA Y VICTORIA K L ROBERT G | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES YES | 01/17/12 01/01/12 01/18/12 | JAMES JR JARAN | ALLEN E MANZANET | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| GOMZALLEZ BALI GONZALEZ GONZALEZ | CLARISEL CLAUDIO O | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 | JARVIS JEAN-BAPTISTE | LINDA V NICOLE | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| | | | | | | | | | | 72.0000 | | 120 | ,,, |

| <u>s</u> | DIANA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
|--------------|--------------------|--------|----------------|----------------------|------------------------|------------|----------------------|
| 5 5 | RICHARD ROSA | B L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| 5 | TANYA | ш | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| - | LINDA | м | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | SUSAN | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | ELENA | I | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | RAYMOND CYNTHIA | | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| | LATASHA | м | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | LYNNISE | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | MARSHA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| RG | EILEEN | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| 2 | SILVIA | т | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DANIEL | Ρ | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| I | IVAN | R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| I | SHIRLEY | Α | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| TCH | BARBARA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | LORRAINE | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LL | ROSILAND | I | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | CHANEL | J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | EBELIN | G | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | GABRIELL | L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
|) | GLORIA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
|) | MARVIN | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DELORES | Е | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| : | ROZA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | STEVEN | G | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| z | CHRISTY | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/20/12 |
| N | MIRIAM | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | KHANOM | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | ANILA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/18/12 |
| | JULIA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | GEORGIA | I | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | SAEROMI | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| r | JOSEPH | A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DARRELL | в | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | JAMES | s | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | LESLIE | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 09/08/11 |
| | GARTH | R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | SYLVIA | м | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | VIRGINIA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | GINA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | MONAY | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | WANDA | L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| r | XAVIER | А | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | KATHLEEN | С | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | NOURA | I | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | WILLIAM | F | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | TANIAAKM | s | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | TERRY | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DORIS | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| N | TONYA | L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| s | COREY | s | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DAINA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/18/12 |
| | JASMINE | т | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | JULIET | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | RENITA | D | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | RICHARD | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | CORA | г | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | CARMELLA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/24/12 |
| | DONNA | L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| z | ALICIA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| z | DONNA | R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| z | EVELYN | - | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| Z | JOANLY | Е | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| - Z-FELIX | | J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DIANA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | MELODY-E | G | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | ARNOLD | c | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | BERNADET | - 1 | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | BEVERLY | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | MELBA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/18/12 |
| | CARL | о | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | WILLIAM | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | RIA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 02/28/11 |
| | CHRISTIN | L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | JABARI | I | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | LINDA | J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | BARRETT | С | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | THOMAS | F | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | EVONNE | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| ER | MIKE | R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | JUNIOR | Q | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | MAXINE | ~ | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | CARL | s | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | AULAD | ~ | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DOROTHY | J | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/18/12 |
| | RUTH | 5 | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| | KEVIN | | 9POLL | | | | |
| | | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | YIN | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | ALI | ~ | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DOROTHY | S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| | LATASHA | ~ | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | DANEEN HERBENA | S T | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| | | | | | AFFULNIED | 1.65 | |

| JEAN-FELIX | MALCOLM | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | LOY | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
|------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------------|------------------------|------------|----------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------|----------------|----------------------|------------------------|------------|----------------------|
| JEAN-PAUL JEFFCOAT | ALBERTE V GEORGETT F | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | LOZADA LU | AVRA M ADRIAN W | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| JEFFERSON | KAMELL L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | LUGO | ERICA C | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| JENKINS | DAVID L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 | LUI | KENNETH | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| JESSURUM JIMENEZ | JEYSON MARIA L | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | LUNA LUONG | AGNES B SOLOMON | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| JIMENEZ-VELEZ | ELIZABET | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 | LURYE | BORIS | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| JOHNSON JOHNSON | BRANDIE L DOROTHY A | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/23/12 01/01/12 | MA MACKENZIE | YI LING ROBERT | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/26/12 |
| JOHNSON | ERICKA P | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MACKEY | SHELDON | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| JOHNSON | EVELYN | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MADDOX | KENSA D | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| JOHNSON JOHNSON | ISIAH KISHMIR | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MADISON MAGUIRE | BARBARA A PETER J | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| JOHNSON | LARRY W | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MAHFOUD | BEN | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| JOHNSON JOHNSON | LINDA MICHAEL | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 | MAHMOUD MAHONEY | SHAIMAA S KIERAN M | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| JOHNSON | MICHAEL W | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MALDONADO | JAIANA K | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| JOHNSON | SEAN D | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 | MALIK | DECEMBER A | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| JOHNSON JOHNSTON | TONYA M LATOYA R | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/17/12 | MANDEL MANGAL | BARRETT J ROOKMINI | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| JOHNSTON | MARY C | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MANGAT | MANJINDE K | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/20/12 |
| JONES JONES | BRYNA C KENNETH R | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MANNETTE MANNIX | TERICA J R. DELIA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/23/12 01/01/11 |
| JORDAN | OCTAVIA J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MANNS | KELLY L | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| JOSEPHS JOSHI | RICARDO JAYSHREE V | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MANTHORNE MAPLES | ARLEEN STACEY E | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| JOSHI | VARSHA R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MARCUS | GAIL D | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| JUBAIR | IBRAHIM | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MARIN | JULIA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| JULIA KABAHAR | RAPHAEL KAREN M | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MARKO MARRASQUIN | MAGDOLNA SYLVIA J | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| KAMGA | LARISA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MARRERO | MILAGROS | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KATARI KAUR | TAPAS UPKAR | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/27/12 01/01/12 | MARSH MARSH | ARTICIA SHERYL I | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/18/12 01/01/12 |
| KAYZERMAN | MIKHAIL | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MARTE | MARCIA C | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KAZI | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MARTIAL | MATILDA A | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KEARNEY KEARSE | NWENNA WILLIAM | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/11 | MARTIN MARTIN | BENJAMIN HILARY M | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| KEENE | LARRY D | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MARTIN | MELISSA S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KEENE KEEYS | LAUREEN M PERALE C | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 | MARTINEZ MARTINEZ | DAISY ESTHER J | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| KELLY | MAXIMILI | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MARTINEZ | EVELYN | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KELLY | THOMAS D JANELLE S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 | MARTINEZ MARTINEZ | KENRICK J LUIS D | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KELTY KEMMERER | JANELLE S MARK W | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 | MARTINEZ MASKARA | LUIS D DANIEL | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| KERSAINT | JOSUE | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 | MASON | SHAWN H | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KHAN KHANAM | ZUBAIR SHAHANA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MASSEY MASSEY | KAREN KIZZY J | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| KHANAM | SHAHEEN A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/19/12 | MASTRANGELO | MARSHALL P | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KHATUN KHEMSUWAN | REZIA NATTHAVA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/20/12 | MATEO MATHUR | JULITA D RUCHIIRA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| KILEY | TIMOTHY S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MATIAS | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KIM | KATHERIN S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MATOS | ARMANDO | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KING KING | DOUGLAS L ELMORE | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MATTHEWS MAXWELL | SHADIA L SANDRA G | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| KING | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MAZHAR | MARIA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KING KING | EVAH MARY L | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 | MCCABE MCCALL | DOROTHY R JACKIE C | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/11 |
| KING | ROSANN V | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MCCARTHY | ALEXANDE A | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KIRK | TOMMIE L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MCCAULEY | JEAN E | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KOFFLER KOGAN | SANDRA D ANGELIKA G | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MCCORD MCCULLOUGH | VERNA M WANDA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/11 |
| KORNBLUH | MARTIN S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MCGOLDRICK | SCOTT J | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KRAMER KRAWIECKI | AYGUL LISA R | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MCGREGOR MCINTOSH | ROBERT A EMILY C | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| KREN | ROBERT J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MCINTYRE | SHANIKWA N | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KREVATAS KUHNREICH | FLORA ROBERT | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MCINTYRE MCKENZIE | YAFFA N SUSAN | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| KUNDU | POBITRO K | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MCKINNEY | ELIZABET W | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| KWAN LAFARGUE | REANNA H RANDY J | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED RESIGNED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/22/12 | MCKOY MCLAURIN | TRAVIS F BOBBY E | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LAFOREST | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MCLOUGHLIN | YA-FANG | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LAM | LILLIAN | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MCMAHON | JOSEPH B | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LANCI-BRIGANTI LANE | FRANCA DEVORA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 | MCMANUS MEDINA | SHADOLLA R GEORGE | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| LANGER | ARNOLD E | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MEDINA | | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| LANGER LATTANZIO | CARMEL S MARYANN L | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MEI MEI | JENNY NING | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LAU | LICIA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MEJIA | GLORIA M | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LAVALLE | LINDA L | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/25/12 | MEJIA | YAMILET | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LEBLANC LEBRON | IDA L JANETTE M | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MEJIA MEJIA-VALENZUEL | YOCASTA JIMMY F | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LECARO | MAUREEN S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MELENDEZ | MIGUEL A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LEE LEE | BOKSUNG DAVID T | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 | MELHADO MELO | STACEY T YOLANDA J | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/23/12 |
| LEE | MIU L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MELTZER | LAURA R | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LEE LEE | RONALD S VAI V | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MERALLA MERCEDES | EFREN P ARIAS | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LENAVENEC | MONIQUE F | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MERCEDES | LESLIE S | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LEON LEON | MARIA NORMA E | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MIAH MIAN | RUMENA AMIN A | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LEON LEONARD | NORMA E AMANDA G | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MIAN MICHEL | | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LESLEY | JANELL L | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MICKIE | VALERIE | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| LEUNG LEUNG | RAY S VIRGINIA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MICKLE MIDDLETON | ETHEL ROSETTE | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| LEWIS | CAROL A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MILIEN | JEAN M | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 |
| LEWIS | EUGENE | 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MILLER | DARLENE | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LEWIS LEWIS | LETEPHA L MARNAE N | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MILLER MILLER | DEBORAH C SIMONE | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LEWIS | SHELLYAN | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MILLER | SOPHIA U | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LEYDER LI | GARY J AH S | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/26/12 01/01/12 | MILLER MILLS | THEODORE T LISA D | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| LI LI | AH S CALVIN Y | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MILLS MIMS | LISA D LAURA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| LI | HAO | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MIRAKA | VIOLETA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LI | MILLY M SZE KIT | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MITCHELL MITRA | JUDY M HILLOL | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LI | WEI LI | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MODICA | MARY E | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LI LIANG | WEZ SUSIE | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MOLINA MOLINA JR | JENNIFER M MICHAEL | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |
| LIANG | | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 | MONCADA | | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 01/01/12 |
| LINDSAY | DIONNE A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MONCLOVA | KRYSTLE M | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LINGAT LIU | ARNEL G JIAN | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MONDESI MONEGRO | JASON C AMBIORIS | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/24/12 |
| LOCKET | SUSAN M | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MONTAUBAN | THEOLA | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/18/12 |
| LOCKHART | QUANEESH N PETER C | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MONTE MONTGOMERY | NANCY KATRINA A | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LOCKWOOD LOPERENA | MILTON J | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MONTGOMERY MOORE | BRIAN B | | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LOPEZ | ANA J | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/11 | MOORE | DOUGLAS A | 9POLL | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LOPEZ | CYNTHIA LUIS A | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MOORE MOORE | HECTOR S TANYA M | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 |
| LOPEZ | - - A | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 | MOORE | VOLORIE M | | \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES | 01/01/12 |
| LOPEZ LOPEZ | MIRIAM | 9POLL | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/12 | MORALES MORALES | JOHN A MARIA | 9POLL 9POLL | \$1.0000 \$1.0000 | APPOINTED APPOINTED | YES YES | 01/01/12 01/01/11 |

READER'S GUIDE

The City Record (CR) is published each business day and includes notices of proposed New York City procurement actions, contract awards, and other procurement-related information. Solicitation notices for most procurements valued at or above \$100,000 for information technology and for construction and construction related services, above \$50,000 for other services, and above \$25,000 for other goods are published for at least one day. Other types of procurements, such as sole source, require notice in The City Record for five consecutive days. Unless otherwise specified, the agencies and offices listed are open for business Monday through Friday from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., except on legal holidays.

NOTICE TO ALL NEW YORK CITY CONTRACTORS

The New York State Constitution ensures that all laborers, workers or mechanics employed by a contractor or subcontractor doing public work are to be paid the same wage rate that prevails in the trade where the public work is being done. Additionally, New York State Labor Law \$ 220 and 230 provide that a contractor or subcontractor doing public work in construction or building service must pay its employees no less than the prevailing wage. Section 6-109 (the Living Wage Law) of the New York City Administrative Code also provides for a "living wage", as well as prevailing wage, to be paid to workers employed by City contractors in certain occupations. The Comptroller of the City of New York is mandated to enforce prevailing wage. Contact the NYC Comptroller's Office at www.comptroller.nyc.gov, and click on Prevailing Wage Schedules to view rates.

CONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION SERVICES OR CONSTRUCTION-RELATED SERVICES

The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed to the City's prestige as a global destination.

VENDOR ENROLLMENT APPLICATION

New York City procures approximately \$17 billion worth of goods, services, construction and construction-related services every year. The NYC Procurement Policy Board Rules require that agencies primarily solicit from established mailing lists called bidder/proposer lists. Registration for these lists is free of charge. To register for these lists, prospective suppliers should fill out and submit the NYC-FMS Vendor Enrollment application, which can be found online at www.nyc.gov/selltonyc. To request a paper copy of the application, or if you are uncertain whether you have already submitted an application, call the Vendor Enrollment Center at (212) 857-1680.

SELLING TO GOVERNMENT TRAINING WORKSHOP

New and experienced vendors are encouraged to register for a free training course on how to do business with New York City. "Selling to Government" workshops are conducted by the Department of Small Business Services at 110 William Street, New York, NY 10038. Sessions are convened on the second Tuesday of each month from 10:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. For more information, and to register, call (212) 618-8845 or visit www.nyc.gov/html/sbs/nycbiz and click on Summary of Services, followed by Selling to Government.

PRE-QUALIFIED LISTS

New York City procurement policy permits agencies to develop and solicit from pre-qualified lists of vendors, under prescribed circumstances. When an agency decides to develop a pre-qualified list, criteria for pre-qualification must be clearly explained in the solicitation and notice of the opportunity to pre-qualify for that solicitation must be published in at least five issues of the CR. Information and qualification questionnaires for inclusion on such lists may be obtained directly from the Agency Chief Contracting Officer at each agency (see Vendor Information Manual). A completed qualification questionnaire may be submitted to an Agency Chief Contracting Officer at any time, unless otherwise indicated, and action (approval or denial) shall be taken by the agency within 90 days from the date of submission. Any denial or revocation of pre-qualified status can be appealed to the Office of Administrative Trials and Hearings (OATH). Section 3-10 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules describes the criteria for the general use of pre-qualified lists. For information regarding specific pre-qualified lists, please visit www.nyc.gov/selltonyc.

PUBLIC ACCESS CENTER

The Public Access Center is available to suppliers and the public as a central source for supplier-related information through on-line computer access. The Center is located at 253 Broadway, 9th floor, in lower Manhattan, and is open Monday through Friday from 9:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., except on legal holidays. For more information, contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services at (212) 341-0933 or visit www.nyc.gov/mocs.

ATTENTION: NEW YORK CITY MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Join the growing number of Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (M/WBEs) that are competing for New York City's business. In order to become certified for the program, your company must substantiate that it: (1) is at least fifty-one percent (51%) owned, operated and controlled by a minority or woman and (2) is either located in New York City or has a significant tie to New York City's business community. To obtain a copy of the certification application and to learn more about this program, contact the Department of Small Business Services at (212) 513-6311 or visit www.nyc.gov/sbs and click on M/WBE Certification and Access

PROMPT PAYMENT

It is the policy of the City of New York to pay its bills promptly. The Procurement Policy Board Rules generally require that the City pay its bills within 30 days after the receipt of a proper invoice. The City pays interest on all late invoices. However, there are certain types of payments that are not eligible for interest; these are listed in Section 4-06 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules. The Comptroller and OMB determine the interest rate on late payments twice a year: in January and in July.

PROCUREMENT POLICY BOARD RULES

The Rules may also be accessed on the City's website at www.nyc.gov/selltonyc

COMMON ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THE CR

The CR contains many abbreviations. Listed below are simple explanations of some of the most common ones appearing in the CR:

- ACCO Agency Chief Contracting Officer
- AMT Amount of Contract
- CSBCompetitive Sealed Bid including multi-step
- CSP Competitive Sealed Proposal including multi-step
- \mathbf{CR} The City Record newspaper
- DP**Demonstration Project**
- DUE Bid/Proposal due date; bid opening date
- $\mathbf{E}\mathbf{M}$ **Emergency Procurement**
- FCRC Franchise and Concession Review Committee
- IFB Invitation to Bid
- IG Intergovernmental Purchasing
- LBE Locally Based Business Enterprise
- M/WBE Minority/Women's Business Enterprise NA Negotiated Acquisition
- OLB Award to Other Than Lowest Responsive Bidder/Proposer
- PIN **Procurement Identification Number**
- PPB Procurement Policy Board
- PQL Pre-qualified Vendors List
- Request for Expressions of Interest RFEI
- RFI **Request for Information**
- RFP **Request for Proposals**
- RFQ **Request for Qualifications**
- SS Sole Source Procurement
- ST/FED Subject to State and/or Federal requirements

KEY TO METHODS OF SOURCE SELECTION

The Procurement Policy Board (PPB) of the City of New York has by rule defined the appropriate methods of source

| NA/11 | Immediate successor contractor required due to |
|------------------------|---|
| | termination/default |
| | For Legal services only: |
| NA/12 | Specialized legal devices needed; CSP not |
| | advantageous |
| WA | Solicitation Based on Waiver/Summary of |
| *** 4 4 | Circumstances (Client Services / CSB or CSP only) |
| WA1 | Prevent loss of sudden outside funding |
| WA2 | Existing contractor unavailable/immediate need |
| WA3 | Unsuccessful efforts to contract/need continues |
| IG | Intergovernmental Purchasing (award only) |
| IG/F | Federal |
| IG/S | State |
| IG/O | Other |
| $\mathbf{E}\mathbf{M}$ | Emergency Procurement (award only): |
| | An unforeseen danger to: |
| EM/A | Life |
| EM/B | Safety |
| EM/C | Property |
| EM/D | A necessary service |
| AC | Accelerated Procurement/markets with significant |
| | short-term price fluctuations |
| SCE | Service Contract Extension/insufficient time; |
| | necessary service; fair price |
| | Award to Other Than Lowest Responsible & |
| | Responsive Bidder or Proposer/Reason |
| | (award only) |
| OLB/a | anti-apartheid preference |
| OLB/b | local vendor preference |

alphabetically listed Agencies, and within Agency, by Division if any. The notices for each Agency (or Division)

HOW TO READ CR PROCUREMENT NOTICES

Procurement notices in the CR are arranged by

recycled preference

other: (specify)

are further divided into three subsections: Solicitations, Awards; and Lists & Miscellaneous notices. Each of these subsections separately lists notices pertaining to Goods, Services, or Construction.

Notices of Public Hearings on Contract Awards appear at the end of the Procurement Section.

At the end of each Agency (or Division) listing is a paragraph giving the specific address to contact to secure, examine and/or to submit bid or proposal documents, forms, plans, specifications, and other information, as well as where bids will be publicly opened and read. This address should be used for the purpose specified unless a different one is given in the individual notice. In that event, the directions in the individual notice should be followed.

The following is a SAMPLE notice and an explanation of the notice format used by the CR.

SAMPLE NOTICE:

POLICE

OLB/c

OLB/d

DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH SERVICES ■ SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

BUS SERVICES FOR CITY YOUTH PROGRAM - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN# 056020000293 - DUE 04-21-03 AT 11:00 A.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading NYPD, Contract Administration Unit, 51 Chambers Street, Room 310, New

York, NY 10007. Manuel Cruz (646) 610-5225.

EXPLANATION

POLICE DEPARTM

m27-30

ITEM

444

NON-MAYORAL ENTITIES

The following agencies are not subject to Procurement Policy Board Rules and do not follow all of the above procedures: City University, Department of Education, Metropolitan Transportation Authority, Health & Hospitals Corporation, and the Housing Authority. Suppliers interested in applying for inclusion on bidders lists for Non-Mayoral entities should contact these entities directly at the addresses given in the Vendor Information Manual.

selection for City procurement and reasons justifying their use. The CR procurement notices of many agencies include an abbreviated reference to the source selection method utilized. The following is a list of those methods and the abbreviations used:

- Human Services) Competitive Sealed Bidding including multi-step CSB Special Case Solicitations/Summary of BUS SERVICES CITY YOUTH PR Circumstances: CSP Competitive Sealed Proposal including multi-step CSB CP/1Specifications not sufficiently definite PIN # 056020000 CP/2Judgement required in best interest of City DUE 04-21-03 AT CP/3 Testing required to evaluate CB/PQ/4Use the following CP/PQ/4 CSB or CSP from Pre-qualified Vendor List/ unless otherwise Advance qualification screening needed in notice, to secur or submit bid/prop DP **Demonstration Project** documents; etc.
- SS Sole Source Procurement/only one source
- RSProcurement from a Required Source/ST/FED
- NA Negotiated Acquisition For ongoing construction project only:
- NA/8 Compelling programmatic needs
- NA/9 New contractor needed for changed/additional work
- NA/10 Change in scope, essential to solicit one or limited number of contractors

| POLICE DEPARTMENT | Name of contracting agency |
|---|--|
| DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH SERVICES | Name of contracting division |
| ■ SOLICITATIONS | Type of Procurement action |
| Services (Other Than Human Services) | Category of procurement |
| BUS SERVICES FOR CITY YOUTH PROGRAM | Short Title |
| CSB | Method of source selection |
| PIN # 056020000293 | Procurement identification number |
| DUE 04-21-03 AT 11:00 am | Bid submission due 4-21-03 by 11:00 am; bid opening date/time is the same. |
| Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents; etc. | Paragraph at the end of Agency Division listing providing Agency contact information |
| | NYPD, Contract Administration Unit 51 Chambers Street, Room 310 New York, NY 10007. Manuel Cruz (646) 610-5225. |
| • | Indicates New Ad |

Date that notice appears in The City Record